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FINANCIAL

HIGHLIGHTS

B 75 B 2

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HARERARE
i *¥

Turnover (HK$'M) Dividend per share (HK$)

E¥E GEERET) - SRKBE (BT)
3,359 0.152
2,518 0.147
2,018 0.100
1,959 0.050
e 1917 0010
_ Profit attributable to owners of the Company (HK$'M) Net assets attributable to owners of the Company per share (HKS$)
AAREEAEEERF (BEEET) RABREBEABREMBZEE (BT
162 4.46
S e 176 N 356
122 2.98
105 2.45
99 1.93

* Excluding a write-back of overprovision for tax disputes of HK$46 million, profit was HK$130 million.

iR B B B 75 5 = 2 R FE B B8 5 46,000,000 7T+ & FI) &7 %5 130,000,000 7T ©



2012 201 2010 2009 2008
Turnover & 3,359 2,518 2,018 1,959 1,917
Profit before tax @%RHIJ 27 236 231 199 160 157
Profit for the year 7N [€ Z1 % 181 200 147 124 111
Proflt attributable to owners of the Company

NEIER AREET 176*

Earnings 27 0.77 0.84 0.58 0.50 0.47
Dividend % & 0.152 0.147 0.100 0.050 0.010
Net assets attributable to owners of the Company A2 717G A BT FEE 4.46 3.86 2.98 2.45 1.93
Market price {8 6.00 6.23 2.20 0.84 0.84
No. of shares (‘M Shares) &7 B% & (B &A%) 210 210 210
Shareholders’ funds J& 8R4 & 938 812 627 511 400
Borrowings f& & 440 216 150 132 171
Market capitalization T {& 1,262 1,310 463 175 174
Debt to equity ratio & &t % 47% 23% 21% 23% 38%

(&)
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| am glad to report that the Group achieved a net profit of HK$162.3
million for the year ended 29 February 2012 (the “Year”). Excluding
the write-back of an overprovision for the settled tax disputes in the
previous financial year, it represents a 25.3% growth over the
previous year. Fueled by the strong demand from the Mainland
China and the inbound visitors, the Group has been able to sustain
its sales momentum and thus steadily improving our shareholders’
value over the years.

With such encouraging results, the Group continued to re-invest its
resources in brand building. Backed by an extensive nationwide
consumer survey covering major cities in Mainland China and Hong
Kong, TSL launched a new campaign featuring “Trend-setting
Craftsmanship [3E L. TE R E# |” as the theme to reposition
and differentiate itself right before the beginning of the Year. A series
of brand and publicity initiatives were rolled out to strengthen this
unique positioning. The most inspiring project was the first-of-its-kind

RAMRARRE » NEBEZE2012F2 529 H
I FE (A FE ) # R Z %5 % 162,300,000
o BRTFAL—HMBREEEHRARBETERZ
R ERE - BIER A FIEIN25.3% © Z Ay
RFBREEREREHT - REBEUE
BHER N > REFRBIEARREER -

EHSAHENEEZET AEEEERK
EFREmME o RIEBEAEERPERMZEE
ERMEESEHETIHEERAEER &
R A F E 9 E H B V[Trend-setting
Craftsmanship[3E L T & FRELZ]]WE
- EEHZEEEL —RIGEREEE
B UREEBISEN - HPREEENZH
T % G 82 Estrella 55 58 B 22 1 471 2 9 134 3 K B







cross-over program between TSL'’s signature Estrella diamonds and
the world-renowned micro-sculptor, Mr. Willard Wigan. Mr. Wigan
created “Starry Lovers”, a micro-sculpture mounted on top of a one-
carat Estrella diamond. This amazing piece of art has generated
huge interest from the market and the jewellery industry, and
translated into unprecedented publicity value. Furthermore, TSL
pioneered the jewellery retail industry in promoting mix-and-match
everyday wear jewellery and trendy fashion by the way of a “Fall/
Winter Collection Launch” platform. The Group also stepped up
sponsorship to certain fashion icons and celebrities during the Year
to promote the trendy image of our jewellery.

During the Year, it was my great pleasure to welcome Mr. Tse Sui
Luen and Mr. Tommy Tse back to the Group. Besides being the
Founder of the Company, Mr. Tse Sui Luen is a highly regarded
jewellery master in the industry, who possesses a wealth of
knowledge in production skills and technical know-how that has
further reinforced the leading-edge craftsmanship of our products.
Mr. Tommy Tse, a devoted jewellery art director, was appointed the
Chief Merchandising Officer of the Group. He has a strong passion
and unique vision for jewellery designs and manufacturing. Both Mr.
Tse Sui Luen and Mr. Tommy Tse have been tremendously
supporting the rest of the corporate management team in
wholeheartedly fulfilling TSL's commitment of delivering trend-setting
craftsmanship to our customers.

Willard Wigan %5458 R i & 1E  Wigan £ £ R —
5 — R Estrella =8 FITE HBREMBH [ 2 2%
Al EES AEREIEHNEMRTERS 2 H
SRHKEXFTE  BEEAfIRAEEESEE
BEE -BE AEETIB-RAIKETEER L
0 BRI KERER | #HEREEHE
AR BRE B R AR B S - RAFER » K&
ETEBHELRSEAMEHKRESH  HRAEK
SEHREEEBE RN R -

RABRNBD IR B R E R AER EERNAEE
RNEREENAKE - HHBTERTRAQF
RIMAS  TREREBTE  BELELERN
HE BB IRE-—TBRICEMBER L
MITE - HEERLERRORENWRE XIS
5 ERZARTEEEFERHELE  RK
BRAREESAEFELBBRBIFRS - 3
HBEERGEREENZOERIGREER
B BMAKEER AR AEFITERALT
& HREENIKE o




Looking ahead, the Group holds a cautiously optimistic view towards
the coming year. With the on-going concern of the sovereign debt
crisis in Europe and the slowing down of economic growth in
Mainland China, the consumption sentiment in both Hong Kong and
Mainland China has been affected since the last quarter of 2011.
However, we remain positive towards the luxury retail market in
Mainland China in the mid to long term. Moreover, the recent
introduction of a strategic investor, CDH Investments, to the Group
is certainly an encouraging move. With a strengthened capital base,
we will continue to invest in human resources, refine product
assortments and build an innovative marketing platform for steady
and robust business developments of the Group in years to come.

Last but not least, | would like to express my sincere appreciation to
all of our staff members for their diligence, dedication and
commitment to supporting the revitalization of the TSL brand. TSL
will soon evolve into an even more dynamic and forward-looking
jewellery brand with a long history of heritage.

Yau On Yee, Annie
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 May 2012
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MANAGEMENT'S =

DISCUSSION AND

ANALYSIS

TEEEBEzNWE D

Results of the Group

For the financial year ended 29 February 2012, the consolidated
turnover grew by 33.4% to HK$3,359 million from HK$2,518 million
last year. Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year was
HK$162.3 million, representing a slightly decline of 7.8% over that of
last financial year, due to the inclusion of a write-back of HK$46.6
million overprovision for the settled tax disputes last year. Had such
provision write-back in last year been excluded, the profit attributable
to owners of the Company should have increased by 25.3% from the
last year's HK$129.5 million. Earnings per share for the year were 77.2
HK cents.

Subject to shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general
meeting, the Board has proposed a final dividend of 12.5 HK cents per
ordinary share of the Company for the year ended 29 February 2012
(2011: 12 HK cents) to the shareholders whose names appear on the

-“

BZE2012F28 200 L HEE > SfREEXEHRE
£z 7% #2518,000,0007T & f133.4%F & ¥
3,359,000,0007T e NEEAR QT HEEABLEF A
75 #5162,300,000 7T © B £ — BIBUFEEFT AR EC #
RELFE T 2 B BA R 78 15 46,600,000 JTER X T BX
7.8% ° ARGt AL FE 2 BERD > AIZRQATHEE A
B8 % F 258 129,500,000 T 1N 25.3% © A4
EERERNBBET77.240 -

EE2EERBAQATEEFT2012F 2290 ILFE
RERESRZEIBEEA2.5L (20114 : BEE1241)
FR2012F7 831 B (EH =) B AR D ARRAZMH
ZBRR BERRERANSEHENRRBEAE LitE
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Register of Members of the Company on Tuesday, 31 July 2012.
Together with the paid interim dividend of 2.7 HK cents per ordinary
share, the total dividend per ordinary share of the Company for the
year ended 29 February 2012 will be 15.2 HK cents (2011: 14.7 HK
cents).

Benefited from the strong demands from the Mainland China tourists
on the jewellery retail market in Hong Kong and Macau, sales
attributable to Hong Kong and Macau increased by 49.1% from last
year. During the year, we opened two new stores, one in Sino Centre
in Mong Kok and another one in Park Lane Shopper’s Boulevard in
Tsim Sha Tsui. They, which coupled with the new stores opened in the
prior year, are all well complement to our existing store portfolio in
order to better serve both the local customers and Mainland China
tourists, which resulted in an increase in the profit during the period
under review.

BEFE - BRERZE2HFHRESREERBEE2.7
il » NRAREE2012F 2 29H L FE2BRE B
BRIREHEEAS BB A15.2MU (20115 © BEE14.74L) o

SERTERAMREZESER  BEBREMZKE
TISHEEREFELN49.1% - FR » AEBESBE
AEFPORRDIBEEEY K EFRRME R
ZMEEHER A ERR 2 EHER G EHAESHE
R 0 AAEERPE R REIREE ERE -
LB EIERE BRI EMER -



Our service culture is well recognized by the industry and in the
region. We are honoured to be awarded “Customer Service
Excellence Award of FAPRA AWARDS 2011” by The Federation of
Asia-pacific Retailers Associations (FAPRA). We will continue to
strive for excellent customer service, aiming to provide our customers
a pleasant and memorable TSL shopping experience.

The sales turnover in Mainland China grew by 14.4% from that of
last year. The keen competition on the human resources resulted in
not only a higher staff turnover but also an increased pressure on
cost and profitability. Nevertheless, the Group has completed in
restructuring and strengthening the middle to top management team
in China, which will enable the business to fully exploit the growth
potential of this high-flying market. Furthermore, the Group continued
to refine its store network according to its key-city-focus strategies,
and opened 26 shops during the period under review, including a
street store in Nanjing Xi Lu, the premier shopping area of Shanghai,
in adjacent to other international luxury brands. Together with the
continuing product assortment enhancements that we have started
since the previous financial year, and the increasingly sound
marketing effort, it was indeed another year of re-investment for the
betterment of the business in the future.

12

REBZRBEMRERRBARAIESES - K
SERETATEFHEHE (FAPRA) 2 [2011
FFAPRASR MEEZRIEEE | - REEASHEE R D
REBENEFRYE  EEEEF A R BR
SRR 2 BYEER o
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The export business remained weak during the financial year while
the business in Malaysia is progressing steadily.

The sovereign debt crisis in Europe and the slowing down of the
economic growth of Mainland China have caused uncertainties in
the economic outlook and affected the consumption atmosphere
since the end of 2011. On the other hand, the growing affluence of
consumers in Mainland China still provides an enormous opportunity
for luxury market in the medium and longer run. Under such
circumstances, it is important to improve the efficiency and
productivity to stay ahead of the competition. The Group will keep
investing cautiously in the inventory, store network and the brand to
capitalize our premier brand positioning and the market growth
potentials in the regions it operates.

FPBRFECHOXBSERS  MERADER
BRI HRE -

B 2011 FE R - BN ERERE SR A i &
BEIRERE  ASEASHERTHBEE  Fgg
THEENR - 5—FHHE G PERMEEEARSH
ERFRBNAZEEME T RERGH ELHERS
AT BEeMaRkEANEIRMERZTYHFERR
FEEMNEEAEE - AEEBEHEEFTERENT
E EHAKXRREIE ZoRELAEBREYR
MEMNUAREREEMEMSERZES




Finance, Liquidity, Capital Structure and Gearing

Capital expenditure, comprising mainly store renovation and
expansion, furniture and fixtures and machineries, incurred during
the year amounted to approximately HK$67.1 million (2011: HK$47.8
million), which was mainly financed by bank borrowings and fund
generated from internal resources.

As at 29 February 2012, the Group’s interest bearing liabilities
increased to HK$440 million from HK$215.6 million as at 28 February
2011. The increase was partly due to the balance of consideration of
HK$120 million for the acquisition of the minority stake in the
Mainland China business at the end of the year and partly due to the
increase in inventory to accommodate for the business growth. The
gearing ratio (ratio of total interest bearing liability to total equity) has
increased to 46.9% from 23.1% and is at a healthy level. All
borrowings of the Group are denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
while interest is calculated on the inter-bank interest rate or prime
rate.

As at 29 February 2012, the Group had cash and bank balances and
undrawn banking facilities of approximately HK$127 million, which in
the opinion of the Directors, should be sufficient for the present
working capital requirements.

¥

B RBES BEXERRAEMELR

FR FHPHLERT  RE HERHKESESC
BB HB%67,100,000 7T (2011 & : B#
47,800,000 7T) ' FEHBITERK AZBERIZH
BE o

A2012F2H29R » AEBEZ it EAEH2011
£2H28H 2 % ¥215,600,000 7T & i1 = & ¥
440,000,000 7T ° F| S 1B 1NEL 5 2K B F IR UK EHE H E
A i 2 75 D B i &= 2 KB 45 62 78 5 120,000,000
7T MBAAERARSERERMEMEE -
EEEE (AT EEEAREERBE L R)#
HREBEKT  H231% LA E46.9% c AEH
EEHERUBEAREN - MARAIRRITEES
5 E R R EEFEEET o

20122829 H » REB 2B S RRITEERU
R ARB AEITHRE N A B % 127,000,000 @ E
ERARUEMNBRAINEEEEER -




Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the completion of the
issue of the convertible bonds to CDH King Limited (a member of
CDH Investments) on 20 April 2012 represented an opportunity to
broaden the capital base of the Company and to raise capital for the
development of the core jewellery business. The investment by an
established institutional investor in the unsecured subordinated
convertible bonds of the Company reflects the confidence of the
investor in the Company. The Company can also benefit from the
extensive business networks of the subscriber. The net proceeds of
the issue of HK$247 million is to be used by the Company for
general corporate development and general working capital
requirements.

Exchange Rates

During the year, the transactions of the Group were mainly
denominated in local currencies and US dollars. The impact of the
fluctuation of foreign exchange rates of these currencies to the
Group is minimal.

F#EH% > MR2012F4H820H8 » 5K 1T FCDH
King Limited (BB EEBEMRE) AIERE S T RIE
EAQATERUREMESURBRRERLOEL 2
HE BHEECHBEREERENNT AT ZEIR
RAUEBIERESRMBEEHRQARATRELD °
RARMAZSERRBEA ZERBERREL - BITAT
BRIEFEE B 247,000,000 TTHE AR A D T — R4
ERRREBEESER -

B =

RAFER  AEENRZETBUEMERERET
REM > BEEWBERRBUNEENEEN o
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Charges on Group Assets

As at 29 February 2012, debentures have been executed by the
Group in favour of its banker charging, by way of fixed and floating
charges, all of the undertakings, properties and assets of the
Company and of its 11 subsidiaries as security for, inter alia, all
obligations and liabilities, actual or contingent, from time to time
owing by the Group to the banker. Rental revenue of the Group is
also charged in favour of the Group’s banker.

As at 29 February 2012, the Company and its 6 subsidiaries (the
“Subsidiaries”) have executed a second floating charge and the
Company made a guarantee to the Subsidiaries and there was a
cross guarantee among the Subsidiaries in favour of Rosy Blue Hong
Kong Limited to pledge all of the Subsidiaries’ respective rights to
and title and interest from time to time in their inventories or stock-in-
trade and their receivables from their overseas fellow subsidiaries in
connection with the sales and supply of any inventory or stock-in-
trade to such overseas fellow subsidiaries as a continuing security
for the debts (note 19). As at 29 February 2012, the debts amounted
to HK$170,692,000 (2011: HK$136,833,000).

16
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Contingent Liabilities

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 29
February 2012.

Human Resources

As at 29 February 2012, the total number of employees of the Group
was approximately 3,800 (2011: 3,500), the increase being mainly in
sales and marketing to support the growth of the business.

Employees are rewarded on a performance basis with reference to
market rates. Other employee benefits include medical cover and
subsidies for job-related continuing education. The Group also has
an employee share option scheme. No options were granted
pursuant to the scheme during the year.

Retail frontline staff is provided with formal classroom and on-the-job
training by internal seniors and external professional trainers. In-
house seminars and experience sharing sessions are also organized
to strengthen staff’s skills.

HEAE
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THE FOUNDER

Tse Suiluen

BRI A - S i

Tse Sui Luen, aged 75, the Group’s Founder and provides general strategic advice to the Group. He was the Chairman of the Group from 1987 to

2000 and re-joined the Group in September 2011. He has over 50 years of experience in jewellery industry. Mr. Tse is the first Chinese awarded

membership of the League of Honour of the internationally renowned Gemological Institute of America (GIA) and Hong Kong Entrepreneurs Award

1990, as well as one of the one hundred masters in the “Glorious Moment — Centenary Celebration of Xinhai Revolution, 100 Masters and 100

Exquisite Art Pieces Exhibition”. He is the father of Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy, the Chief Merchandising Officer and controlling shareholder of the
_ Group, and the father-in-law of Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie, the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Group.

Wil RE755 - BAKEWARA - REFEEEH-—REBMEEZR - REN1987 FE 2000 FEHAEREERF —BRE2011F9BERE
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DIRECTORS PROFILE

Executive Directors

BITES

Yau On Yee, Annie

Aged 41, is the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Group. She
joined the Group in 2002, and became an Executive Director in 2006. In the
early years at the Company, she pioneered the Group’s Jewellery ERP
discipline and modernized the Company’s management through business
process re-engineering. Prior to joining the Group, she worked for multi-
national companies such as Motorola Semiconductors and IBM. She has
over 19 years of management experience in the United States and Hong
Kong. She is a director of Partner Logistics Limited which has discloseable
interests in the Company under provisions of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance. She graduated from Boston University, USA and holds a
Bachelor of Science degree in Computer Engineering. Ms. Yau is the spouse
of Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy, the Chief Merchandising Officer and the
controlling shareholder of the Group, and the daughter-in-law of Mr. Tse Sui
Luen, the Founder of the Group.

Erwin Steve Huang

Aged 46, is the Deputy Chairman of the Group. He is responsible for the
corporate affairs and the tourist showroom operation of the Group. He was
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company for the period from 24 April 2008
to 28 February 2010. Prior to joining the Group in 2005, he was a seasoned
entrepreneur in different industries, including publishing, education, telecom
and information technology. Mr. Huang has built and developed multiple
companies in London, San Francisco, Tokyo and Hong Kong in the past
years. He holds double degrees in Business Operation Management and
Management Information System from Boston University, USA.

Lai Tsz Mo, Lawrence

Aged 46, is the Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary of the Group.
He is responsible for the overall finance and administration of the Group. Mr.
Lai graduated from The University of Hong Kong and holds a Bachelor’s
degree in Social Sciences. He also holds a Master’s degree in Business
Administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom.
Before joining the Group in 2001, he had over 10 years of experience in a
listed company in Hong Kong and an international accounting firm.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

BYFHTES

@ Chui Chi Yun, Robert

Aged 55, has been an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since 12
April 1999. Mr. Chui is a practising Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong. He holds a
Bachelor's degree in Commerce (Major in Accounting) and is a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom. Mr. Chui is also an independent non-
executive director of National Arts Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8228) and was an
independent non-executive director of 21 Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1003), both
companies are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He is also a director
of a number of private companies and associations.

Heng Ching Kuen, Franklin

Aged 47, has been an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since 30
November 2008. Mr. Heng is the Managing Partner and Responsible Officer of Jades
Capital Management Limited. He was a Managing Director of The Royal Bank of
Scotland, Hong Kong and a director of HSBC Securities (Asia) Limited and various
financial institutions. He has extensive banking experience specializing in equity
derivatives and investment products. He has held senior positions in several major
private financial institutions in Hong Kong and had been registered with the Hong Kong
Monetary Authority as Executive Officer and the Hong Kong Securities and Futures
Commission as Responsible Officer carrying out various regulated activities. Mr. Heng
holds a Master degree of Arts in Mathematics & Management Studies from the University
of Cambridge, England. He is a fellow member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales and The Hong Kong Institute of Directors, and a member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in Hong Kong. He is also a director
of a number of private companies.

Chan Yue Kwong, Michael

Aged 60, has been an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since 25
August 2010. Mr. Chan is currently the Chairman and Non-executive Director of Café de
Coral Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 341), the Non-executive Director of Tao Heung
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 573) and the Independent Non-executive Director of each
of Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1888), Pacific Textiles Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 1382) and Starlite Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 403), all of which
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He has worked as a
professional town planner with government bodies in Hong Kong and Canada. He holds
a double major degree in Sociology and Political Science, a Master degree in City
Planning from the University of Manitoba, Canada, an Honorary Doctorate degree in
Business Administration, a Court Member of the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology, as well as being bestowed the Honorary Fellow from Lingnan University. He
is also a member of the Political Consultative Committee of Nanshan District, Shenzhen
in the People’s Republic of China. Mr. Chan has many years of professional experience
in the public sector and over 25 years of management experience in the food and
catering industry. He is an Executive Committee Member of the Hong Kong Retail
Management Association, the General Committee Member of the Employers’ Federation
of Hong Kong, the Adviser of the Quality Tourism Services Association, a Governor of
the Canadian Chamber of Commerce in Hong Kong, the Honorary Chairman of the Hong
Kong Institute of Marketing, and the Chairman of the Business Enterprise Management
Centre of the Hong Kong Management Association. In the public sector, Mr. Chan is
appointed by the HKSAR Government as member of the Hong Kong Tourism Board and
member of the Business Facilitation Advisory Committee.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

Tse Tat Fung, Tommy

Aged 44, the Group’s Chief Merchandising Officer. He is responsible for all merchandise
supply matters and the development of the Group’s new products. Mr. Tse joined the
Group after returning from the U.S. in 1994. He was the Chairman of the Group from
2000 to 2008 and was, during that time, responsible for the Group’s overall strategy and
business development. He re-joined the Group in September 2011. Mr. Tse graduated
from Boston University and holds a Bachelor of Science (Business Administration)
degree, Bachelor of Science (Mathematics) degree, and Master of Arts (Mathematics)
degree. He is a director of Partner Logistics Limited and Blink Technology Limited which
have discloseable interests in the Company under provisions of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance. He is the son of Mr. Tse Sui Luen, the Founder of the Group, the
spouse of Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie, the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the
Group, and is the controlling shareholder of the Group.

Chan Lap Yip, Lambert

Aged 46, is the Chief Operating Officer of the Group. He is responsible for the Group
Marketing, Strategic Planning divisions as well as the entire retail business operations of
the Group in Hong Kong, China, Macau and Malaysia. Prior to joining the Group in
March 2010, he had over 25-year proven track record in sales and marketing. He has
extensive experience in strategic planning, branding and business development across a
diverse range of industries. He has held executive positions in premier corporations
including DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited, The Hong Kong Tourism Board and Hong
Kong Telecom. He graduated from The University of Toronto in 1986 and holds a
Bachelor of Arts degree. He has furthered his studies at a number of well-renowned
academic institutions including INSEAD in France, Tsinghua University in China and
Hong Kong Baptist University. He is also a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Marketing.

Chan Oi Lai, Brenda

Aged 53, is the Director — Group Human Resources. She is responsible for the Human
Resources and Training function of the Group. She has extensive experience in Staffing,
Compensations & Benefits, Employee Engagement, Organization Development and
Change Management. Before joining the Group in August 2011, she has held senior
positions in different reputable corporations including The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited, The Hong Kong Tourism Board, Standard Chartered Bank
(Hong Kong) Limited and Hong Kong Telecom. She graduated from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong and holds a Bachelor degree in Business Administration. She
also holds a Master degree“in Counseling, conferred by Monash University in Australia.

Cheng Hung Piu, Belmon

Aged 54, is the Director — Group Product Planning and Trading. He joined the Group in
1977 and has extensive experience in retail operation, product development and
merchandise planning. He is responsible for Business Development of our China Retail
operation and the merchandising management of the trading business in China and
Malaysia.
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@ Yip Kwok Fai, Keith

Aged 45, is the Director — Group Merchandising & Sourcing. Mr. Yip graduated from The
University of Warwick in England and holds a Bachelor’s degree in Manufacturing
Engineering. He brings with his over 10 years of manufacturing experience in the
eyewear and watch industries. Prior to joining the Group in May 2005, he worked for
some multinational companies like Citizen Watch Group and Bausch & Lomb Group.

Fung Suk Ming, Abby

Aged 43, is the Financial Controller — Group Finance. She is responsible for the financial
and management accounting functions of the Group. Ms. Fung graduated from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong and holds a Bachelor’s degree in Business
Administration (Professional Accountancy). She also holds a Master of Science degree
in Economics from The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology. She is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom. Before joining the Group in
June 2004, she had over 10 years of experience in treasury and accounting functions in
several listed companies and multinational corporations.

Ng Koon Keung, Ricky

Aged 43, is the General Manager — Hong Kong and Macau Retail of the Group. He is
responsible for sales operations, marketing and product planning in Hong Kong and
Macau. Prior to joining the Group in August 2009, he had over 17 years of experience in
retail sales, marketing management and business development in different industries,
including telecommunication, fast moving consumer goods as well as fashion and
apparel. He worked for some large companies such as PCCW Limited, Giordano
International Limited, Swire Resources Limited, Four Seas Mercantile Holdings Limited —
Okashi Land and SUNDAY Communications Limited. He graduated from Hong Kong
Baptist University and holds a Bachelor degree in Business Administration. He also holds
a Master degree in Business Administration from The Macquarie University in Australia.
He was the panel judge for Hong Kong Retail Management Association Service &
Courtesy Award from 2004 to 2007.

Law Yiu Tung, Denis

Aged 49, is the Associate Director — Strategic Planning of the Group. He is responsible
for business planning, market research and data analysis of retail operation of the Group.
Prior to joining the Group in May 2010, he had over 20 years of experience in marketing,
business planning and customer relations management. He worked for several large
companies such as The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited, CSL
Limited and The Hong Kong Tourism Board. He graduated from The Chinese University
of Hong Kong and holds a Bachelor degree of Social Sciences (Honours). He also holds
a Master degree of Arts (Sociology Department with concentration in Demography) from
The University of Hawaii, USA.
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(5 Jim Man Tin, Anthony

Aged 35, Associate Director — Group Marketing. He is responsible for the Group’s overall
marketing strategy and brand development across Hong Kong, China, Macau and
Malaysia. Prior to joining the Group in August 2010, he has held key management
positions in a diverse range of industries including telecommunications, media and
tourism, specializing in marketing management, brand development and business
development. He holds Master of Business Administration and Bachelor of Business
Administration degrees from The Hong Kong University of Science & Technology, and
was inducted as lifetime member of the prestigious Beta Gamma Sigma Honor Society.

Chung Wai Shun, Wilson

Aged 47, is the Financial Controller — China Finance. He is responsible for the overall
financial and management accounting functions of China Finance. He is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a practicing Certified
Public Accountant in Hong Kong. Prior to joining the Group in August 2010, he had over
10 years of experience in a number of listed companies, multinational companies and an
international accounting firm in Hong Kong.

Liu Yui Cheong, Oscar

Aged 41, Associate Director — Marketing and Products, China Retail. He is responsible
for marketing and product planning for the Group’s China Retail business. Prior to joining
the Group in August 2011, he had over 18 years of experience in consumer marketing.
He has held management positions in marketing at different large corporations, including
The Hong Kong Tourism Board, PCC Skyhorse Limited (PCCW) and Hong Kong
Telecom CSL. He holds a Bachelor’'s degree in Business Administration from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Fong Siu Yi, Pamela

Aged 46, Associate Director — Human Resources. She is responsible for the full
spectrum of human resource functions of the Group’s operation in China, acting as a
strategic partner with senior management team to drive people strategies that achieve
organizational objectives and support continued business growth. Prior to joining the
Group in November 2011, she has assumed senior management roles in multinational
groups in industrial, manufacturing and retail industries. She graduated from York
University in Canada with a Bachelor's degree in Economics.

Wong Kai Tung, Dominic

Aged 39, Associate Director — Sales and Operations (China Retail). He is responsible for
sales and operations for the Group’s China Retail business. Prior to joining the Group in
February 2012, he had over 15 years of experience in retail sales and business
development in the mainland China. He has worked in A.S. Watson Group and G2000
(Apparel) Limited, taken up management positions. He holds a Bachelor degree in
Mechanical Engineering from The University of Hong Kong.
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The directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 29 February 2012.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities and other particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note
17 to the financial statements.

The analysis of the geographical locations of the operations of the Company
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) during the financial year is set out in note 15
to the financial statements.

Results and Dividends

The profit of the Group for the year ended 29 February 2012 and the states of
the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 88 to 183.

A final dividend of 12.5 HK cents per ordinary share, amounting to a total final
dividend of approximately HK$26,292,000 (2011: HK$25,240,000) for the year
ended 29 February 2012 is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company. This, together with the interim dividend of 2.7 HK
cents per ordinary share paid on Tuesday, 10 January 2012, will amount to a
total dividend of 15.2 HK cents per ordinary share for the year (2011: 14.7 HK
cents per ordinary share). Subject to the shareholders’ approval at the
forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on Monday, 23 July 2012 (the
“2012 AGM”), the proposed final dividend will be paid on Monday, 6 August
2012 to shareholders whose names appear on the Register of Members of the
Company on Tuesday, 31 July 2012.
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Closure of Register of Members

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 19
July 2012 to Monday, 23 July 2012 (both days inclusive), during which period
no transfer of shares will be registered, for the purpose of ascertaining
shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at the 2012 AGM. In order to be
entitled to attend and vote at the 2012 AGM, all completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s Branch Share Registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited of 26/F.,
Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m.
(Hong Kong Time) on Wednesday, 18 July 2012.

Upon the approval by shareholders at the 2012 AGM, the proposed final
dividend shall be distributed to shareholders whose names appear on the
Register of Members of the Company on Tuesday, 31 July 2012 and the
Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Friday, 27 July 2012
to Tuesday, 31 July 2012 (both days inclusive), during which period no transfer
of shares will be registered, for the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’
entitlement to the proposed final dividend. In order to be qualified for the
proposed final dividend, all completed transfer forms accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Branch Share
Registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited of 26/F., Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong Time) on
Thursday, 26 July 2012.
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Share Capital and Pre-emptive Rights
Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in note 27 to the financial statements.

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-Laws
or the laws in Bermuda.

Charitable Donations
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
HK$601,000 (2011: HK$7,000).

Property, Plant and Equipment
Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group and of
the Company during the year are set out in note 16 to the financial statements.

Reserves

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and
note 28 to the financial statements respectively.

Major Customers and Suppliers

For the year ended 29 February 2012, the five largest customers in aggregate
accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s turnover. The five largest suppliers
in aggregate and the largest supplier of the Group accounted for approximately
69% and 29% respectively by value of the Group’s total purchases.

As set out in note 33(a) to the financial statements, Rosy Blue Hong Kong
Limited, one of the Group’s five largest suppliers, is a subsidiary of Prime
Investments S.A., which is a preference shareholder of Partner Logistics
Limited (the Company’s controlling shareholder).
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Except for the above, at no time during the year have the directors, their
associates or any shareholder of the Company (which, to the knowledge of the
directors, owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
interest (as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing
Rules”)) in these major customers and suppliers.

Directors
The directors during the financial year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Yau On Yee, Annie (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Erwin Steve Huang (Deputy Chairman)

Lai Tsz Mo, Lawrence

Cheung Tse Kin, Michael (resigned on 4 June 2011)
Chow Kwok Ying, Rachel (resigned on 1 May 2011)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Chui Chi Yun, Robert

Heng Ching Kuen, Franklin

Chan Yue Kwong, Michael

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Bye-Laws and to comply
with the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report as
set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie and Mr.
Heng Ching Kuen, Franklin will retire as directors at the 2012 AGM. Ms. Yau
On Yee, Annie, being eligible, will offer herself for re-election as an Executive
Director of the Company for a term of three years and Mr. Heng Ching Kuen,
Franklin, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company for a term of three years. All other
directors continue in office for the ensuing year.

Each of the three Independent Non-executive Directors has provided a written
confirmation in respect of the factors set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
concerning his independence to the Company. The Board considers each of
the three Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.

Directors’ Service Contracts

No director proposed for re-election at the 2012 AGM has a service contract
with the Group which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of
the Company

As at 29 February 2012, the interests and short positions of the directors and
chief executive and/or their respective associates of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)), which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required to
be entered in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, or which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies (“Model Code”), were as follows:

Interests and short positions in issued shares of the Company
RAEARXBANEBITRO ZEERKXE

EERBBTHASREATZRE -
RERARERSNERSR LA

N2012F2A29H * RRRAEFRERTHAE
&/ BEESEZANBEATHEEBREFZSFR
HEBEMEXVEET RSN MMEARR T LH R
Fr(BIERE A LGP ARG Em IR ERED
B RAR)NAA R AR E AR (R
BERAEKEGHEXVIBZEE) KRS - HERD
REEENES AR - BRI 55 352
EERRBEARREFEE 2 ECM  BRELTA
RIEBETEAFAR SHHZEST A ([ZLEE) ) H
GARNB RBR O AD R REMABEQF (E
BHEMAEKROIEXVIBZEE) KD - AEIRH
MEREFNERABIT

Ordinary shares of HK$0.25 each
BREEEY0.25 THEER

Approximate

Derivative percentage of

Personal Family Corporate interest Short Other total issued

Name of Director interest interest interest | (share options) interest interest share capital

fTET AR EEBTRA

EEpE BA%R RikER NE)ER (B8R HE) KB Hitls | ARBNES L

Yau On Yee, Annie 100,000 152,960,914 - - - - 72.77%
juifae (Note [ff7F)

Erwin Steve Huang 100,000 - - - - - 0.05%

Lai Tsz Mo, Lawrence 200,000 - - - - - 0.10%

R
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Note:

These ordinary shares are held by Partner Logistics Limited, a company which is owned and controlled by
Blink Technology Limited. Blink Technology Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Tse Tat Fung,
Tommy, the spouse of Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie, an Executive Director of the Company. By virtue of the SFO,
Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie is deemed to be interested in all the shares held by Partner Logistics Limited.

Other than as disclosed above and certain nominee shares in subsidiaries held
by directors in trust for the Company or its subsidiaries, as at 29 February
2012, none of the Company’s directors, chief executive and their respective
associates, had any other interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which required notification to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which any such director or chief
executive is taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the
SFO); or which were required pursuant to section 352 of the SFO to be entered
into the register maintained by the Company; or which were required, pursuant
to the Model Code contained in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the
Company or the Stock Exchange.

A -
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests
and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares of
the Company

As at 29 February 2012, the interests, all being long positions, of any
substantial shareholders or other persons (not being directors or chief
executive of the Company) in the shares and/or underlying shares of the
Company which have been disclosed to the Company pursuant to the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and have been recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of
the SFO were as follows:

FTERRREMATREQTRMD KE
ARG EENEREXE

H2012F2 429 H - A EZREHEMALT(IL
FARBNEERZESTHAL) ERARQ ARG
R/ SHBROTPEECREZFRBEKGSE
XVEBE 2 R 3D EPMRE MA R BHELHE - KB
RIEFEH K HA S 1615] 55 336 (£ B0 AR A RMEFHY
ErftnmiEz OATA) T ¢

Ordinary shares of HK$0.25 each

BREEE%0.25 THEBER

Approximate

percentage of

Number of total issued

Name Capacity ordinary shares share capital

HEBITRA

=g 545 LERROEE BEBNBEDL

Partner Logistics Limited (Note fff7# 1) Beneficial owner 152,960,914 72.72%
BREEA

Blink Technology Limited (Note /{7 1) Interest in controlled corporation 152,960,914 72.72%
g NGl

Tse Tat Fung, Tommy (Note f77# 1) Interest in controlled corporation 152,960,914 72.72%
HE S AR S

Prime Investments S.A. (Note ff1:#2) Interest in controlled corporation 152,960,914 72.72%
SR A R

Rosy Blue Investments S.a.r.l. (Note fffi£2) Interest in controlled corporation 152,960,914 72.72%
IR R AR

Osiya Trust Co. Pte. Limited (Note /{71 2) Interest in controlled corporation 152,960,914 72.79%
B3 VNGIE £

Viraj Russell Mehta (Note f/7#2) Interest in controlled corporation 152,960,914 72.72%
RIEHI R AR
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Notes:

1. These ordinary shares are held by Partner Logistics Limited, a company which is owned and
controlled by Blink Technology Limited. Blink Technology Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by
Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy, the spouse of Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie, an Executive Director of the
Company. By virtue of the SFO, Blink Technology Limited, Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie (her deemed
interest is disclosed under the section “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions
in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company”) and Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy are
deemed to be interested in all the shares held by Partner Logistics Limited.

2. These ordinary shares are held by Partner Logistics Limited, a company which is owned and
controlled by Blink Technology Limited. Prime Investments S.A. is the preference shareholder of
Partner Logistics Limited. Prime Investments S.A. is owned as to 99.83% by Rosy Blue Investments
S.a.r.l, which in turn is wholly owned by Osiya Trust Co. Pte. Limited, which in turn is wholly and
beneficially owned by Mr. Viraj Russell Mehta. By virtue of the SFO, each of Prime Investments S.A.,
Rosy Blue Investments S.a.r.l., Osiya Trust Co. Pte. Limited and Mr. Viraj Russell Mehta, is deemed to
be interested in all the shares held by Partner Logistics Limited.

Other than as disclosed above, as at 29 February 2012, the Company had not
been notified of any persons who had interests or short positions in the shares
and/or underlying shares of the Company, which were required to be recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of
the SFO.

Changes of Directors’ Information pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1)
of the Listing Rules

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes of information on
directors of the Company are as follows:

Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert has resigned as an independent non-executive
director of 21 Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1003) with effect from 1
September 2011.

ez
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Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael has relinquished his role as the chief executive
officer and remained as chairman and non-executive director of Café de Coral
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 341) with effect from 1 April 2012.

Changes in directors’ emoluments during the financial year are set out in note
10 to the financial statements.

Share Option Scheme

The Company’s share option scheme was adopted by shareholders of the
Company on 26 November 2003 (“2003 Share Option Scheme”). The purpose
of the 2003 Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives or rewards to
participants thereunder for their contribution to the Group and/or to enable the
Group to recruit and retain high-calibre employees and attract human
resources that are valuable to the Group and any entity in which the Group
holds any equity interest (“Invested Entity”).

Under the 2003 Share Option Scheme, the directors of the Company are
authorised, at their discretion, at any time following the date of the adoption of
the 2003 Share Option Scheme but before the tenth anniversary of that date,
to offer options to any person belonging to any of the following classes of
participants to subscribe for shares of the Company:

— any employee (whether full time or part time employee, including any
executive directors but not any non-executive director) of the Company,

any of its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

— any non-executive director (including independent non-executive
directors) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

— any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity;
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— any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity;

— any person or entity that provides research, development or
technological support or other services to the Group or any Invested
Entity; and

— any shareholder or any member of the Group or any Invested Entity or
any holder of any securities issued by any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity.

The exercise price of options is the highest of the nominal value of the shares,
the closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange on the date of offer of
the grant and the average closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of offer of the grant.
An offer of an option shall be deemed to have been accepted within 28 days
from the date of offer upon acceptance of the option duly signed by the grantee
together with a remittance of HK$1. The maximum number of securities
available for issue under the 2003 Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company. The maximum entitlement of each
grantee in any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the ordinary shares in issue
of the Company. The option period will not be more than ten years from the
date of grant of the option and the Company’s board of directors may at its
discretion determine the minimum period for which the option has to be held or
other restriction before the exercise of the subscription right attaching thereon.

As at 29 February 2012, there was no outstanding share option under the
2003 Share Option Scheme. No share options were granted, exercised,
cancelled or lapsed during the year.

Directors’ Interest in Contracts

Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy, the spouse of Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie, an
Executive Director of the Company, and the son of Mr. Tse Sui Luen, was
employed by Rosy Blue Hong Kong Limited from March to August 2011.
Effective from 1 September 2011, Mr. Tse was employed by the Group as the
Chief Merchandising Officer.
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Effective from 1 September 2011, Mr. Tse Sui Luen, the father-in-law of Ms.
Yau On Yee, Annie, an Executive Director of the Company, and the father of
Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy, was employed by the Group as the Founder.

Apart from the foregoing, no contracts of significance to which the Company,
its holding company or subsidiaries was a party, and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year and up to the date of this
Report.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.

Connected Transactions

On 29 February 2012, the Group acquired 19.54% equity interests in two
80.46% owned subsidiaries (Tse Sui Luen Investment (China) Limited and
Infinite Assets Corp.) from the non-controlling shareholder, namely, Best
Accurate International Limited at total cash consideration of HK$150,000,000.

Details of the transaction have been disclosed in the Company’s
announcements dated 30 January 2012 and 29 February 2012 and the circular
dated 20 February 2012 in accordance with the Listing Rules.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Listed
Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company during the year ended
29 February 2012.

Convertible Securities, Options or Similar Rights

Other than the share options under the 2003 Share Option Scheme as
disclosed above, the Company had no other outstanding convertible securities,
options or similar rights as at 29 February 2012.
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Bank Loans and Other Borrowings
Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at 29 February
2012 are set out in notes 23 to 24 to the financial statements.

Five-Year Financial Summary
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on pages 184 to 185 of the annual report.

Properties
Particulars of the major properties of the Group are shown on pages 186 to
187 of the annual report.

Retirement Schemes

The Group participates in the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement
scheme administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required to make contributions to the
scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$20,000.

The Group also participates in defined contribution retirement benefits
schemes for all qualifying employees in the People’s Republic of China and
Malaysia. The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the
Group in funds under the control of independent trustees.

The Group’s total contributions to these schemes charged to the profit or loss
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income during the year ended
29 February 2012 amounted to HK$7,288,000 representing contributions
payable by the Group to the schemes at the appropriate rates set by the local
government of the subsidiaries.

Public Float

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the directors as at the date of this Report, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance. Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by
the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 53 to 85.

Audit, Remuneration and Nomination Committees

Information on the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee are set out in the Corporate Governance Report of the annual
report.

Events after the Reporting Period
Details of which are set out in note 37 to the financial statements.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 29
February 2012 have been audited by RSM Nelson Wheeler. RSM Nelson
Wheeler was appointed as the auditor of the Company on 21 January 2011 to
fill the casual vacancy following the resignation of Moore Stephens. RSM
Nelson Wheeler will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of RSM Nelson Wheeler as
auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the 2012 AGM.

By Order of the Board
Yau On Yee, Annie
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 May 2012
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The Company is committed to the establishment of good governance practices
and procedures. During the year ended 29 February 2012, the Company has
applied the principles and complied with all of the code provisions and some
recommended best practices of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(“CG Code”), which has been renamed as Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report (“Revised CG Code”) with effect from 1 April
2012, as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) except for the deviation of code provision
A.2.1 as expressly set forth under the relevant paragraph of the table below.

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) is pleased to present the following
corporate governance practices of the CG Codes adopted by the Group during
the year ended 29 February 2012:

A. Directors
A1 The Board
Code Principle
The board should assume responsibility for leadership and control of
the company; and be responsible for directing and supervising the
company’s affairs.

RARBNHIERGEEERERLER - REE
2012F2 A0 A LG E - ARE—HERE B
AERGHAERDR (R ESH EMHRAT £
AR DM 14FE A EET A B RATR(ES
JASTEI D) (201244 A1 BiE A2 B8P
MABEERRE) (BETREERTR)) Z R A
KB F 2 SFRIBOCREM D BB & ET R - TR
A2 ZRBEBR SN - B BBE 2 R BE BB R 51 D
TRAEBEE -

BEQMAZRIAEBREZ2012F2 298 1+
FEEBATEEE /R

A.EE
A1EES
FAIE A
EZeREAEERERERT  WAERIE
BREBNTIMNER -

Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
FRMRIRE =ERE adopted by the Group
SF A% 3C TEERMNEEERER
A.1.1 | The Board should hold at least four board Yes Five Board Meetings were held during the year.
meetings a year.
EEgREFARZImRER - & AEEYERAREEZEGH -
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Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
FAMR R E =RRE adopted by the Group
<F AR 32 FEBMRANEEERER
A.1.2 | All directors be given an opportunity to Yes Agenda for regular Board Meetings are sent to all
include matters in the agenda for regular Directors in advance and they are given opportunity to
board meetings. include matters in the agenda for discussion in the
Board Meetings.
PREFEARSIRELAIIIAETEESEH & PREENTHERN T CEEEFTSRRE  TARS
BEEENER - FIAMRSER  AMAREFESE Lalik -
A.1.3 | At least 14 days’ notice be given of a Yes Timetable for regular Board Meetings are scheduled
regular board meeting. well in advance to facilitate and maximize the
attendance and participation of Directors whilst
reasonable notices are given for all other Board
Meetings.
AHEFSTHSREELEI4REH - = EREFEEeCHeINRHEE  UWMEERRSEFH
BERZERE MABEAMEFESRHERTARE
A e
A.1.4 | Directors should have access to advice Yes Directors have access to the advice and services of the
and services of the company secretary. Company Secretary (“Company Secretary”) of the
Company and key officers of the Company Secretarial
Department to ensure that the board procedures, and
all applicable rules and regulations are followed.
BEFEISATIMENER KR - = BEZANSEARTZATWMERARIMEIFINEZA
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Summary of Code Provisions

Compliance

Corporate Governance Practices

FRMRRE =ENE adopted by the Group
SR: 3% FEERANEEERER
A.1.5 | Minutes of board meetings and committee Yes All minutes of Board Meetings and committee meetings
meetings should be kept by company and/or written resolutions are kept by the Company
secretary and open for inspection. Secretary and they are open for inspection upon
reasonable notice by any Director.
NAWERBTFEEFSENETLZEENS = FIEERERZEGEHRLHER AEMAHRALAIM
B WARBMERLEMERN - EREF TETMNEFFLAERAN T AREHEEL
BAEER] -
A.1.6 | Minutes should record sufficient details, Yes Minutes of the Board Meetings and the Committee
concerns raised and dissenting views. Meetings have been recorded in sufficient details in
Draft and final minutes should be sent to respect of the matters considered by the Directors and
all directors for comment and records decisions reached, including any concerns raised by
within a reasonable time. Directors or dissenting views expressed. Draft and final
minutes were sent to all Directors for comments and
records within a reasonable time.
BEACER R MFE - BEMELHN E EEegahEEgRRNE LY BRSO F MR
REIXNHER - VIREREREZEXE EEEMERFEREBNATE  BEESRONEMN
- UHEERAEREAREERLRL RENIRENRYUER - EBLENTREEERBER
B o EENMEATEXRZEES  UHESRESR R -
A.1.7 | Agreed procedure for directors to seek Yes There are procedures to enable the Directors, upon
independent professional advice at reasonable request, to seek independent professional
company’s expense. advice at the Company’s expense.
EEGHEANMTRRF HRESEBEUE & EHFIEFEEFRSBER  BCRBUYEXER A

255 BRBBHAANN -

BERBARRT -
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Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
FAMR R E =RRE adopted by the Group
<F AR 32 FEBMRANEEERER
A.1.8 | If a substantial shareholder/director has a Yes If a substantial shareholder/Director has a conflict of
conflict of interest in a material matter, interest in a material matter, such matter would not be
board meeting should be held. Such dealt with by way of circulation of resolution or by a
director must abstain from voting. Committee but a Board Meeting would be held, during
which such Director must abstain from voting and not
be counted in quorum.
Independent Non-executive Directors who have no
material interest in the transaction would be present at
such Board Meeting.
An independent Board Committee will be set up to deal
with matter when necessary.
EREFERFR EEEEAFEFAMNZ E ERTERRYAEFAEEEGHTERNEETERE
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TR FHEEEREZTS SR LEIE -
ERESVARERR -

ROMZER - BREERATEUEMRERTALER
RHEEZEERE MERZFREHNEEESS
MHZEERE LRERARTHEDEEARA -

ERXSPWEEANDNBYIFNTESTEZLFEHRE

REERFEN BV EEREREABER -




During the year ended 29 February 2012, the full Board held 5
meetings and details of Directors’ attendance are set out below:

Number of meetings
Directors

Executive Directors:

Yau On Yee, Annie (Chairman)

Erwin Steve Huang (Deputy Chairman)

Lai Tsz Mo, Lawrence

Cheung Tse Kin, Michael (resigned on 4 June 2011)
Chow Kwok Ying, Rachel (resigned on 1 May 2011)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Chui Chi Yun, Robert

Heng Ching Kuen, Franklin

Chan Yue Kwong, Michael

Attendance

5/5
5/5
5/5
11
0/0

5/5
5/5
5/5

RBZE2012F2R20HLFE  EFEE
ARTRERBEFEEHE SEFHFT

BN
2RHE
=

BITES:

@& (%)
FHEK(BIERE)

BrR

3R FRE (R 2011466 A 4 HEHE)
JEBIEL (A 201145 41 BEHE)

BYFHITES:
ESE
SR
BRAASE

H IR

5/5
5/5
5/5
1M
0/0

5/5
5/5
5/5

AR o

W FEIR

Summary of Recommended Best Practices Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
ERREEREE =ERE adopted by the Group
EERREER FEBRANEEERER
A.1.9 | Appropriate insurance cover in respect of Yes The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance
legal action against the directors. cover in respect of legal action against its Directors and
it is renewed annually.
HEFFRESEYNEEZTHTEEEN = AAFIEREFA R SEHNERTHLHEERR -
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A.2 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Code Principle

There should be a clear division of responsibilities between the
management of the board and the day-to-day management of the
company’s business at the board level to ensure a balance of power

and authority.

A2 EERITHBEAR
FAIER A
EFTENEERATINAREBEERE
EEEMBBEER Y « HERE D ERE
2 T 1 o

B3 L AKRENEIE -

Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
FAMR R E 2EHE adopted by the Group
SF AR X TEBRANLEEAER
A.2.1 | Separate roles of chairman and chief Deviation The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive
executive officer should be clearly Officer of the Company were not separated and were
established and set out in writing. performed by the same individual, Ms. Yau On Yee,
Annie. The Board of Directors considered that the
current management structure had operated efficiently.
According to the Company’s practice, all major strategic
decisions are taken by the Board, or relevant
committee of the Board, as duly constituted.

TRETRERNBERERD BB Bk FRETHERNACRERS HHISLELLTE

SN AEESEH - E-EEZFRREFEEEBREBEBBULEE - EXRAF
ZEBHREMBFEARVHAEFEREREARCES
SHEBEZEEED -

A.2.2 | Chairman should ensure that all directors Yes The Chairman accepts the responsibility to ensure that
are properly briefed on issues arising at major issues of the Company are addressed by the
board meetings. Board, and that these issues are presented in a

manner which facilitates thorough discussion and

resolution and all directors are properly briefed on

issues arising at the Board Meetings.
ITRERRAZEEFTHENTNESSE = FEAEREML  UBRARR T EETHEREETIR

2 BRESERREETENRMRERZTARESR
MEESSHRLMBESTEENTEAMNER -




AT

Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
FRMRRE =ENE adopted by the Group
SR: 3% FEERANEEERER
A.2.3 | Chairman should ensure directors to Yes The Chairman, assisted by other senior executives,
receive adequate information in a timely ensures that Directors could receive adequate
manner. information, which must be complete, reliable and in a
timely manner.
ITRERREEFWIZTHEM  MEME = FREEMSRITRA B R THARES KFREIFTD
FIRB BT RIS © W& - MARMEMIIMYETEA 5% -
Summary of Recommended Best Practices Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
EEREERAME =RHEE adopted by the Group
BEBREER AEERMNEEERER
A.2.4 | The Chairman should be responsible for Yes The Chairman, assisted by the Company Secretary,
drawing up and approving the agenda for draws up and approves the agenda for each Board
each board meeting. Meeting.
IREEEETUMESAEETEEERN iz ITREAFNEG TEETHEBREESERNE

e

A.3 Board composition
Code Principle

The board should have a balance of skills and experience appropriate
for the requirements of the business of the company and shall include
a balanced composition of executive and non-executive directors so

that independent judgement can effectively be exercised.

ASEEEHMK
FAIE A
EEQRRBAREGMEABEEMER
BENER  EEQRHITEZHIERTE
B2 HEEEZRIFHEE - LIEEB M
VEH B #IET -

TEEZE7 °

Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
FRMRRE =ERE adopted by the Group
SF AR FEERANEEERER
A.3.1 | Identify independent non-executive Yes The Independent Non-executive Directors of the
directors in all corporate communications. Company are expressly identified in all corporate
communications that disclose the names of the
Directors of the Company.
FRBERRBT - AN AEIIIEH i RAFIMARBEESFHEZNRRIBAT - HAEHAE

VIFRTEEZEHD °
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Summary of Recommended Best Practices Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
ERBREERHE =RRE adopted by the Group
BEREER FEBMRANEEERER
A.3.2 | Independent non-executive directors Yes The Board currently comprises a total of six Directors,
representing at least one-third of the with three Executive Directors and three Independent
board. Non-executive Directors. Half of the Board is
Independent Non-executive Directors and more than
one of them have appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise as required by the Listing
Rules.

BUFNTEFLHEFEREAREL= P EEGRMAEEREAN  BEZERTEER=EE

Do VHERITER - BEFFVBNERBIUNTES -
BB —EBBEUIFATETARLETRARECEERE
BREGISERM TR TN -

A.3.3 | Maintain on its website an updated list of Yes The Company maintains on its website the updated
directors identifying their role and function profile of its Directors and senior management and
and whether they are independent non- identifies their role and function. The updated profile
executive directors includes the Independent Non-executive Directors of

the Company.
EHAN FRFRREEFTNESEKRE b ARBHUERTFRREERTNESREREEAED
ZE - WHREACMEBEE  LARERA T WHIBAE AEFBEE - RMOENBEARF 2B
ERBIUIENITES - STGEHITEE o




A4 Appointments, Re-election and removal

Code Principle

There should be a formal, considered and transparent procedure for
the appointment of new directors and plans in place of orderly
succession for appointments to the board. All directors should be

A4 ZE EENE

SFRIR A

EXgRYEER  KHEEZELAEHR
EZHEELEER LEREBKFZ
EER{IAE - -FBEFHEESRETH

subject to re-election at regular intervals.

EETTEIE -

Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
TR E 2ERE adopted by the Group
<F RIS TEBRANCEERER

A.4.1 | Non-executive directors should be Yes All Non-executive Directors of the Company were
appointed for a specific term, subject to appointed for a specific term, subject to rotation and re-
re-election. election pursuant to the Bye-Laws of the Company.
FMITEENEERBIRTER WAk & RATMAFPTEENEZEAGIETEY - WEARE
XEE - RRAF 2 AREAAER HE R EFER -

A.4.2 | All directors appointed to fill casual Yes Pursuant to Bye-law 86(2) of the Company, all
vacancies should be subject to election at Directors appointed to fill casual vacancy would be
the first general meeting after their subject to re-election at the next following general
appointment. meeting.

All directors are subject to retirement by Yes Pursuant to Bye-law 87(2) of the Company, every

rotation at least once every three years. Director shall retire by rotation at least once every three
years.

FEREHEEERMEZENEFEL & REBARRNGF 2 AEIMBIE86(2) & - FiE RiERERZE

BEXLZERONERBRERG LEXER - RMEZENESEETRARRERNG HEXEE -

BEEFRRERESR SPB=F—-R- E BBARR ZRRIMAIESTR) K BEESERAS
B BIG=FR-

All of the Directors, including the Independent Non-executive Directors
of the Company are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
the general meeting in accordance with the Company’s Bye-Laws. At
the annual general meeting of the Company held on 25 August 2011,
Mr. Erwin Steve Huang retired by rotation as a director of the Company
and was re-elected as Executive Director of the Company for a term of
three years, Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert retired by rotation as a director
of the Company and was re-elected as Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company for a term of three years.

FIEES  BEBUIIFNTESHIRRBAE
AR Z AR R AR ESRIE
EET - 201148 A25 HEITZ A A A
BREBEFAE L ARRESEEKEE
MESR TESRANDNRMITES
TH=F  ARRESTETCAERES
B WHEEERARNRRBIYIFNTES
TE=%F -
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EE

The Board has received from each of the three Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence

$E|:| (nﬁ

EXECRE-LBUFRTEERAR
RETRAUEIABEIELZFER LI D

pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Board considers HRE-EFERA — BB UIENTE

each of the three Independent Non-executive Directors to be EHEBTME -

independent.

Summary of Recommended Best Practices Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
EEBREEAME =ERE adopted by the Group
EZRREER AEERANEEERER

A.4.3 | Further appointment of independent non- Yes Appointment of Independent Non-executive Director
executive director who has served more served more than nine years was subject to a separate
than nine years should be subject to a resolution approved by the shareholders during the
separate resolution to be approved by annual general meeting of the Company. The Board
shareholders. The board should set out to has listed out in the circular to shareholders the
shareholders the reasons they believe the reasons they believed such Independent Non-executive
individual continues to be independent Director continued to be independent and the reasons
and the reason for the re-election. for the re-election.
REBZAZACEETBRNFNE I = RRABRBRRBFRG B ORBEREABRRES
WiITESE JEL‘M%ER%?KHZEWHHQ%% BRAZECEEBRBNFNBEIENTEST -EFERN
FRA - EREGEMCRIIBM AR EZ BR8N AR B BR b PR R % BB FE T E D
ZEENBBELALOERS - URMME BEATHIRE  URMAENEEZEEFNRE -
METZAREENRA -

A.4.8 | The board should set out in the circular to Yes The Board has listed out in the circular to shareholders
shareholders the reasons they believe the the reasons they believed such Independent Non-
independent non-executive director executive Directors should be elected and the reasons
should be elected at the general meeting they considered such Independent Non-executive
and the reasons they consider the Directors were independent.
individual to be independent.

EE RS ES N RSN SRS iz BRI R AR ARSI BB FI3R A2 B B L IEH
ZEBUIFRTESHNIRR RS LEE TEFREENER  URMMRAZEELIENTE

B2 - ARMIPIRAZ A ALTEBELA
THREA -

EEEIALTNRA -




A5 Responsibilities of Directors
Code Principle

Every director is required to keep abreast of his responsibility as a
director of a company and of the conduct, business activities and

development of that company.

A5 EEE1

#E H

BREEERBEERARNESEZRE
AR AR LT EHEHNER

ey =] ‘:J’s/

HMARWMERM  HETAIRTERES
FIRET AR ERER -

Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
TR E =RERE adopted by the Group
<F AR FEBRANCEERER
A.5.1 | Every newly appointed director should Yes A tailored induction would be provided to familiarize the
receive a comprehensive, formal and newly appointed Director with the Company’s business
tailored induction, and subsequent briefing operations and financial positions, his responsibilities
and professional development as under statute and common law, the Listing Rules,
necessary. applicable legal and other regulatory requirements.
Subsequent briefing and professional development
would be provided to the newly appointed Director as
and when necessary.
BEMEZENEFRESEZH  EXER = MEENEFHERHAEMRAOMER - UAER

RAEBEERPBAN - URBRBOER N EBE
LR ERARERREREMEERTE THRE

HWERE  HENMERHZENEZRUMTEZEN
REFRER -
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Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
FAMR R E =RRE adopted by the Group
PRI X TEERMNEEERER
A.5.2 | Functions of non-executive directors Yes The Independent Non-executive Directors brought

should include those as set out in the independent judgments during their participation of

Code Provision A.5.2 of the CG Code. Board Meetings and gave advice on strategy and future
plans of the Group.
The Independent Non-executive Directors reviewed the
financial statements and operational performance of
the Group on a regular basis.
The Independent Non-executive Directors also served
on audit, remuneration and other governance
committees of the Board.

ERITESNBEERECEEATRIZ & BN TEFEERTS SR MR RENRREBLT

SPRIMESC SR AB.2 I FTE B AE - MEREAEIRMUBEIRRER -
B IFMTEEFHENASENTBEN R EEXRR -
BYFNTEFTRBLEIEREES  FTHEESRE
thEBEEGES -

A.5.3 | Directors should give sufficient time and Yes Satisfactory attendance at the Board Meetings and

attention to the company’s affairs. other Committee Meetings was shown in various
meeting attendance.
The Directors have contributed sufficient time and
attention to the affairs of the Group.

EEEN R R KB ARIR N E 6 & EEFGRAMEZEEEER I HREESAME F WER
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Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
FRMRRE =ENE adopted by the Group
PRI FEERANEEERER

A5.4 | Directors must comply with their Yes The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out
obligations under the Model Code as set in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions.
and the board should establish written
guidelines on no less exacting terms than Specific enquiry has been made with all Directors and
the Model Code for relevant employees in the Directors have confirmed compliance with the
respect of their dealings in company’s required standard set out in the Model Code during the
shares. year ended 29 February 2012.
BEEEST LW AR 8+ 2Ry = RRABEHREFTETHESLRS - RN ETRAM R+
) MEEFETEAEGHEEEE QA ZRESF AINERA R R RSP AR o
Pt FITEEIES] - HE3l B EZ A HOR
HETRDERE © KAzREREHSEEHN  HZE2012F2H29A |k

FE  2REFHERCETRETRIMEE 2IRE -
Summary of Recommended Best Practices Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
EERREEREE 2BRE adopted by the Group
BEEBEER AEERMANEEERER

A.5.7 | Non-executive directors should give the Yes The Independent Non-executive Directors
board and any committees on which they demonstrated their skills, expertise and qualifications
serve the benefit of their skills, expertise by giving professional advices during the regular Board
and varied background and qualifications Meetings and the Committee Meetings. All Independent
through regular attendance and active Non-executive Directors have attended the 2011
participation. They should also attend Annual General Meeting (2011 AGM”) and answered
general meetings and develop a balanced questions from the shareholders.
understanding of the views of
shareholders.
HFPTEFRTHEFEFS AR L v BURTEFTNER EETTRRZREESERLE

TZEENENZEeeRT B2 RS
B EEKEE EXRABRTRANERR
BIREHLER - JFTEF A B FERR
RE - HRRARRNBERARENTHE

BIREEES S EAERE EENBNER - 25058
VIERITEEHEHE 2011 FREBEFAS ([20114F
BEREFAE ) REZREIRR -
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A.6 Supply of and access to information
Code Principle

Directors should be provided in a timely manner with appropriate
information so as to enable them to make an informed decision and to

discharge their duties and responsibilities.

A6 ERRMRMEM
FRIRAY
EERERERIEEER RESERN
EZREEENZIERTIELIRE - Xak
BITEBRBEREME -

WHNEFR - BREREREATEBRAR
REIEANBRBILRE -

Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
FAMR R E =EERE adopted by the Group
SF AR AEERANEEERER
A.6.1 | Agenda and board papers should be sent Yes Agenda and board papers are despatched to all
to directors at least 3 days before the Directors or Committee Members not less than 3 days
intended date of board meeting or or such other agreed period before the date of meeting.
committee meeting.
FRELEFEXHEREHEZTEEEN Z EEgeaE XN ESFERZESSEAHT
ZEegRARRL =RAIBELTES - DR=ZRIEHTE 2 RERBELTRESEFHEZEFTK
g o
A.6.2 | Management should supply the board and Yes The Chief Financial Officer and/or Company Secretary
its committee with adequate information in attended all regular Board Meetings and Board
a timely manner. Each director should Committee Meetings to advise on accounting and
have separate and independent access to financial, corporate governance and statutory
the company’s senior management. compliance matters. Senior management have formal
or informal contact with the Board Members as and
when necessary.
ERERMNESENEZETEFIRMRE = AARHBEER HARNELRMEEEERES

ZEeZEHEE  UREREE  bEERANEST
EERPIEERHRER -BAFER  SAEEERE=R
SR EAKRIFIE A o




Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
FRMRRE =ENE adopted by the Group
SF AR 3C FEERANEEERER

A.6.3 | Directors are entitled to have access to Yes Board papers and minutes are made available for
board papers and related materials. inspection by the Directors and Board Committee
Members. The Company responded as promptly as

possible to any queries raised by the Directors.
EEARCHEFE X RIBMER - P BREgXMresngr I HEFTREFLZEREED

B - EEREEMME  ARRFREHDE -

B. Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management
B.1 The Level and Make-up of Remuneration and Disclosure
Code Principle

A formal and transparent procedure should be established for setting
policy on executive directors’ remuneration and for fixing the
remuneration packages for all directors. No director should be involved

in deciding his own remuneration.

B. EEREREEABNFHH
B.1 HiEA R BB M0k T RALR
FAIRAY
ERABERTABAEORFT - AHETAH
BATEEMENBEREEMAERD

B8 - EETR2EATEATNOME -

FRAERER/RITHER WRRER
2 TARBEXER -

Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
FRMRRE =ERE adopted by the Group
SF AR 3C FEERANEEERER
B.1.1 | Company should establish a remuneration Yes The Remuneration Committee was established on 27
committee, majority of whom should be March 2002. It comprises four members, with one
independent non-executive directors. Executive Director and three Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company.
NRIERIFMNEE S REHKERR = HMEBEEMN2002F3 A27BK - HNEZE AN
BWUIFPITES - BREEK  BEARFT—ERITESR =B IEH
TEE -
B.1.2 | Remuneration committee should consult Yes Please refer to the section below.
the Chairman and/or Chief Executive
Officer about proposed remuneration of
other executive directors and have access
to professional advice where necessary.
FMZEgREHMHITERTNFINES i FELH T -
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Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
FAMR R E =RRE adopted by the Group
<F AR 32 FEBMRANEEERER

B.1.3 | Terms of reference of remuneration Yes The role and authority of the Remuneration Committee,
committee should include the duties as including those set out in Code provision B.1.3 of the
set out in the Code provision B.1.3 of the CG Code, are clearly set out in its terms of reference
Code. and in compliance with the provisions set out in the CG

Code.
FHZEenBEHERBELEERT & FMZEezACNES  BECEERTAH 2R
A8 ~FANEX BASIERERRE - 1SS BABIRPT#E A - B S0 5 FLAR R 80 B ) R fF
BB RTRIPPIEL 2 53

B.1.4 | Remuneration committee should make Yes The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
available its terms of reference, explaining are available on the Company’s website.
its role and the authority delegated to it by
the board.

FMEERRAHEABESE  MEAS & HNEE g BESEHN AL M -
EREEGERNET -

B.1.5 | The remuneration committee should be Yes The Remuneration Committee is provided with
provided with sufficient resources to sufficient resources, including the advice of
discharge its duties. professional firms, to discharge its duties, if necessary.
FEE g REREFTRERABITER = YHEZEESRREHARER BEMMEER)ENREHE
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The principal responsibility of the Remuneration Committee is to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure
in relation to the remuneration of Directors and senior management by
reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board from
time to time.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the year ended 29
February 2012 and the individual members’ attendance records are set
out below. In addition, during the year, the Remuneration Committee
also received a number of reports and proposals from executive
management in relation to remuneration issues of the Company for
their review and/or approval as required.

Number of meetings 1
Members Attendance
Heng Ching Kuen, Franklin (Chairman) 11
Chui Chi Yun, Robert 11
Chan Yue Kwong, Michael 11
Yau On Yee, Annie 11

The Remuneration Committee has considered and consulted with the
Chairman of the Board the following proposals:

(a) reviewed the monthly remuneration of senior executives and
executive directors;

(b) reviewed and approved the annual performance bonus schemes
and the granting of discretionary bonus to both senior executives
and other employees of the Company.

FHEZBEemIZRARAESSRME
MEELSAEEABHFMOBRLER
MER WUEFETEMENTCERR
B REHE -

HMEEENEE201262 8291 |FFE
WERIT— K AR B LB T -
AN HFHESERFRMKEIEEAE
IR EBHFNEECRERES WX
BENHEE T AR R SHHE

2EEE 1
RE HEIRE
FIERE(ER) 11
BT 11
PR A 11
R & 11

FHNEEQCZEBERAEFEIEAEAT

SR

(@) BABRITHRABRATEZZEAH
B

(b) ARFI L HER R B FEIEALRTEI KA

BRITRABR REMESERBBIL
e
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C. Accountability and Audit
C.1 Financial Reporting
Code Principle

70

The board should present a balanced, clear and comprehensive

assessment of the company’s performance, position and prospects.

C. BEREH
C1HMBER
FRIRAY
EXEMYRANOEER  ERRARAIE
BT EWREETR2E -

F S BRI A RIBHRTE

Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
FAMR R E =EERE adopted by the Group
PRI 32 TEBMRANEEELAER
C.1.1 | Management should provide explanation Yes The management provided explanation and information
and information to enable the board to to the Board in order to enable the Board to make an
make an informed assessment of the informed assessment of the financial and other
financial situations. information submitted to the Board for approval.
EREEMEEFSIREMRERER 8 =z ERENEFSRHMEEREL  EEFERRERTE

FEHREZWHREMEMELARENFE -




Summary of Code Provisions

SFRIR LR

Compliance
2EHE
PRI

Corporate Governance Practices
adopted by the Group
TEERMNEEERER

c1.2

Directors should acknowledge their
responsibility for preparing the accounts,
on a going concern basis and there
should be a statement by the auditors
about their reporting responsibilities in
the auditors’ report on the financial
statements.

The Corporate Governance Report should
contain sufficient information to enable
investors to understand the severity and
significance of the matters at hand.

EERARNSEFEEERUKRENE
T MEBEIRERE BB REEH
AR R mE R EMFLER

CEEAREEHBARHEN  BREE
PAEREMNBEEEREE -

Yes

pali

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing the financial statements of the Group and
presenting a balanced, clear and comprehensive
assessment of the Group’s performance.

In preparing the financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 29 February 2012, the Directors have
selected the appropriate accounting policies and
applied them consistently; approved the adoption of all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
which are issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants; made judgements and estimates
that are prudent and reasonable; and prepared the
financial statements on the going concern basis.

The relevant responsibility statement from the external
auditor made pursuant to the CG Code is set out in the
Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 86 to 87.

The Corporate Governance Report sets out the
practices adopted by the Group which enables the
investors to understand the Company’s commitment to
the establishment of good governance practices and
procedures.

EEARBREFECREAEEMBHRER - LALREE
REEHFT - AW K22 7 -

HBIAREBEE2012F2 A29H I FE 2 P RERE
EX0RERBRERAGECSECK  SUERAEER
SEHMASEM ARSI REEN  fFHE
BEEZHE RGT  URIEHECEEERR ISR
2% °

XERTAMELZERAETRAS

HNEAZ SRR AR B 1 =
EE86E87H

B BB 3R

CEEAREINAREEMRANER - ARIREET
BARRBAHERFEEEGERLIER
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Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
FAMR R E =RRE adopted by the Group
<FRIESC FEBMRANEEERER
C.1.3 | Board should present a balanced, clear Yes The section of Management’s Discussion and Analysis

and understandable assessment in annual of annual and interim reports explained the factors
and interim reports, other price-sensitive affecting business performance and outlook of the
announcements and other financial Group. Financial statements have been presented in
disclosures under the Listing Rules and accordance with the disclosure requirements of Listing
reports to regulators required to be Rules, Financial Reporting Standards and the Hong
disclosed pursuant to statutory Kong Companies Ordinance.
requirements.
EEEEMEL T E - B AR AR AT P FEHRRTFHRBREPERER AR EATABELERE
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C.2 Internal Controls
Code Principle
The board should ensure that the company maintains sound and
effective internal controls to safeguard the shareholders’ investment
and the company’s assets.

C2 REpesse
FAIR A

EESMBRAANNERFREREE
MEAM MR R R AR & -

Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
TR E =RERE adopted by the Group
<F AR FEBRANCEERER

C.2.1 | Directors should at least annually conduct Yes Please refer to the section below.
a review of the effectiveness of the
system of internal control of the group and
state so in the Corporate Governance
Report.
EEREVBERN —REERNIBEEIE & ECl
EHIRR - WEREE RSP ERGEH
1T o

C.2.2 | Board should annually review to consider Yes The Board has considered the adequacy of resources,
the adequacy of resources, qualifications qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
and experience of staff of the company’s accounting and financial reporting function, the
accounting and financial reporting continuing professional education undertaken by the
function, and the training programmes relevant staff.
and budget.
EESEFETRNE  BEIZEAA = EFESCERAQAASH MM BERBETENE

ST LY BERBRETENER BT RBIBREREHREGRY UREBHEIEZRHE

BRREREDRH URBIMERH HERIREZEH -
BIRRERBMBEENEERE

The Board, through the Audit Committee, is responsible for ensuring
that adequate internal controls are in place to safeguard the Company’s
assets and manage risks. The executive management has been
delegated the responsibility of identifying and evaluating the risks faced
by the Group and of designing, operating and monitoring an effective
control system.

EXRARENZESAERAMEE
BN ET  WREARBMERE R
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The internal control system is designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance on the effectiveness and efficiency of operations
in achieving the established corporate objectives, safeguarding the
Group’s assets, providing reliable financial reporting and complying
with the applicable laws and regulations. Systems and procedures are
also established to identify, measure, manage and control, rather than
eliminate, different risks arising from different business and functional
activities.

The Group’s Internal Audit Department plays an important role in the
internal control function. It provides objective assurance to the Board
that a sound internal control system is maintained and operated in
compliance with the established processes and standards by
performing periodic audits over all major operations of the Group,
typically over a three-year cycle. An annual audit plan (comprising of
annual audit focus and audit frequencies) is prepared based on the
department’s independent risk assessment. Such work plan is
discussed and agreed with the Audit Committee at the beginning of
each financial year. Major internal audit findings will be submitted to the
Audit Committee for review and all recommendations from the Internal
Audit Department will be properly followed up to ensure that they are
implemented within a reasonable period of time. The Directors have
received the report from the Internal Audit Department which conducted
a review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control of the
Group. The management is committed to continuous improvements
and the Internal Control Review Committee comprising the Chairman,
Deputy Chairman, Chief Financial Officer and the Internal Audit
Manager would oversee the implementation of the recommendations
raised by the Internal Audit Department and the continuity of internal
control focus within the Group.
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The scope of work performed by the internal audit function during the
year included financial and operational reviews, recurring/surprise cash
counts and audits, and special reviews.

During the year, the Board has reviewed the risk assessment analysis
in the areas of strategy, operation, reporting and compliance of the
Group. The impact of risks has been considered in terms of probability
of occurrence and materiality and there is a mechanism to ensure that
there exists appropriate business strategies or policies and procedures
to address risks where considered necessary.

The Board considers that the internal control system of the Group is
effective and will continue to review and update the system to ensure
that shareholder’s investments and the Group’s assets are
safeguarded.

C.3 Audit Committee

Code Principle

An audit committee should be established with clear terms of reference,
including formal and transparent arrangements for considering how it
applies the financial reporting and internal control principles. The audit
committee should maintain an appropriate relationship with the
company’s auditor.

NHBEZBAFAZ TIEBERBREE
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Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
AR E =RERE adopted by the Group
<F R AEERMNEEERER
C.3.1 | Full minutes of the audit committee Yes Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Audit

meetings should be kept and sent to all Committee of the Company, the minutes of meetings
audit committee members for comment were circulated to all Committee Members.
and records within a reasonable time.

The minutes were kept by the Company Secretary.
ERZEENTRBERLEETRE I & RBEARFZERZEG RESHE  SRLEEHT
R—REERBANEXEZEESEENX PREEEFHKE °
8 HANEREERRFEZA -

FRLEBAQRMERT -
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Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
SRR E =EHE adopted by the Group
<F AR 32 FEBMRANEEERER

C.3.2 | A former partner of the company’s Yes No member of the Audit Committee is a partner of or
auditing firm should not act as a member has financial interest in the existing auditing firm of the
of the audit committee. Company.

RANZBRAANANEERATGEES & BMEEZEZEEGUERRT AT RFRBAANERAK
REEGKE - RHERER VSR

C.3.3 | Terms of reference of audit committee Yes The terms of reference of the Audit Committee included
should include the terms set out in Code the role and authority delegated by the Board together
provision C.3.3 of the CG Code. with the terms set out in the Code provision C.3.3 of

the CG Code.
EREEENRBEHEERELEERT = The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are
AllE) SFRIME S 55 C.3.3 IR FTE 167K © available on the Company’s website.

C.3.4 | Audit committee should make available its Yes ERZEeNRESERREEEe TERE ES -
terms of reference, explaining its role and BRI EEESTRIE C.3.3EIEX -
authority delegated to it by the board.

ERLZESRAMERESRE BEHA = EZZEGNBEBEIHN AR EEu -
ERESFERTERZEGNET -

C.3.5 | Disclosure of any disagreement between Yes The Audit Committee recommended to the Board to re-
the board and audit committee on selection, appoint RSM Nelson Wheeler as the external auditor
appointment, resignation or dismissal of subject to the shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming
external auditors. The company should annual general meeting.
state the recommendation and reasons for
taking a different view by the board in
Corporate Governance Report.
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sufficient resources to discharge its
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Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
FRMRRE =ENE adopted by the Group
<F AR EEBRANEEERER
C.3.6 | Audit committee should be provided with Yes Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Audit

Committee of the Company, the Audit Committee has
duties. been provided with sufficient resources, including
advice from external auditor and Internal Audit
Department, to discharge its duties, if necessary.

REARREZZEGNBERE  ERZESEREHR
T ° FERER - BREIMNEZEE RABEZBOER (WE
AR BEITEBE o

The Audit Committee was established on 20 November 1998. It
comprises three members who are all Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee include the review
and supervision of the Group’s financial reporting system and internal
control procedures, review of the Group’s financial statements and
review of the relationship with the external auditor of the Company. The
Audit Committee meets at least twice a year.

The Audit Committee met three times during the year ended 29
February 2012 and the individual members’ attendance records are set
out below:

Number of meetings 3
Members Attendance
Chui Chi Yun, Robert (Chairman) 3/3
Heng Ching Kuen, Franklin 3/3
Chan Yue Kwong, Michael 3/3
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The amount of fees charged by the Auditor generally depends on the
scope and volume of the Auditor’s work. For the year ended 29
February 2012, the remuneration payable to RSM Nelson Wheeler was
approximately HK$2,000,000 for audit services and HK$188,000 for
other assurance services.

The following is a summary of work performed by the Audit Committee
during the year:

(a) discussed with the external auditor the general scope of their audit
work;

(b) reviewed and made recommendations to the Board in respect of
the audit fee proposals for the Group for the year ended 29
February 2012;

(c) reviewed and approved the Group’s internal audit policy and
internal audit plan for the year 2012;

(d) reviewed the internal audit reports covering the evaluation of
internal controls;

(e) reviewed the audited financial statements and final results
announcement for the year ended 28 February 2011;

(f) reviewed the Interim Report and interim results announcement for
the six months ended 31 August 2011;

(9) reviewed the internal control review report on the Group’s
operations; and

(h) reviewed the Corporate Governance Report for the year ended 28
February 2011.

The Group’s audited financial statements for the year ended 29
February 2012 has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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D. Delegation by the Board

D.1 Management Functions

Code Principle

A company should have a formal schedule of matters specifically
reserved to the board for its decision. The board should give clear
directions to management as to the matters that must be approved by
the board before decisions are made on behalf of the company.

D. EEEE HNER
D.1 EER g

PRI A

REEBE-—BEANEETER - JI&SF
NIZEZRERENER -BFTFERRK
REMEHIRTER - [ERRMEE R E IR B KLk
ERAMEESHLE

the powers of management, particularly
on delegation to management and those
required prior board approval.

Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
SRR E 2ER/E adopted by the Group
SFRIMR 3L TEBRANCEERER
D.1.1 | The board must give clear directions as to Yes Please refer to the section below.

T EIE ML -

EFeVARERENEN KB TIEMN P 2R e
ol BrEmERERERASERG
ERgESEH -
D.1.2 | The company should formalize functions Yes Please refer to the section below.
reserved to the board and those delegated
to the management.
NAEEXTRRIRESGEIBHRAL 2 BLHTX -

The Board is collectively responsible for the management of the
business and affairs of the Group with the objective of enhancing
shareholders’ value. The Board is responsible for making decisions on
major operational and financial matters as well as investments, and
overseeing the management of the business. Matters reserved to the
Board for decision include significant financial and legal commitments,
material asset acquisition or disposal, the change of share capital, the
approval of financial reporting and budget.

EESARAREEAREMEBRER
BEEREARREE EFSRAANEE
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EE

The general management and day-to-day operations, including
preparation of annual and interim reports and accounts for board
approval before public reporting, execution of business strategies and
initiatives adopted by the Board, monitoring of operating budgets,
implementation of adequate systems of internal controls and risk
management procedures, and compliance with relevant statutory

$E|:| (llﬁ

ARERREE BREREEFHEPHR
THEBUAHEZEN AR HATEL
$ﬂf7§$A%%’ﬂE’J¥WﬁﬁW&§$m CER
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requirements and rules and regulations, are delegated to the
management team of the Group.

D.2 Board Committees
Code Principle

Board committees should be formed with specific written terms of
reference which deal clearly with the committees’ authority and duties.

D2EEXERTZEES
FRIRAY
EXZgETEZ 8NN LETAEEN

FERBHRE BRIKZESRNLE

Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
TR E —RERFE adopted by the Group
<FRI5R XX TEERMNEEERER
D.2.1 | Clear terms of reference to enable Yes Each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
committees to discharge their functions. Committee and the Executive Committee of the
Company has clear terms of reference which set out
the authority, duties and reporting procedures.
FOBRTARESRE  EEHEEE P RRARZEREEE FHEEERITEESHNE
TEE BITERAE - h - BENMEREFHEENHBESENBESIR -
D.2.2 | Terms of reference should require the Yes Board committees report their findings, decisions and
committees to report their decisions or recommendations to the Board at the Board Meetings.
recommendations to the board.
BREEERTZELEENEFEIER E EEEET ééﬁ@%&?%@@% HAEE S E RS
HORTHEH - BHER RENMEE




E. Communication with Shareholders
E.1 Effective Communication

Code Principle

The board should endeavour to maintain an on-going dialogue with
shareholders and in particular, use annual general meeting or other
general meetings to communicate with shareholders and encourage

their participation.

E. ERRHBE
E1BREE
FAYRAY
EEERENERRFAERTEE LA
ERBRRAFASREMEEERERE
BRLEERESHE -
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Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
SRR E 2ER/E adopted by the Group
SFRIMR 3L TEBRANCEERER

E.1.1 | A separate resolution at a general meeting Yes Separate resolutions are proposed at the annual
on each substantial separate issue should general meeting on each substantially separate issue,
be proposed by the chairman of that including election of directors.
meeting.

ERRAE L @ZIFEATRERE i RERRBEFRE EHEHEERBEZH(BEREE
MEEEEMRHRER - =) AR HRER -

E.1.2 | Chairman of the board should attend the Yes The Chairman of the Board and all members of the
annual general meeting and arrange for Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee
the chairman of audit, remuneration and have attended the 2011 AGM and answered
nomination committees to attend and be shareholders’ questions during the 2011 AGM.
available to answer questions.

EFRIREHRERFBEFAS T & EEgIR BERZESLFHEZESERKRENAL
BEREES FHEEERIEREESE B0 FRFAF KRG REIERRLERM -
EEFRRABFAGINE FOERMH -

E.1.3 | Company should arrange to send at least Yes The Company has given at least 20 clear business
20 clear business days’ notice to days’ notice to shareholders to attend the 2011 AGM
shareholders of annual general meeting which was held on 25 August 2011.
and at least 10 clear business days’ notice
for all other general meetings.

WMBRBRRAS - RAELEERE EIT P AREE 5201198 A 25 A& 172 2011 FRFEF K
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The Company establishes and maintains different communication
channels with its shareholders through the publication of annual
reports, interim reports and press releases. Such information is also
available on the Company’s website www.tslj.com. The annual general
meeting provides a useful forum for shareholders to exchange views

with the Board.

E.2 Voting by Poll

Code Principle

The company should ensure that shareholders are familiar with the

detailed procedures for conducting a poll.

RABFEBTIEFR - PHRS KAHER
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Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
FAMR R E =EERE adopted by the Group
SF AR X AEERANCEERER
E.2.1 | Chairman of the meeting should ensure Yes Details of the procedures for conducting a poll have
that the detailed procedures for been disclosed in the Company’s AGM circular to
conducting a poll are explained at the shareholders.
commencement of the meeting and
answer any questions from shareholders The Chairman of the 2011 AGM explained the
regarding voting by way of poll. procedures for conducting a poll at the commencement
of the meeting and answered the questions from the
shareholders regarding the poll voting.
REFERN S RMGFRRSBEAR b UREFARANFMAIZFERARFMRRFTERB
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At the Company’s 2011 AGM, all the resolutions were taken by way of
poll and Tricor Secretaries Limited, the Company’s Hong Kong Branch
Share Registrar, was engaged as scrutineer to ensure the votes were

properly counted.

Chan Yue Kwong, Michael as its chairman; and

duties set out in the Revised CG Code.

A. Directors

A5 Nomination Committee

Establishment of a Nomination Committee, etc. pursuant to
the amendments to Listing Rules and the Revised CG Code
The Stock Exchange has announced on 28 October 2011 certain amendments R TE 2011 FE10 A28 B EMIERI A T L™
to the Listing Rules and the CG Code. In order to comply with the relevant
revised Listing Rules and the relevant revised CG Code which have been
effective on 1 April 2012, the Board has approved the following functional
changes:

(i) a Nomination Committee was established on 30 March 2012 with Mr. Heng (i)
Ching Kuen, Franklin and Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie as its members and Mr.

RARB20M FRRBFAE L AR
AEBUREFETROR - AR AR
HEERMBFELOREEWERBHE
BRAREEERA  BREZEFRE -

REBETEN ETRUFETEEER
JARIREEEEEEH

RAREEERT - BT ETHERN201254
A1 BRERZERTEN EMRAMERTERER
SR ERECAENT RS

IREZEZEEN2012F3A30HK » FIE#
EERBLTELZLTAERE  BUELEAH
FE R

(i) the Board will be responsible for performing the corporate governance (i) EESBATRTEITLEEATRIMEHNR

EERNBE -

A.EE

ASIREEZES

BAIFRTESEE LR KEENNE
FRITESERZH -

Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
TR E 2ERE adopted by the Group
SFRIR 3L FEERANDEERER
A.5.1 | Company should establish a nomination Yes A Nomination Committee was established on 30 March
committee which is chaired by the 2012. It comprises three members, with one Executive
chairman of the board or an independent Director, namely Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie and two
non-executive director and comprises a Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company,
majority of independent non-executive namely Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael and Mr. Heng
directors. Ching Kuen, Franklin. Mr. Chan is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.
NAERUIEHZEE  AEFEIRNL E REEESEN2012F3A30AKL - IREEEGH=

FREMK  BRE-HWITES  BLXBEXLTEREIE
TIHMITESR R AEEREERESE - RELERR
FEEGIE -
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Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
FAMR R E =RRE adopted by the Group
<F AR 32 FEBMRANEEERER

A.5.2 | The nomination committee should be Yes The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
established with specific written terms of clearly state its authority and duties.
reference which deal clearly with its
authority and duties.

NAIEEEAIREZE S ARBNBES & REZEGRESESEHAELRENEE -
OBRFAEBEMEE -

A.5.3 | The nomination committee should make Yes The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
available its terms of reference explaining are available on the websites of Stock Exchange and
its role and the authority delegated to it by the Company.
the board by including them on the Stock
Exchange’s website and the company’s
website.

REZEGRAEB IR ARSI AR P REZE B GRS E OB AT R AR ML -
H#aE mEAACURESGER
TENES -

A5.4 | The company should provide the Yes The Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient
nomination committee sufficient resources resources, including the advice of professional firms, to
to perform its duties. Where necessary, discharge its duties, if necessary.
the nomination committee should seek
independent professional advice, at the
company’s expense, to perform its
responsibilities.
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D. Delegation by the Board
D.3 Corporate Governance Functions

D. EEERINER

D3 ERREE

performing this function) should be
responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties set out in the terms of
reference in D.3.1.

Exg(EETHBENEZES)ERER
ID3VEBEREMENLEE GRS -

Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
TR E =ERE adopted by the Group
<F A% 3 TEERMNEEERER
D.3.1 | The terms of reference of the board (or a Yes The Corporate Governance Functions would be
committee or committees performing this performed by the Board and its duties set out in the
function) should include the functions as terms of reference in D.3.1 of the Revised CG Code.
set out in the Code provision D.3.1 of the
CG Code.
EEG(RBETHBENEES)BES 2 PEERBAENHEFSET  HREREBIGEER
Bz aEeEE e Ale T RIESE SPRID.3.1 I & E P
D.3.1 ERPAHL IR ©
D.3.2 | The board (or a committee or committees
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RSM Nelson Wheeler
PinEE(EAB)STMERAM

Certified Public Accountants

To the Shareholders of
Tse Sui Luen Jewellery (International) Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tse Sui Luen
Jewellery (International) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 88 to 183, which
comprise the consolidated and Company statements of financial position as
at 29 February 2012, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.
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Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 29 February
2012, and of the Group’s results and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

RSM Nelson Wheeler
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 May 2012
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Gonsolidated Statement of

Gomprehensive Income

REEEBRARR

For the year ended 29 February 2012
BZE2012F2 H29B IEFE

Turnover
Cost of goods sold

Gross profit

Other income

Selling expenses
Administrative expenses

Profit from operations

Write back of tax surcharge and interest/
compounds provision

Finance costs

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
Exchange difference arising on translation of
financial statements of foreign subsidiaries

Other comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year
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ExE

SR

7

AR

HEEA

I

EERF

G AR TR R
OB R

BB

B BLAT BF

BE

REERF

HEA2EKA

BEWBARRBERR
3424

REFEMEERA
($NBBLE)

FEEEEBARE

29.2.2012
Note 201242 A29H
et HK$000 B# Tt

6 & 15 3,359,063

(1,749,865)

1,609,198

14,674
(1,228,604)
(150,084)

7 & 15

245,184

c) -
a) (9,377)

235,807
(54,811)

180,996

19,983

19,983
200,979

28.2.2011
201142 A28 H
HK$’000 &% F 7t
2,517,543
(1,224,836)

1,292,707
5,813
(964,970)
(116,568)

216,982

19,389
(5,708)

230,663
(30,425)

200,238

34,117

34,117
234,355



29.2.2012 28.2.2011
Note 20122 A29H 201142A28H
M5 HK$000 BT HK$000 BT

Profit attributable to FE1h B FIEB 49

Owners of the Company RAREAA 162,347 176,118

Non-controlling interests FEPEAR AR R 18,649 24,120
180,996 200,238

Total comprehensive income EE2ER ARG

attributable to

Owners of the Company RAREB A 179,147 206,764

Non-controlling interests FEVERR AR SR A 2 21,832 27,591
200,979 234,355

Earnings per share BREF

Basic ES YN 14 77.2 cents flll 83.7 cents {llI

Diluted B 14 N/A TiE N/A 1@ A

The notes on pages 96 to 183 form part of these financial statements. FI6EF 183 BN TBAMGmE—HH -
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Gonsolidated Statement of

Financial Position

mE BRI R

At 29 February 2012
7201252 A29H

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Other asset

Deposits

Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Current tax assets

Cash at bank and in hand

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Bank overdrafts — secured
Bank loans

Interest bearing payable

Obligations under finance leases

Current tax liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

carried forward

90

FRBEE
YES G
HibEE

we
ERETIRE E

hEEE
3T
MBS 3 L B 3
AHBIE A
BIEREAS

RBAE

FEA BRI BAR AT 3R
RITES - BEA
RITERK

FHREAR
mMERERE
AHHIERE

RBEEFE
HEERRBRERSSE

Note
iEs:

m

16(a)
18
20
26

19
20

21

22
23
23
36(a)
24

29.2.2012
201242 A29H
HK$'000 7% F 7T

137,932
500
23,126
21,036

182,594

1,593,216
215,533
1,237
102,512

1,912,498

(632,803)
(44,063)
(269,246)
(120,000)
(4,179)
(39,895)

(1,110,186)
802,312

984,906

28.2.2011
201142 A28 H
HK$’000 &% F 7t

124,538
500

19,015
144,053

1,268,497
233,437
1,349
121,935

1,625,218

(554,249)
(18,054)
(193,880)

(1,881)
(37,374)

(805,438)
819,780

963,833



Total assets less current liabilities
brought forward

Non-current liabilities
Obligations under finance leases
Employee benefit obligations
Deferred tax liabilities

NET ASSETS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity attributable to owners
of the Company
Non-controlling interests

TOTAL EQUITY

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 May 2012
EEER 201255 A 30 A& AT H 8%

Yau On Yee, Annie 8% &
Lai Tsz Mo, Lawrence 22 F &

AABEERRBEE

FRBEE
MERERE
EERMEH

BEEFE

BARR S

N

fE#
ARAEEARGEREE

FERRRES

The notes on pages 96 to 183 form part of these financial statements.
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29.2.2012

Note 201242 A29H
et HK$000 E# Tt

24
25
26

27
28

Directors &%

984,906

(2,552)
(19,727)
(24,380)

(46,659)
938,247

52,584
885,663

938,247

938,247

28.2.2011
201142 A28 H
HK$'000 7% T 7T

963,833

(1,825)
(12,745)
(16,837)

)

(31,407
932,426

52,584
759,040

811,624
120,802

932,426

F96EF 183 A B AM SR —#n o
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Financial Position

B # AR 0 3R
At 29 February 2012
7201252 A29H

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Interests in subsidiaries
Deferred tax assets

Current assets
Deposits and prepayments
Cash at bank and in hand

Current liabilities
Other payables and accruals
Current tax liabilities

Net current (liabilities)/assets
Total assets less current liabilities

NET ASSETS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital
Reserves

TOTAL EQUITY

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 May 2012
EFeR 201245 A 30 B &I T A] Tl

Yau On Yee, Annie Il % &
Lai Tsz Mo, Lawrence 22 F &

ERBEE

Y% - BE MR
RIENGIE T
ERERAEE

RBEE
B RIBK
RITERERE

nBAE
Hi R LB ER
AERIEAE

B (AR EERE
REERRBAEE
BEEFE

BEXKFE

PR

E4i

The notes on pages 96 to 183 form part of these financial statements.
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29.2.2012
Note 201242 29R
fizr  HK$000 B¥F T
16(b) 399
17 938,298
26 50
938,747
20(d) 1,384
21 134
1,518
22(b) (1,541)
(477)
(2,018)
(500)
938,247
938,247
27 52,584
28 885,663
938,247
Directors &%

28.2.2011
201142 A28 H
HK$'000 &% T 7T

198
811,060
134

811,392

1,762
130

1,892

(1,355)
(305)

(1,660)
232

811,624

811,624

52,584
759,040

811,624

F96EFE 183 BRMIEB A BIRE —2 -



Gonsolidated Statement of

Ghanges in Equity

= 3¢ 4=
RERREER
For the year ended 29 February 2012
BIE2012F2H29R IEFE

At 1 March 2010
Transfer to capital reserves
Dividends paid
Proposed final dividend (2010/11)
(note 13)
Total comprehensive income
for the year

At 28 February 2011 and
1 March 2011

Transfer to capital reserves

Acquisition of non-controlling
interest (note 36(a))

Dividends paid

Proposed final dividend (2011/12)
(note 13)

Total comprehensive income
for the year

At 29 February 2012

M2010E3 A1 A%H
EREENGE
BIRRE
BRA RS (201011)
(W3E13)
TEEREN B8

Ro011F2A28A %
20115381854

EREEALEE

B £l e 4
(3 36(a))

BIRERE

BRRHRE (201112)
(W3E13)

TEERENLE

R201242 A29 AR

Share
capital
(note 27)
B
(Hiz2r7)
HK$000
BETT

52,584

52,584

52,584

Share
premium
(note 28(c)(i)
RingaE
(H3E28(c) i)
HK$'000
BB

123,365

123,365

123,365

Capital
reserves

(note 28(c)(ii))
ERGEE
(M3E28(c) i)
HK$'000
BB

153,533
4872

158,405
2,659

(21,605)

139,459

The notes on pages 96 to 183 form part of these financial statements.

Exchange
reserve

(note 28(c)(iv))
EREE
(M5E28(c)(iv))
HK$000
BB

46,904

30,646

77,550

16,800
94,350

Retained
profits

REEA
HK$'000
BETT

234,153
(4.872)
(5,679)

(25,240)

176,118

374,480
(2,659)

(5,679)

(26,292)

162,347

502,197

#

FIBEE

Proposed
final
dividend
ER
RERE
HK$'000
BB

16,827

(16,827)

25,240

25,240

(25,240)

26,292

26,292

Total equity
attributable to
owners of

the Company
RRAERA
[l =A%
HK$000
BETT

627,366

(22,506)

206,764

811,624

(21,605)
(30919)

179,147

938,247

Non-
controlling
interests
R
REER
HK$'000
BB

93,211

27,591

120,802

(128,395)
(14,239)

21,832

183 BRI B AR 5K — 2D o

Total
equity

BEAE
HK$'000
BETL

720,577

(22,506)

234,355

932,426

(150,000)
(45,158)

200,979

938,247
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Gonsolidated Statement of

RERERER

For the year ended 29 February 2012

HE2012F 2298 1LFE

Operating activities
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
— Finance costs
— Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
— Depreciation
— Interest income
— Reversal of allowance for bad and
doubtful debts
— Write back of tax surcharge and
interest/compounds provision
— Adjustment in respect of long service
payments
— Provision/(reversal of provision) for
inventories

Operating profit before changes in
working capital

Increase in inventories

Increase in trade and other receivables

Increase in trade and other payables

Cash generated from/(used in) operations
Tax paid

— Hong Kong Profits Tax

— Overseas tax

Net cash used in operating activities

94

REED
EREE AT 2 7
AEIFA
- BB EM
- HEWE - BEKREER

- e
- FMBWA
— RIERRE M

- BAEH &R RS
7 DN 958 4 [ 3¢
- R RHRE SRR FHE

- FERE/(BERE)

BEESHBAIKERA

TR

MBS 3505 O M K8 1
A5 30 5% B K08 10
EEEBEL (FR) RS
EABIE

- BB RIEH

— HNBLIE
BEEBFANRS

29.2.2012
201242 A 29 H
HK$'000 7% F 7T

Note
s
235,807

9,377

15
54,543

(460)

(14,155)

6,982

3,668

295,777

(328,387)
(5,306)
78,554

40,638

(1,155)
(45,846)

(6,363)

28.2.2011
201142 A28 H
HK$’000 /&% F 7T

230,663
5,708
58
42,176
(760)
(115)
(19,389)

1,593

(10,830)

249,104
(302,953)
(49,340)
85,473

(17,716)

(22,382)
(41,477)

(81,575)



Investing activities

Payments to acquire property,
plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Payments to acquire non-controlling
interest in subsidiaries

Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities

Financing activities

Capital element of finance lease payments
Proceeds from new bank loans
Repayment of bank loans

Repayment of other loan

Net proceeds from trade financing

Interest element of finance lease payments
Interest paid

Dividends paid

Net cash generated from financing
activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of year

Effect of foreign exchange rates changes

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Analysis of balances of cash and
cash equivalents

Cash at bank and in hand

Bank overdrafts — secured

REED
XNBAME - BELRE

HEME - BFE RREAEHR

SRR B B A B FR R AR A
R

YRS
REZBFANREFHE
BMEED
BEHEREN A D
HiEIR1T B PTS R
ERIRITER
EREMER
BHBEMSRA
BEHERBENN S A D
BENFE

B

METHEENREES

RERREEEWRD FHE

REANRERREEEY

IEEZSBNTE
REENRERREEEY
RERRELEEBYZERDIT

RITERERE
RITIES - BHEA

The notes on pages 96 to 183 form part of these financial statements.

Note
B st

36(a)

F96 %

29.2.2012

28.2.2011

20122 H29H 201142 F28H
HK$'000 /&% T  HK$'000 BTt

(61,402)
66

(30,000)
460

(90,876)

(2,722)
30,000
(17,500)

62,866
(238)
(9,139)
(30,919)

32,348
(64,891)

103,881

19,459
58,449

102,512
(44,063)

58,449

(44,147)

118

760
(43,269)

(249)
44,200
(12,640)
(6,962)
39,170
(15)
(5,693)
(22,506)

35,305
(89,539)

157,530

35,890
103,881

121,935
(18,054)

103,881

183 E MM B A B IHEKR—#D °
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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1.

96

General Information

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability. The
address of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The address of its principal place of business
is Ground Floor, Block B, Summit Building, 30 Man Yue Street,
Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 17 to the financial
statements.

. Adoption of New and Revised Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) that are
relevant to its operations and effective for its accounting year beginning
on 1 March 2011. HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”); Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”); and
Interpretations. The adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs did not
result in significant changes to the Group’s accounting policies,
presentation of the Group’s financial statements and amounts reported
for the current year and prior years except as stated below.

1. &N

KAl IR BREFAMKZZERAT « XA H
2 =T it #* = Bz i 7 Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda > K 2 &) 2 =
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PRAR ([BERFT]) EAR ETH -
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Bzet R AREFBHRZEZHIARAE
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2. Adoption of New and Revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)
(a) HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures

HKAS 24 (Revised) clarifies and simplifies the definitions of related
parties. The new definitions emphasise a symmetrical view of related
party relationships and clarify the circumstances in which persons
and key management personnel affect related party relationships of
an entity. The revised standard also introduces an exemption from
the general related party disclosure requirements for transactions
with a government and entities that are controlled, jointly controlled
or significantly influenced by the same government as the reporting
entity. The accounting policy for related parties has been revised to
reflect the changes in the definitions of related parties under the
revised standard. The adoption of the revised standard did not have
any impact on the financial position or performance of the Group.

(b) Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 issued in May 2010 sets out

amendments to a number of HKFRSs. There are separate
transitional provisions for each standard. While the adoption of some
of the amendments may result in changes in accounting policies,
none of these amendments has had a significant financial impact on
the financial position or performance of the Group. Details of the key
amendments most applicable to the Group are as follows:

i. HKFRS 3 Business Combinations: The amendment clarifies that
the amendments to HKFRS 7, HKAS 32 and HKAS 39 that
eliminate the exemption for contingent consideration do not apply
to contingent consideration that arose from business
combinations whose acquisition dates precede the application of
HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008). In addition, the amendment limits
the scope of measurement choices for non-controlling interests.
Only the components of non-controlling interests that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the acquiree’s net assets in the event of liquidation are
measured at either fair value or at the present ownership
instruments’ proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at their acquisition date fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by another HKFRS. The
amendment also added explicit guidance to clarify the accounting
treatment for non-replaced and voluntarily replaced share-based
payment awards.

2. RAFETI REBITERYBREER
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Notes to the Financial Statements oninueq)
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2. Adoption of New and Revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)
(b) (continued)

98

HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: The amendment
clarifies that an analysis of each component of other
comprehensive income can be presented either in the statement
of changes in equity or in the notes to the financial statements.
The Group elects to present the analysis of each component of
other comprehensive income in the statement of changes in
equity.

HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements: The
amendment clarifies that the consequential amendments from
HKAS 27 (as revised in 2008) made to HKAS 21, HKAS 28 and
HKAS 31 shall be applied prospectively for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2009 or earlier if HKAS 27(as revised
in 2008) is applied earlier.

2. RMHAIREBIETRMBHREER
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3. Recent Accounting and Financial Reporting

Pronouncements

The HKICPA has issued the following amendments, new and revised
standards and interpretations which are not yet effective for the current
year and have not been early adopted by the Group. The Group has
already commenced an assessment of the impact of these new HKFRSs
but is not yet in a position to state whether these new HKFRSs would
have a material impact on its results of operations and financial position.

HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
(Amendments) Reporting Standards — Severe
Hyperinflation and Removal of Fixed Dates
for First-time Adopters'
HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
(Amendments) Reporting Standards — Government Loans*
HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures — Transfer
(Amendments) of Financial Assets’
HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures —
(Amendments) Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities*
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments®
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements*
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements*
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities*
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement*
HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive
(Amendments) Income?®
HKAS 12 Income Tax: Deferred Tax: Recovery of
(Amendments) Underlying Asset?

HKAS 19 (2011)

Employee Benefits*

HKAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements*

HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures*

HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
(Amendments) Liabilities®
HK(IFRIC) — Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a

Surface Mine*

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015
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Significant Accounting Policies

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs, accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain key assumptions and estimates. It also
requires the directors to exercise their judgements in the process of
applying the accounting policies. The areas involving critical judgements
and areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to these
financial statements, are disclosed in note 5 to the financial statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
financial statements are set out below.

(a) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 29
February. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has control.
Control is the power to govern the financial and operating policies of
an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. The existence
and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group has
control.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date the
control ceases.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(a) Basis of consolidation (continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results in a loss
of control represents the difference between (i) the fair value of the
consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any investment
retained in that subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s share of the net
assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill relating to that
subsidiary and any related accumulated foreign currency translation
reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries not
attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company. Non-controlling
interests are presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position and consolidated statement of changes in equity within
equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as an allocation of profit or loss
and total comprehensive income for the year between the non-
controlling interests and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
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(a) Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions
(i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity as owners). The
carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to the owners of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position the interests in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less allowance for impairment losses.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividends received and receivable.

(b) Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the acquisition of a
subsidiary in a business combination. The cost of acquisition is
measured at the acquisition-date fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued, liabilities incurred and contingent
consideration. Acquisition-related costs are recognised as expenses
in the periods in which the costs are incurred and the services are
received. |dentifiable assets and liabilities of the subsidiary in the
acquisition are measured at their acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Company’s share of
the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities
is recorded as goodwill. Any excess of the Company’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase which is attributed to the Company.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(b) Business combination and goodwill (continued)

In a business combination achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest in the subsidiary is remeasured at its acquisition-date
fair value and the resulting gain or loss is recognised in consolidated
profit or loss. The fair value is added to the cost of acquisition to
calculate the goodwill.

If the changes in the value of the previously held equity interest in
the subsidiary were recognised in other comprehensive income (for
example, available-for-sale investment), the amount that was
recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised on the
same basis as would be required if the previously held equity interest
were disposed of.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be
impaired. Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. The method of measuring impairment losses of goodwill is
the same as that of other assets as stated in the accounting policy (v)
below. Impairment losses of goodwill are recognised in consolidated
profit or loss and are not subsequently reversed. Goodwill is
allocated to cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the acquisition for the purpose of impairment testing.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are initially measured
at the non-controlling shareholders’ proportionate share of the net
fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities at the
acquisition date.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(c) Foreign currency translation

104

(i)

(if)

Functional and presentation currency

Iltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial statements
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency on initial recognition using the exchange rates
prevailing on the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange
rates at the end of each reporting period. Gains and losses
resulting from this translation policy are recognised in profit or
loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair values in foreign
currencies are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
other comprehensive income, any exchange component of that
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income. When
a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in profit or
loss, any exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 4. FESFBER (8)
(c) Foreign currency translation (continued) (c) INEERE (5B)
(iii) Translation on consolidation (iii) #REARE 2 B E

The results and financial position of all the Group entities that
have a functional currency different from the Company’s
presentation currency are translated into the Company’s
presentation currency as follows:

— Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

— Income and expenses for each statement of comprehensive
income are translated at average exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated at the
exchange rates on the transaction dates); and

— All resulting exchange differences are recognised in the
exchange reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities and of
borrowings are recognised in the exchange reserve. When a
foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences are
recognised in consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain or
loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of
a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(d) Property, plant and equipment

106

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
All other repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss
during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at rates

sufficient to write off their cost less their residual values over the

estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal useful

lives are as follows:

Land and buildings over the remaining life of the lease
but not exceeding 55 years from
the date of purchase

Furniture, fixtures, 1to 10 years
equipment

Plant and machinery

Motor vehicles

3to 7 years
4 to 10 years

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(e) Leases

(i)

(ii)

Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group all the risks
and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as
operating leases. Lease payments (net of any incentives received
from the lessor) are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to the Group all the risks and
rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as finance
leases. At the commencement of the lease term, a finance lease
is capitalised at the lower of the fair value of the leased asset and
the present value of the minimum lease payments, each
determined at the inception of the lease.

The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
statement of financial position as finance lease payable. Lease
payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the
reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance charge is
allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability.

Assets under finance leases are depreciated the same as owned
assets.

(f) Membership
Membership with indefinite useful life is stated at cost less any
impairment losses. Impairment is reviewed annually or when there is

any indication that the membership has suffered an impairment loss.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(9) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the weighted average basis. The cost of
finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of all production overhead
expenditure, and where appropriate, subcontracting charges. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business, less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

(h) Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

108

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
statement of financial position when the Group becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire; the Group transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets; or
the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the assets but has not retained control on
the assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in
the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or
loss.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(i) Trade and other receivables

()

(k

=~

Trade and other receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market and are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
allowance for impairment. An allowance for impairment of trade and
other receivables is established when there is objective evidence
that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according
to the original terms of receivables. The amount of the allowance is
the difference between the receivables’ carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition. The amount of
the allowance is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods and
recognised in profit or loss when an increase in the receivables’
recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised, subject to the restriction that
the carrying amount of the receivables at the date the impairment is
reversed shall not exceed what the amortised cost would have been
had the impairment not been recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents represent cash at bank and in hand, demand deposits
with banks and other financial institutions, and short-term highly
liquid investments which are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. Bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management are also included as a component
of cash and cash equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to
the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument under
HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
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() Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred, and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the end of the reporting period.

(m)Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost.

(n) Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

(o) Customer loyalty programme

The Group maintains loyalty points programmes within its retail
shops operate in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”), which allow customers to accumulate points when they
purchase products in the shops or joining its clubs/programmes. The
points can then be redeemed for free products/gifts, subject to
certain terms and conditions. A portion of the consideration received
for the products sold is allocated to the points issued and deferred.
This is then recognised as revenue over the period that the points
are redeemed.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(p) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the entity and the amount of revenue can be
measure reliability.

Revenues from the sales of manufactured goods and trading of
finished goods are recognised on the transfer of significant risks and
rewards of ownership, which generally coincides with the time when
the goods are delivered and the title has passed to the customers.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the
effective interest method.

Sales of goods that result in award credits for customers, under the
Group’s customer loyalty programme, are accounted for as multiple
element revenue transactions and the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable is allocated between the goods sold and the
award credits granted. The consideration allocated to the award
credits is measured by reference to their fair value. Such
consideration is not recognised as revenue at the time of the initial
sale transaction — but is deferred and recognised as revenue when
the award credits are redeemed and the Group’s obligations have
been fulfilled.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(q) Employee benefits

112

@

(ii)

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, leave passage and
the cost to the Group of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered by
employees of the Group. Where payment or settlement is
deferred and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present value.

Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds (“MPF”) as required
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance and contributions to the retirement schemes operated
by the relevant authorities for employees of the subsidiaries in
the PRC and Malaysia are recognised as an expense in profit or
loss in the statement of comprehensive income as incurred,
except to the extent that they are included in the cost of
inventories not yet recognised as an expense.

(iii) The Group’s net obligation in respect of lump sum long service

amounts payable on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance is
the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in
return for their service in the current and prior periods. The
obligation is calculated using the projected unit credit method by
a qualified actuary, discounted to its present value, and the fair
value of any related plan assets is deducted. The discount rate is
the yield at year end date on Exchange Fund Notes that have
maturity dates approximating the terms of the Group’s
obligations.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(r) Share-based payments

(s

~

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to certain
employees and suppliers. Equity-settled share-based payments are
measured at fair value (excluding the effect of non market-based
vesting conditions) of the equity instruments at the date of grant. The
fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-
based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, based on the Group’s estimate of shares that will eventually
vest and adjusted for the effect of non market-based vesting
conditions.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until such
time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation is determined by applying a
capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset. The
capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs
applicable to the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding during
the period, other than borrowings made specifically for the purpose
of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
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(t) Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or loss because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused
tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on interests in subsidiaries except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(t) Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in profit
or loss, except when it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax
assets and liabilities on a net basis.

(u) Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group if:

(A) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to
the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is @ member of the key management personnel of the Group
or of a parent of the Group.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(u) Related parties (continued)
(B) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.
(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other

entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (A).

(vii)A person identified in (A)(i) has significant influence over the

entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity).
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(u) Related parties (continued)

(C) Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by,
that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;
(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(iii) dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

(v) Impairment of assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or not yet
available for use are reviewed annually for impairment and are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and other intangible assets except deferred
tax assets, inventories and receivables to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of any impairment loss.
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
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(v) Impairment of assets (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of amortisation or depreciation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset or cash-generating
unit in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss
is treated as a revaluation increase.

(w) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount
when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditures
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow is remote.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(x) Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional information
about the Group’s position at the end of the reporting period or those
that indicate the going concern assumption is not appropriate are
adjusting events and are reflected in the financial statements. Events
after the reporting period that are not adjusting events are disclosed
in the notes to the financial statements when material.

(y) Segment reporting

The Group determined its operating segments and prepared
segment information based on the regular internal financial
information reported to the Group’s chief operating decision makers,
for their decisions about resources allocation to the Group’s business
components and review of these components’ performance.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities include
items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be
allocated on a reasonable basis to that segment. For example,
segment assets may include inventories, trade receivables and
property, plant and equipment. Segment revenue, expenses, assets
and liabilities are determined before intra-group balances and intra-
group transactions are eliminated as part of the consolidation
process, except to the extent that such intra-group balances and
transactions are between group enterprises within a single segment.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the year
to acquire segment assets that are expected to be used for more
than one year.
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5. Critical Judgements and Key Estimates
(a) Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the directors have
made the following judgements that have the most significant effect
on the amount recognised in the financial statements.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the losses can be utilised. Significant judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits.

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

120

The key assumptions concerning the future, and the key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
discussed below:

(i) Useful lives and depreciation of property, plant and equipment
The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation charges of its property, plant and equipment. These
estimates are based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. The Group will increase the depreciation charge
where useful lives are less than previously estimated lives, and
will write off or write down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives
may differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic review could
result in a change in depreciable lives and therefore depreciation
charge in the future periods.
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5. Critical Judgements and Key Estimates (continued) 5. ERHE R EFEMTH(E)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued) (b) EFTHABEEZEERIR (&)
(i) Net realisable value of inventories (i) FE 2] Z 5 %E
Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price FENEIFEIINA B XK BRERE
in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of HE Gt EBREET TR AR AT Z HE
completion and variable selling expenses. These estimates are B o L (st BB IR TN R &S K&
based on the current market condition and the historical HEHZEREUEROBALRMEDL - I
experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar CHREREFRRMRFLHFREIZIITER
nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes in HAETEmAERE L - EENSF4LE
customer taste and competitor actions in response to severe HEMh A At -

industry cycle. The directors reassess the estimations at the end
of each reporting period.

(iii) Allowance for bad and doubtful debts 2
The Group determines the allowance for bad and doubtful debts 7 52 B 937 R Lk B SRR T UK B 1 S AT A

based on an assessment of the recoverability of the receivables. H R R UCER R VE B B o L IB AR E TR
This assessment is based on the credit history of the customers BRPMEMERGABERLIRLEN K
and other debtors and the current market condition. The directors BITMRAETE - EENSELB BTG
reassess the allowance at the end of each reporting period. A o
(iv) Customer loyalty programmes (iv) EF Bt 2l

The Group measures the cost of the loyalty award credits by AEBLXERAIFTERBLEERLERZ
reference to the costs of products and gifts redeemed in the prior ARG E ISR 2 A - MiR4E 2 Al ge
years and the probability of redemption are estimated by the HRAIRESRIBBAFESL BT - BEEER
directors based on the past history. Actual results may different s RBEEFTE

from the estimation.
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5. Critical Judgements and Key Estimates (continued) 5. ERHE R FEMTH(E)
(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued) (b) EFTHABEERZETERIR (&)
(v) Income taxes (v) ATi5#
The Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions. NEBBHEZEREEREBMETEH o AT
Significant estimates are required in determining the provision for SBHBE/ ETRTEFHEAGE - &£
income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for HEXEBBARFR  BHZXHNTET
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the R REHGETE B TN EER © MZF
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome of EEMNRKRBESAEREARVLENESESE
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially EZR ZEERReFEMERAELER
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and TENHEA R HY B o
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination
is made.
6. Turnover 6. EXH
The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture, sale and AREEMTEEK SRS BEREEKRES
marketing of jewellery products. Turnover represents the sales value of i o SEFEEANBIEERLITHENBELE
jewellery products sold to customers, net of value added tax and PHREBEMNHEEEEFE -
discount.
7. Other Income 7. HgA
2012 2011
20124 20114

HK$'000 /&% 7T HK$'000 /B8 TF 7T

Interest income T U A 460 760
Rental income el A - 159
Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) SFER A (F1E) 7,316 (789)
Others Hith 6,898 5,683

14,674 5,813
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8. Profit Before Taxation

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): MBI FIRME G (GEA) -

8. RBAI AR

2012
20124
HK$’000 %% T 7t

2011
20114
HK$'000 7% F 7t

(a) Finance costs (a) BIEEHA
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts ERFRNZEENZRITER K

wholly repayable within five years BEREFE 9,139 5,650
Interest on other loan wholly repayable ERFANZEEN 2 EMERN

within five years A - 43
Interest element of finance lease payments MEMREAENTBER 238 15

9,377 5,708
The analysis shows the finance costs of bank borrowings, including ERASWMBRETERZHBER  BFER
terms loans which contain a repayment on demand clause, in BE T mﬁﬁ%}ﬂgzmﬁiwﬂgﬁa,ﬁﬂfaﬁ 2B
accordance with the agreed scheduled repayment dates set out in SKIEBIER ZEHER -
the loan agreements.
2012 2011
20124 20114
HK$'000 &% F7c  HK$000 B F T
(b) Staff costs (b) ET A
Contribution to defined contribution FOEHEFUR IR EI LR

retirement plan (note 25(b)) (P 5F 25(b)) 7,288 5,864
Adjustment in respect of long service EMRHRE S BRI AR

payments (note 25(a)(ii), 25(a)(iii) and (Bt #E 25(a)(ii) + 25(a)(iii) &

25(a)(iv)) 25(a)(iv)) 6,982 1,593
Retirement costs — net RIRET B - F 5 14,270 7,457
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TENRHMET 440,308 343,956

454,578 351,413

123



Notes to the Financial Statements oninueq)
P EELIEEAC )

8. Profit Before Taxation (continued)
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(c) Other items

Auditors’ remuneration
— current year provision

— auditor of the Company

— other auditors
Cost of goods sold
Depreciation
Loss on disposal of property, plant

and equipment
Operating lease charges
—land and buildings situated in Hong Kong
— land and buildings situated other than

in Hong Kong

Provision/(reversal of provision) for inventories
Rental income from properties less

direct outgoings
— rental income
— direct outgoings

Reversal of allowance for bad and
doubtful debts

8. RFAIEF (%)

(c) Hfb1gH

A =

- AFERE

- AR R ERED

— H A% 2RED

SHERAR

e
HEME - BFELREEE
KEHEEBR

- BB LM RETF

- BENIIZ L REF

FERE (BEmE)
MEESRABERE X

-HEBA
-HEXH

RIEFRR A O B

Cost of goods sold includes HK$78,318,000 (2011: HK$62,999,000)
relating to staff costs, depreciation expenses, operating lease
charges, which amounts are also included in the respective total
amounts disclosed separately above in note 8(b) and 8(c) for each of

these types of expenses.

2012 2011
20124 20114

HK$'000 7% T 75  HK$'000 B8 T 7T
2,000 2,000

375 260

1,749,865 1,224,836

54,543 42,176

15 58

121,841 87,391

30,185 23,138
3,668 (10,830)
= (159)

= 18
= (141)
(14,155) (115)

HEXNABFEE TRA - TEBHRLE
HEEHEBBEE 78,318,000 7T(2011 £ :
762,999,000 7T) ° ARAEEENNE AL L
B 3E 8(b) K Ml 5 8(c) Aol S L8 MERARA S ©



9. Taxation 9. FiiE
(a) Taxation recognised in profit or loss in the consolidated statement of (@) RERAZEBAREK Z BN N EIEIER 2B
comprehensive income represents: g :

2012 2011
20124 20114
HK$'000 /&% T 7T HK$'000 BTt

Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax AEFIIE - BEFEH

Provision for the year REERE 12,955 8,122

Underprovision/(overprovision) in prior years A FEBE TR, (B0 #E)

(note 9(c)) (FFEE9(c)) 350 (28,643)

13,305 (20,521)

Current tax — overseas REABLIE - /I

Provision for the year N E AR 37,817 44,264

(Overprovision)/underprovision in prior years — LAFE/E (B EIE) BET 2 (1,669) 49
36,148 44,313

Deferred tax (note 26(a)) RIERIE (Fii5E26(a)) 5,358 6,633
54,811 30,425

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at a rate of 16.5% (2011: BEBFEH HIREBE AR EBHRNSRR

16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for the year. Taxation for BEZMTERREN - RERAHE16.5%

overseas subsidiaries is charged at the appropriate current rates of (20114F : 16.5%) 5t & » RIGIMNE & 2 I &

taxation ruling in the relevant countries. NEIZMIEDRAELEN G ANEERNE

ARE  WRIEAMBETER  EARRE
B -
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9. Taxation (continued)
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(b) Reconciliation between profit before taxation and taxation recognised
in profit or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive ERERZBIE 2 $5 -

income is as follows:

Profit before taxation

Notional tax on profit before taxation,
calculated at the rates applicable to profits
in the countries concerned

Tax effect of profits entitled to tax exemption

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses

Tax effect of non-taxable income

Tax effect of prior year’s tax losses utilised
this year

Tax effect of temporary differences not
recognised

Tax effect of prior year's temporary difference
recognised

Tax effect of unused tax losses not
recognised

Qverprovision in prior years

Tax effect of withholding tax at 5% on the
distributable profits of the Group’s
subsidiaries established in the PRC

Taxation

9. BiIE (%)

2012
20124
HK$'000 &% T 7T

R B A & 7 235,807

RREARABEZESEN O EA
MERFTERBABEFNZETIEA

52,907
ZEAHEENAFNHEYE (5,863)
ATHIR X A F IR R 2 5,796
BARRBANTRIBRZ (1,665)
RAFEESAAEFERIEN
MERE (4,618)
REREGREENTIEZE
3,851
BRATFENTRFEED
HETE (6,217)
RERKRERMHIEEED
HEgE 6,149
LAfE £ [E A #E O] (1,319)
BEAEBNFBEKLZHBARZ
A] 2R 5 ) 5% s+ B FE A5 B8
MR Z 5,790
| 54,811

(b) BRRA MR ERE 2EPAREK Z BN K

2011
20114
HK$’000 &% T 7T

230,663

54,837
(5,969)
3,949
(1,563)
(1,545)
1,916
(3,176)
6,372

(28,594)

4,198
30,425



9. BB (&)
) RBEEE  EABRBRIBBERERAE

9. Taxation (continued)
(c) Inland Revenue Department (“IRD”), in prior years, issued protective

profits tax assessments and additional tax proposals for the years
ended 29 February 1996 to 28 February 2005 with respect to the
disputes between certain subsidiaries of the Company with IRD
regarding the tax treatment of certain offshore income and agents
commission payments and promoter fees for prior years (the “Tax
Disputes”). The Group had established full provision for all
assessments and additional tax proposed issued by IRD in respect
of the Tax Disputes in the previous years. Provisions for tax
surcharges and interest/compounds totalling HK$32 million were
also made on the then outstanding balances of assessments and
proposed additional tax in prior years.

The Group submitted proposals to IRD on 30 April 2010 for
settlement of the Tax Disputes up to the year ended 28 February
2009 and these proposals were accepted by IRD. The Group’s
subsidiaries respectively received revised assessments on the Tax
Disputes totalling HK$67 million in August 2010. Furthermore, in the
letters received by the Group in October 2010, IRD agreed, upon
payment of compounds of HK$9 million, not to take any further action
under the Inland Revenue Ordinance against the Group in relation to
the Tax Disputes.

As the Tax Disputes have been fully settled, the excessive tax
provision and the related tax surcharge and interest/compounds
provision of HK$27 million and HK$19 million made in previous years
have been written back to the profit or loss in the statement of
comprehensive income for the year ended 28 February 2011.

REETHEBEAREMEREABRTEFECE
FEFRARREBERESNRRERZAZHK
BERIBERESIRZFFH (BB FED FHE
£1996F 2 A29 H | FEE#H £ 200552 H
28 HIEFE 7 IRE MRS T R BB IE
BE -MNBRIERNMBERRMBELZFAE
I REAMRIBEEE  ARBEE2HERA
FEFHEE AEERBTFEERKRN
ZABERRERBINNIBEL S LBE
32,000,000 7T 2 B H M I & KA hnELF 2
B -

REBR2010F4 A30 B A BIRLER -
ABRSRE E2009F2 A28 A IFFE 2 MBF
# O MZSE2CEBEREN - ASEW
BRI 20104 8 A UREIFE R 75 5 &

LS ETRERE - 48 80A 81 67,000,000 7T © Uit
Hh - RARATBFE2010F10 AEE Z TR -
HiERREAEB NI F4 £E% 9,000,000
TTHNEE  TEREBREGORBEFS
MRS EREEAITTE o

RRERB R BB FRDERR  RBE
FEEL 2 BERGEE KRB EH NE
K8 N, F) B 8 75 15 27,000,000 7T & 58
#:19,000,000 TEREE 201152 A28 H 1t
FEAOBRE2EABARENR
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10.
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Directors’ Remuneration
Directors’ remuneration for the year ended 29 February 2012 is as
follows:

Fees e

Salaries and other emoluments e RHE A
Performance related incentives HAZR IR M RE < 220
Contribution to defined contribution RE PR IRET IR

retirement plan

Included in the directors’ remuneration were fees of HK$1,080,000
(2011: HK$1,081,000) paid to the non-executive directors during the
year.

10. EEM <
HE2012F 229 LFEMESMeOT ¢

2012 2011
20124 2011
HK$'000 /&% T  HK$000 BT

1,080 1,081
5,990 7,198
4,260 4,157
30 48
11,360 12,484

EEMEBREFAIN TFIHERTESNRESEE
1,080,000 7T (2011 4F : /&% 1,081,000 7T) ©



10. Directors’ Remuneration (continued) 10.EEM < (®)

Contribution
to defined
Salaries  Performance contribution
and other related retirement
Fees  emoluments incentives plan Total
Hek BRR REHR
ik Hitgdl  BECRE  RIKGTEER ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT

2012 2012

Executive directors: HITEE !

Yau On Yee, Annie B & - 3,148 3,000 12 6,160

Erwin Steve Huang HEX - 1,080 540 - 1,620

Cheung Tse Kin, Michael R = 208 = 4 212

Lai Tsz Mo, Lawrence RTEH - 1,430 720 12 2,162

Chow Kwok Ying, Rachel™® |E5]Eskeau) - 124 - 2 126

- 5,990 4,260 30 10,280

Independent Non-executive directors: BIFHTES :

Chui Chi Yun, Robert EEC 360 - - - 360

Heng Ching Kuen, Franklin e 360 - - - 360

Chan Yue Kwong, Michael® B e @ 360 - - - 360
1,080 - - - 1,080
1,080 5,990 4,260 30 11,360
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10. Directors’ Remuneration (continued) 10. EEf € ()
Contribution
to defined
Salaries  Performance contribution
and other related retirement
Fees  emoluments incentives plan Total
Fek BHERIR REMHR
fizkn HibF®  BEzRE RGBT k)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BT BETT BETT BETT

2011 2011

Executive directors: HTEE:

Yau On Yee, Annie BRE - 3,059 3,000 12 6,071

Erwin Steve Huang =EK - 1,080 513 - 1,593

Cheung Tse Kin, Michael® KR - 756 - 12 768

Lai Tsz Mo, Lawrence BREH - 1,310 644 12 1,966

Chow Kwok Ying, Rachel EEE 0 - 993 - 12 1,005

- 7,198 4,157 48 11,403

Independent Non-executive directors: BIYFHITES :

Chui Chi Yun, Robert EEC 360 - - - 360

Peter George Brown® BLE? 174 - - - 174

Heng Ching Kuen, Franklin SEIFfE 360 - - - 360

Chan Yue Kwong, Michael® B e 187 - - - 187
1,081 - - - 1,081
1,081 7,198 4,157 48 12,484

1. Ms. Chow Kwok Ying, Rachel resigned as an Executive director on 1 May 2011. 1. R2011F5 A1 BARBLLBEARANTES -

2. Mr. Peter George Brown retired as an Independent Non-executive director on 25 August 2010. 2. 201048 A5 ABL AL ERENNAIBELIFNITES -

3. Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael appointed as an Independent Non-executive director on 25 August 3. 20108 A25 AMM N L EZ T AR R A B IERTES ©

2010.
4. Mr. Cheung Tse Kin, Michael resigned as an Executive director on 4 June 2011. 4. R2011F6 A4ARFRAEEBEARBNITES -
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10. Directors’ Remuneration (continued)

No emolument was paid by the Group to any director as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of office
during the years ended 29 February 2012 and 28 February 2011.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to
waive any remuneration during the years ended 29 February 2012 and

28 February 2011.

11. Individuals with Highest Emoluments
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three (2011: three)
are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 10. The aggregate
of the emoluments in respect of the other two (2011: two) individuals are

as follows:

Salaries and other emoluments

Performance related incentives

Contribution to defined contribution retirement
plan

SRR < 2R
FUE HBURIRET B R

10.EEM < (®)

11.

REZE2012F2 A29H N 2011F2 A28 H I F
B AfEBERTANESINNE  EARE
WANASKAEIMARNERER 2 BiE - sifEARERE
1.“‘-

0

o

il

b

REZE2012F2 298 & 2011F2A28H I F
B BEEENEARENEETMNNS 228 -

BeME AL

s mmMle AR 37 (20114 :38) B
B AHENSFBERMFI10AEE - H&p245
(20114 : 2%) ALHUB S BEEOT

2012 2011
20124 2011 4
HK$'000 B# T r  HK$000 BT

2,768 2,636
1,412 1,238

24 24
4,204 3,898
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11. Individuals with Highest Emoluments (continued) N ESHME AL @
The emoluments of the two (2011: two) individuals with the highest %24 (20114 : 2%) =Ml & A T BB & 72 A
emoluments are within the following bands: TEHEMR :
2012 2011
20124 20114
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AEL AB
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 711,000,001 7T £ % 1,500,000 7T 1 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 711,500,001 7T £ 8% 2,000,000 7T = -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 78 # 2,000,001 7T = # # 2,500,000 7T = -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 7 2,500,001 7T 2 7% %5 3,000,000 7T 1 1
2 2
No emolument was paid by the Group to any top five highest paid REZE2012F2 A29H % 201142 528 B [F4F
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as & AN BB AR B B 2 B A £ S AT
compensation for loss of office during the years ended 29 February 2012 & EABEEMAREMAREER 2 -
and 28 February 2011. SIE R E -
12. Profit for the Year Attributable to Owners of the 12. KARHEEABLTFERR
Company
The profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company included a RAREB ABEAFERFBIE-ZEIAR
profit of HK$157,542,000 (2011: HK$206,764,000) which has been dealt N A KR E AR R BB A E 157,542,000 7T
with in the financial statements of the Company. (2011 4F : ZF)5# 206,764,000 7T) °
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13. Dividends 13. RE

2012 2011
20124 20114
HK$'000 /&% T HK$'000 BT 7T

Interim dividend of HK$0.027 (2011: HK$0.027) A HAf% & B A% T @A B £ 0.027 7T

per ordinary share paid (20114 : 5¥0.027 1) 5,679 5,679
Proposed final dividend of HK$0.125 R AR ERRR BT AR T AR
(2011: HK$0.12) per ordinary share 750,125 0 (20114F « 7#&#0.127T) 26,292 25,240
31,971 30,919
The final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting period has not REFHEARREZKRBARBIARFLEAERE
been recognised as a liability at the end of reporting period. &7 ©
14. Earnings Per Share 14. 8RER
(a) Basic earnings per share (a) ERELXRER
The calculation of basic earnings per share attributable to owners of BRERBRNEEBAEENARATEEG A
the Company is based on the profit for the year attributable to JE(E ZF) B % 162,347,000 7T (2011 4F : B
owners of the Company in the amount of HK $162,347,000 (2011: 176,118,0007T) * AR FARAD EHIT LB 2
HK$176,118,000) and on the weighted average number of ordinary oA F 5 R 210,336,221 i (2011 4F -
shares of 210,336,221 (2011: 210,336,221 ordinary shares) in issued 210,336,221 fx L@k ) 5t & o

during the year.

(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) BREHEER
There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares in existence during #H =20129F2H29H &20114F2H28H I+
the years ended 29 February 2012 and 28 February 2011. FEAAEEMEELE TN ENEBRT
1T o
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15. Segment Reporting 15, 0 B ER&
(a) Information about segment profit, segment assets and segment (a) DEBEF « DEEBERDEHEBER
liabilities:
PRC (including Inter-segment
Hong Kong and Macau) Others elimination Consolidated
hE(BEEAREM) Hith HEEEHUE FaBE
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

2012  2011F  2012F  2011F 20125 2011F  2012F  2011F
HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000
ARETT  RRTT  ARTT  ARTT A¥Tr  A%Tr AT ART

Year ended 29/28 February EIt2H29/28H
Revenue from external customers TEIREFHUA 3,326,420 2,493,975 32,643 23,568 - - 3,359,063 2,517,543
Inter-segment revenue S ER YA 29,002 10,640 - - (29,002) (10,640 - -
Other revenue EBA 14,636 4,640 38 1,173 - - 14,674 5813
Reportable segment revenue ERE YA 3,370,058 2,509,255 32,681 24,741 (29,002)  (10,640) 3,373,737 2,523,356
Segment results DEbEE 247260 217,663 (2,076) (681) 245184 216,982
Write back of tax surcharge and HBHNBRAENE,/

interest/compounds provision IR A B - 19,389
Finance costs BHER (9,377) (5,708)
Taxation B (54,811)  (30,425)
Consolidated profit for the year AEELRART 180,996 200,238
Depreciation for the year KEEHE 53,438 41,847 1,105 329 54,543 42,176
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15. Segment Reporting (continued)

At 29/28 February
Segment assets
Deferred tax assets
Current tax assets

Consolidated total assets

Segment liabilities

Bank overdrafts — secured

Bank loans

Interest bearing payable
Deferred tax liabilities

Current tax liabilities

Obligations under finance leases
Employee benefit obligations

Consolidated total liabilities

Additions to non-current segment assets

H2A 29288
NHEE

ERHBEE
FHRRAE

RAAERE

HEEME
RITEX - AEM
ROTEH
SRR
ELHBRRE
AERARE
BAHEAE
EEBNES

FRABRE

EMzERBHBEE

(b) Information about major customers
The turnover from the Group’s largest customer amounted to less
than 10% of the Group’s total turnover for the current and prior year.

PRC (including
Hong Kong and Macau)
hE(BEEEREM)

2012 2011

20126 20115
HK$'000  HK$'000
BETT AETT
2,119,027 1,784,840
630,871 552,983

90,163 44,539

15. D EPR/ e (&)

Inter-segment
Others elimination

Hity DEHEEHEEE e
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012
2012 201145 20124 2011 20124
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
BETT BT A%t BT A%

39,196 39,841 (85,404) (75,774) 2,072,819
21,036

1,287
2,095,092

87,336 77,040 (85,404)  (75,774) 632,803
44,063
269,246
120,000
24,380
39,895
6,731

19,727
1,156,845

112 3,253 90,275

(b) BREEEFZEH

Consolidated
Ya

2011

20114
HK$'000
BETT

1,748,907
19,015
1,349

1,769,271
554,249

18,054
193,880

16,837
37,374

3,706
12,745

836,845

47,792

RAFEREFERBAEERREF 2%

RBEAREBEXELN10% -
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16. Property, Plant and Equipment 16. W% - BERRE

(a) The Group (a) ~&H
Furniture,
Land and fixtures and Plant and Motor
buildings  equipment  machinery vehicles Total
Bk R
T REF NE#E  RE RS "E k)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
BT BETT BT B%Tr BB Trx
COST B
At 1 March 2010 20105314 95,188 295,347 12,730 3,704 406,969
Exchange adjustments fE 5 - 6,532 17 64 6,613
Additions =E - 46,572 955 265 47,792
Disposals & - (1,358) (72) (163) (1,593)
At 28 February 2011 and 1 March 2011 201152 A28 B
201163 H1H 95,188 347,093 13,630 3,870 459,781
Exchange adjustments 0 3 A - 7,207 57 59 7,323
Additions £E = 63,861 1,165 2,123 67,149
Disposals HE = (2,575) (123) (194) (2,892)
At 29 February 2012 »201262H29H 95,188 415,586 14,729 5,858 531,361



16. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

(a) The Group (continued)

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
At 1 March 2010

Exchange adjustments

Charge for the year

Disposals

At 28 February 2011 and 1 March 2011

Exchange adjustments
Charge for the year
Disposals

At 29 February 2012
NET BOOK VALUE
At 29 February 2012

At 28 February 2011

EiHE
R2010F3A1H
[ 5 F
REEHE
HE
R2011F2H28B &
201143718
BEE 3¢, 3 2
AEEHE
HE
R2012F 2 A29H

IRERE
R2012F2 F29H

M2011F2H28H

16. % - MERRE @)
(a) K@ (48)

Land and
buildings

i REF
HK$'000
BETT

30,626

1,814

32,440

1,814

34,254

60,934

62,748

Furniture,
fixtures and
equipment
B RKE
ik
HK$000
BETT

242,716
6,051
39,727

(1,193)

287,301
6,356
51,881

(2,504)

343,034

72,552

59,792

Plant and
machinery

N
HK$'000
BB

12,155
10

(67)

12,540
62
515

(120)

12,997

1,732

1,090

Motor
vehicles

i
HK$'000
BT

2,879
47
193
(157)

2,962
36
333

(187)

3,144

2,714

908

Total

it
HK$'000
BETT

288,376
6,108
42,176
(1,417)

335,243
6,454
54,543
(2,811)

393,429

137,932

124,538
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16. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued) 16. Y13 - BE KRB @)

(b) The Company (b) &2 F]
Furniture, fixtures
and equipment
BRI - HE KR
HK$’000 &% 7T
cosT R
At 1 March 2010, 28 February 2011 and 1 March 2011 R2010F3A1H 2011F2AH28H &
20113 A1H 9,269
Additions HE 532
At 29 February 2012 201242 H29H 9,801
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ZEHE
At 1 March 2010 720103 A1H 6,873
Charge for the year REEHE 2,198
At 28 February 2011 and 1 March 2011 201142 A28 A %2011 3H1H 9,071
Charge for the year REEHE 331
At 29 February 2012 201242 A29H 9,402
NET BOOK VALUE BREFE
At 29 February 2012 201242 A29H 399
At 28 February 2011 H201142 728 198



16. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)
(c) The analysis of net book value of land and buildings is as

follows:

In Hong Kong
—Long leases
— Medium-term leases

Other parts of the PRC
—Long leases

EEE
-RHHEE
-HhHEE

FER B H b3t 7
- RHHE

At the end of the reporting period, the property ownership certificates
in respect of the property interests held in other parts of the PRC
have not been issued by the relevant PRC government authority.
The net book value of the properties was HK$2 (2011: HK$2) at the

end of the reporting period.

(d) During the year, addition to furniture, fixtures, equipment and motor
vehicles financed by new finance leases was HK$5,747,000 (2011:
HK$3,645,000). At 29 February 2012, the carrying amount of the
office equipment held under finance leases of the Group amounted
to approximately HK$8,349,000 (2011: HK$4,045,000).

16. % - MERRE @)
(c) MERESENITAT

2012 2011
20124 20114
HK$'000 /&% T 7T HK$'000 BTt

6,268 6,439
54,666 56,309
60,934 62,748
60,934 62,748

REHEB - BRMBEBERASPDRREDH
Hinth F i BN MER T L EHEREE
BHE - ZEVERFLEENEEFERS
27t (20114 : BH27T) »

(d)y RER - LUBMEREMFTEZGM HER
/A & B 5,747,000 7T (2011 4F « 8 ¥
3,645,000 7T) © 7201242 429 HIA G &R
ERXRERAEZERHENEREEELNASE
8,349,000 7T (2011 £ : &% 4,045,000 7T) °
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17.

140

Interests in Subsidiaries

17. B D Bl S

The Company

ViN/NE]
2012 2011
20124 2011

HK$'000 /&% T 7T  HK$000 BT

Unlisted shares/capital contributions, at cost JEETMRRG,HE - RARER 712,742 712,742
Due from subsidiaries FEUL BT R B BR X 386,243 413,459
1,098,985 1,126,201
Impairment loss EEE (160,687) (315,141)
938,298 811,060

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and B A RIR IR T IR - 2 8 K I 47 & 8 20 H

have no fixed terms of repayment.



17. Interests in Subsidiaries (continued)

17. (B A R = (@)

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group. The

class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

Name of company

NSIEL

Beijing Qi Li Yun Jewellery
Company Limited#/**
IERENEREER AR

Beijing Tse Sui Luen Jewellery
Company Limited (“BTSL")#/*

IR IHBMIAEER AR
(TR swEs 1)

Concepts Management (H.K.) Limited
BIRER(EB)BRAR

Excellent Ford Development Limited (“EF”)
BHERBR AR ([EHERE])

Guangzhou Hong Yun Jewellery
Company Limited#/**
BNEEHEGR AR *

Guangzhou Jingshi Jewellery
Company Limited*

BENBEAREEHARAR"

Guangzhou Tai Yi Trading
Company Limited#/*
BMNREBHEFRAR"

Place of
establishment/
incorporation
and operation

B eV sl ava
RiSE S
PRC

i

PRC
F

Hong Kong
o

Hong Kong
BB

PRC

ER

PRC
np

PRC
&

Particulars of issued
and paid up capital
BETRER
AR

Renminbi (‘RMB”)

1,000,000
AE#1,000,000 7

United States dollars
(“US$”) 2,000,000
2,000,000 7T

HK$1
BT

HK$10,000
78#10,0007T

RMB1,000,000
AFR# 1,000,000 7T

HK$18,000,000
75 18,000,000 7T

HK$8,000,000
755 8,000,000 7T

TRAFIIHAEBENEE BEXBBEEEXN

FENOMBRRFERE - BRABEAEIN

MDA E B -

Group’s effective
ownership interest
REBENER

AR

2012 2011
2012F 20114
100%°  80.46%°
100%°®  80.46%°
100%@ 100%¢
100%°  80.46%°
100%°®  80.46%°
100%° 100%°
100%°  80.46%°

FrisE

Principal activities

TEEH

PRC jewellery retailing
RPBEEEKRETE

Jewellery manufacturing
and trading
KEHERESD

Trademarks holding

FARR

Jewellery trading
REES

PRC jewellery retailing
RABERERETE

Manufacturing and distribution
of jewellery
IRERER D H

PRC jewellery trading
RAABERERETE
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17. Interests in Subsidiaries (continued)

Name of company

NTENS ]

Guangzhou Xi Yun Jewellery
Company Limited#/**
BNEEHREGR AR
Guangzhou Xiang Yun Jewellery
Company Limited#/**
EMEEREERAR

Impromptus Asia Pacific Limited

Infinite Assets Corp. (“IAC”)

Liberty Mark Limited

Shanghai Fu Yun Jewellery
Company Limited#/**
FEREREARLAA

142

Place of
establishment/
incorporation
and operation
vy aiiinava
RS &2

PRC
F E

PRC
FE

Hong Kong
Bk

British Virgin

Islands (“BVI”)

RERZEE

(B ES )

BVI
KBRS

PRC
 E

17. B A R (@)

Particulars of issued
and paid up capital
BEITRER
BAFE

RMB2,000,000
AER#2,000,0007T

RMB3,000,000
AR 3,000,000 7T

HK$10,000
7% 10,000 7T

HK$277,254
B 277 254 7T

US$H1
=

RMB1,000,000
A% 1,000,000 7T

Group’s effective
ownership interest
REEHERR
P RS
2012 2011
20126 20115

100%°® 80.46%°

100%° 80.46%°

100%° 100%°

100%°® 80.46%°

100%° 100%°

100%°® 80.46%°

Principal activities

TEEH

PRC jewellery retailing
RABRREHRETE

PRC jewellery trading
RHABIRERER S

Goldsmith and jewellery
trading
TeRHEES

Investment holding

REZER

Investment holding

REER

PRC jewellery retailing
RPEBEERETE



Name of company

NSES ]

Shenzhen Jingyan Jewellery
Company Limited#/*
RYETHIRE B BR A A"

TSL Investment (B.V.l.) Limited

Tse Sui Luen Jewellery
Company Limited (“TSLJ”)
LR BE AR QA ([ RE])

Tse Sui Luen Investment (China)
Limited (“TSL China”)

A ERE (B BRAA
([ = )

Tse Sui Luen Jewellery Retailing
Sdn. Bhd.

TSL Management Services Limited
HinEE B RBER QA

TSL Jewellery (Export)
Company Limited
WIRBIAE (H Q) BR AR

17. Interests in Subsidiaries (continued)

Place of
establishment/
incorporation
and operation
BV =aiiisava
RS &2
PRC

th

BVI
KBRS
Hong Kong

e

BVI
RBRLES

Malaysia
HRP TR

Hong Kong
T8

Hong Kong
e

Particulars of issued
and paid up capital
BEITRER
B

HK$8,000,000
75 %5 8,000,000 7T

HK$1,000
751,000 7T

HK$34,0004##
755 34,000 JT ##

US$6,863
6,86337C

Malaysian Ringgits
1,000,000

5 2R P8 e
1,000,000 7T

HK$2

B2

HK$19,824,775
75%19,824,775 7T

17. (B A R = (@)

Group’s effective
ownership interest

REBHNER

FrB R
2012 2011
2012%F 20114
100%°  100%°
100% 100%
100%°  100%°
100%© 80.46%°
100%°  100%®
100%°  100%®
100%°  100%°

Principal activities

TEEH

Manufacturing and
distribution of jewellery
RBEEN

Investment holding
B

Jewellery trading
and retailing
KEESHLTE

Investment holding

REER

Jewellery retailing
KREZE

Management and
administrative services
B RITEARTS

Jewellery export
KEHO
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17. Interests in Subsidiaries (continued)

Place of
establishment/
incorporation Particulars of issued
Name of company and operation and paid up capital
o/ MR BETRER
NCIEL ] R4 i B RS
TSL Jewellery (Macau) Limited Macau Macau Patacal
TSLIRE CRFI) AR DA SEFT (‘MOP”) 100,000
ST 100,000 7T
TSL Jewellery (H.K.) Co. Limited Hong Kong HK$40,000,490
(“TSL (HK)") B 75 % 40,000,490 7T
HIHBAIRE (BB) GRAA
(I (B8 D)
TSL Manufacturing and Distribution Hong Kong HK$67,000,000
Limited (“TSL M&D") B 75 % 67,000,000 7T
B EE R D EER QA
(MAmBRER D]
TSL Properties Management Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000
HIHBYEERERAF BE Y8 #1,0007T
# Unofficial translation
* Registered under the laws of the PRC as foreign enterprise
** Registered under the laws of the PRC as limited liability company
@ Indirectly held through subsidiaries
## In addition to the ordinary shares, TSLJ has issued 36,574 deferred shares of HK$1,000 each.
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17. B A R (@)

##

Group'’s effective
ownership interest
REEH B
FrA fEE = Principal activities
2012 2011
2012F 20115 FEEH

100%° 100%® Jewellery retailing
in Macau
REPFIRERESTE

100%° 100%® Jewellery retailing
KEZE

100%®@ 100%® Investment holding,
procurement,
manufacturing and
distribution of jewellery
REER - R BBER
DIHIRE

100%° 100%® Property holding and

investment
REMERKRE
FIER S
BIRF AR AINERE

RiPEEFEMABREERR
BB B A R

REBARSN  HIHBIAE B #1736,574 M BB 1,000 T2
IRIER -



18. Other Asset

Membership and seat in the Chinese Gold and
Silver Exchange Society

19. Inventories

Raw materials
Work in progress
Finished goods

TIRXBHGEREREN

AR
E&m

SR

At 29 February 2012, the inventories held by 6 subsidiaries (the
“Subsidiaries”) amounting to HK$823,555,000 (2011: HK$645,235,000)
had been pledged as a continuing security of the debts arising from the
supply of polished diamonds and precious stones by Rosy Blue Hong
Kong Limited (“Rosy Blue HK”) to the Subsidiaries (the “Debts”) from

time to time (see also note 32(b) below).

8. Hitb&E&E

The Group
REE
2012 2011
20124 20114

HK$'000 /&% T 7T HK$'000 B8 Tt

500 500
19. 78
The Group
AEHE
2012 2011
20124F 2011 4

HK$'000 /&% T HK$'000 B8 Tt

107,166 136,918
56,141 101,020
1,429,909 1,030,559
1,593,216 1,268,497

201262 4298 NRME R A ([ZEME
REINBEZHEEE TR EEEEAAY
823,555,0007C(20114F : /&% 645,235,0007T)
{E A Rosy Blue Hong Kong Limited ([ Rosy Blue
HKD) TR mZEWNBAREERRERREE
ERMEEZER(ZER]D 2HERE (NG
2B 5E32(b)) °
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20. Trade and Other Receivables

146

Trade receivables

Other receivables, deposits and prepayments
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts (note (c))

Long-term rental deposits classified as

non-current assets

HAb YR - e RIAR R

R (FHEE ()

RHHERESDER
FRBEE

(a) Included in trade and other receivables are trade receivables (net of
allowance for bad and doubtful debts) with the following ageing

analysis, based on the invoice date:

0 to 30 days

31 to 60 days
61 to 90 days
Over 90 days

Total trade receivables

Other receivables, deposits and prepayments

(note (d))

0£30K
31E£60K
61E 90K
23890 K

JE Wi R K 0

HAb YR - e RIBN IR

(MI5E(d))

Apart from retail customers, the Group allows an average credit

period from 30 to 90 days to other customers.

20. FE W R R I HL At R R

The Group
RE

2012 2011
20124 2011 4
HK$'000 /% T 7T  HK$000 BTt
160,458 173,031
79,524 75,884
239,982 248,915
(1,323) (15,478)
238,659 233,437
(23,126) -
215,533 233,437

() B FETA B UK R R e L A B KUK A0 ) R T BR 3K
(EMBRRERER) NEREZAHFED

BREROATIAT -
The Group
rEH

2012 2011

20124 20114

HK$'000 B# T r  HK$000 BEE T T

137,863 143,029

12,300 6,256

2,177 1,476

7,795 7,792

160,135 158,553

78,524 74,884

238,659 233,437
BRIEEBERIN AEEATEMERFHH

30 £ 90 RAVIRARHA -



20. Trade and Other Receivables (continued)
(b) The ageing analysis of the trade receivables that are neither

individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired R BT RVER(E
Less than 6 months past due B 6E A
Over 6 months past due mHEAE6 E A

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide
range of diversified customers for whom there was no recent history
of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number
of independent customers that have a good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience the directors are of the opinion
that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in credit quality
and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over those
balances.

The directors consider that the trade and other receivables are
approximate their fair values.

20. EWERA R H b E R ()
(b) K ERIKEERT AREY BREZR &

BT
The Group
AEE
2012 2011
2012F 2011 4

HK$'000 B#F7T  HK$000 & T T

158,877 154,779
1,211 3,758
47 16
160,135 158,553

b 48 38 3 SO0 (B 2 8 W B R B AT B 52 49
CHRZEATFAER -

78 BB 1% AR ORU(E 2 B R ok B 1) A R [ A+t
RLHERIF2ETHELEFPEH - RIBBHE
K BEERREANZFHRIEHIRER
B WA EEERYERLERES
A B AR IR AR A A B E - REEIW
BERZSERBATNERRIEMEREE

S o

Bl

EERR BUERFEEMBEBUEFREELRR
ERE -
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20. Trade and Other Receivables (continued) 20. F& W R X I EL At PE WURR ()
(c) Movements in allowance for bad and doubtful debts during the year (c) FRRZRBEB 2 EEMT -

were as follows:

The Group
REH
2012 2011
20124 20114
HK$'000 /&% 7t HK$000 BT T
At 1 March M3A1H 15,478 15,593
Reversal of allowance for bad and SR 422 B 48 4 [o] %
doubtful debts (14,155) (115)
At 29/28 February 2 A 29/28 H 1,323 15,478
(d) Details of other receivables, deposits and prepayments are as (d) EAbEUGR ~ =& MTER KB T ¢
follows:
The Group The Company
REE /NG|
2012 2011 2012 2011
20124 20114 20124 20114
HK$'000 A% Tz HK$000 BT HK$000 E#FTr HK$000 BT T
Other receivables H At FEU R 6,600 8,540 = -
Deposits b7En 58,636 50,130 - 1
Prepayments SiE N 13,288 16,214 1,384 1,761
78,524 74,884 1,384 1,762
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20. Trade and Other Receivables (continued)
(e) The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

Hong Kong dollars B
Chinese Renminbi AR
United States dollars e
Others HAtb

The carrying amounts of the Company’s other receivables is
denominated in HKS.

21. Cash at Bank and in Hand

20. EWERA R H b E R ()
(e) ZN£[E LA A 65 M5 518 2 JE UK BR 3% I L 4th e
WEKBE RN T :

2012 2011
20124 20114
HK$'000 /&% T 7T HK$'000 BTt

66,000 52,901
163,972 143,598
6,449 34,141
2,238 2,797
238,659 233,437

ARz B RE ER AR EHE -

Q. BTEFIRES

The Group The Company
REH /NG|
2012 2011 2012 2011
20124 20114 20124 20114
HK$'000 % F7L  HK$'000 ¥ T HK$'000 BT HK$000 B4 Fir

Cash at bank and in hand RITERERE

102,512

121,935 134 130
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21.

150

Cash at Bank and in Hand (continued)
The carrying amount of the Group’s cash at bank and in hand are
denominated in the following currencies:

Hong Kong Dollars T
Chinese Renminbi AR
Malaysian Ringgits BRI T
United States Dollars ETT
Others HAtb

The carrying amount of the Company’s cash at bank and in hand are
denominated in HK$.

Chinese Renminbi is not freely convertible into other currencies.
However, under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sales and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange Chinese Renminbi for
other currencies through banks to settle the approved trade payables
and dividend payments.

2. RITERRBE S (H)

REBUARIEEEZ RITFER LIRS HAB L
™

2012 2011
20124 2011
HK$'000 /&% T  HK$000 BT

23,215 27,156
75,082 89,228
2,655 4,012
638 655
922 884
102,512 121,935

RAZRITEREREREEAEERE -

hEARBTEEEAMEEBHLE - Al B
15 B SINGE B3R D) S A TE - B E RATEEIRR
o AKEREBRRITHEARE LMK EMER
A B EHAZ B R R D 4T



22. Trade and Other Payables 22, BRI R HMENSK

(a) The ageing analysis of trade and other payables, based on the date (a) BIBRF MR EMENZUIZRKNEHBTED
of receipt of goods, is as follows: REOTAT -
The Group
REE
2012 2011
20124 20114F

HK$'000 B#F7T  HK$000 & T T

0 to 30 days 0E 30K 42,851 53,795
31 to 60 days 31 260K 49,666 85,235
61 to 90 days 61 290K 48,887 48,144
Over 90 days BB 90K 245,964 150,676
Total trade payables FERTER R AR 387,368 337,850
Other payables and accruals (note (b)) ﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁ &Jﬁd’%ﬁﬁ (FH7E (b)) 245,435 216,399

632,803 554,249
The directors consider that the carrying amounts of the trade and EERA ENERNEMEMKEE QAL
other payables are approximate their fair values. BEE
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22. Trade and Other Payables (continued) 22 EBRF R HEMENSRK (@)
(b) Details of other payables and accruals are as follows: (b) EAbERFR L ETEMHBRMANT
The Group The Company
REHE PN
2012 2011 2012 2011
20124 20114 20124 20114
HK$'000 B¥F7T  HK$000 BT HK$000 BT HK$000 KT T
Others payables HAbFER R 72,536 74,209 580 57
Customer deposits BERES 9,223 9,891 = -
Provision for liabilities BERE 22,719 13,867 - -
Accruals BB 140,957 118,432 961 1,298
245,435 216,399 1,541 1,355
(c) The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other payables are (c) AEEUTRE®FHE 2 A BRI E At fE
denominated in the following currencies: FRERMEIN T -

2012 2011
20124F 20114
HK$'000 ¥ F7c  HK$000 T T
Hong Kong dollars ok 194,927 143,551
Chinese Renminbi AR 151,654 146,722
United States dollars E3v 281,262 260,803
Others EAh 4,960 3,173
632,803 554,249

The carrying amounts of the Company’s other payables is RAT 2 HMEMREEEEASEETE -

denominated in HK$.
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23. Bank Loans and Overdrafts

At 29 February 2012, interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts were

due for repayment as follows:

Overdrafts repayable on demand

Portion of term loans and trade financing due for
repayment within one year (note)

Term loans due for repayment after one year

RITEARENRER

23 BRITEFREX

MR20126F2 4290 « s BIRITER NS B H
BEEWT :

The Group
REE
2012 2011
20124 20114

HK$'000 B#F7T  HK$000 & T T

AR—FARHREE 2SS EHER

RE SrE ()

AR —FREHEE 2R

— After 1 year but within 2 years -15&E2FR

— After 2 years but within 5 years - 2B BEFFERN
Bank loans RITER

Note: The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan

agreements and ignore the effect of any repayment on demand clause.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank loans and overdrafts are

denominated in HK$.

The interest-bearing bank borrowings, including the term loans and trade
financing repayable on demand, are carried at amortised cost. None of
the portion of term loans due for repayment after one year which contain
a repayment on demand clause and that is classified as a current liability

is expected to be settled within one year.

2
J=WFN

44,063 18,054
227,546 137,180
15,000 15,000
26,700 41,700
269,246 193,880

Mz  ENSBENDRERBHEAREEERAFE  IEAR
EfREREEGRZZE -

AEBZRITEF LB REEEEFHE
ARRTEE(BREEREELEHERKE
ZEE) RBHEKATIE - R ER —F18E

HEZERSRERERGFIRDOBR/RBAE
ZEDEMEF IR —FREE -
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23. Bank Loans and Overdrafts (continued) 2. RITERKRELZ (B

All of the banking facilities are subject to the fulfilment of covenants
relating to certain of the Group’s statement of financial position ratios, as
are commonly found in lending arrangements with financial institutions. If
the Group was to breach the covenants the drawn down facilities would
become repayable on demand. In addition, certain of the Group’s term
loan agreements contain clauses which give the lender the right at its
sole discretion to demand immediate repayment at any time irrespective
of whether the Group has complied with the covenants and met the
scheduled repayment obligations.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants, is up
to date with the scheduled repayments of the term loans and does not
consider it is probable that the bank will exercise its discretion to demand
repayment for so long as the Group continues to meet these
requirements. Further details of the Group’s management of liquidity risk
are set out in note 34(a)(iii). As at 29 February 2012 none of the
covenants relating to drawn down facilities had been breached (2011:
Nil).
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PIARTRERIXTARAAEEE THBEAR R R
RUERZRAERBETAR - MitH RN ESE
WRRI L 2 BERY - (WARBIE R - ik
BREREAREREE - 1o ARBETE
HERBHREBHR TERAEN A 2 EISHR
ERABFEEZGK  TRAEEREEETR
AR ETIREEREAS

AEETHERGLTETHERR  £5ETTE
HERCBTERET  URARSAEEHES
BFZEBR - RITTAAIBEITHEEREES K
B - BRASEERRBECRER Z#E—TFF
&SR M 5 34(a)(iii) - 7A2012F 2 4291 © #HE
ERBEEEARERE R (2011F : &) o



24. Obligations Under Finance Leases
At 29 February 2012, the Group had obligations under finance leases

repayable as follows:

Within 1 year

After 1 year but within 2 years
After 2 years but within 5 years

24, hEHERE

H2012F2 A29H - AEBEAOMERERERN

BT
2012 2011
2012 20114

Interest Interest

Present value expense Present value expense
of the minimum relating to Total minimum ~ of the minimum relating to Total minimum
lease payments future periods  lease payments  lease payments future periods  lease payments
REEE AR RIEES KEHE BikHRN REEE
NRHE MEXH DEEEE NHBE MEXH NpEE
HK$'000 A% FT HK$000 BT HKS$000 B¥% Tt HK$000 A% FT HK$000 BT HKS000 BTt
1ER 4,179 230 4,409 1,881 134 2,015
1F&2FR 1,829 70 1,899 1,811 43 1,854
2EREEA 723 26 749 14 - 14
2,552 9% 2,648 1,825 43 1,868
6,731 326 7,057 3,706 177 3,883

The Group leases furniture, fixture and equipment under finance leases
expiring within three years (note 16(d)). Interest rates are fixed at the
contractual rates and thus exposed the Group to fair value interest rate
risk. At the end of each lease term, the Group has the option to purchase
the assets at a price deemed to be a bargain purchase option. None of
the leases included contingent rentals. All finance lease payments are

denominated in HK$.

The Group’s finance lease payables are secured by the charge over the

leased assets.

AEBEBRIFARM B EHERBEM
HERRE(ME16) - MEEREHF X
BAKERH R ENERER - NEHERAER
B AEEERBIZRAEEREBZERBE
ZEE - HEXTERIAEE FBERERE

IAEH BB

AEBERNBERENHBAZHEEEMAR

A
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25. Employee Benefit Obligations
(a) Long service payments

156

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group is obliged
to make lump sum payments on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances to certain employees who have completed at least
five years of service with the Group. The amount payable is
dependent on the employees’ final salary and years of service, and
is reduced by entitlements accrued under the Group’s retirement
plan that are attributable to contributions made by the Group. The
Group does not set aside any assets to fund any remaining
obligations. The long service payments are paid out from the Group’s
cash in hand when such payments are required.

The latest actuarial valuation specifically designated for the Group’s
employees were completed by a qualified actuary, Towers Watson
Hong Kong Limited, as at 29 February 2012, using the projected unit
credit method.

(i) The amount recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position is as follows:

Present value of defined benefit obligations 51 5 #& 7|2 76 th IR (&

25. EERANEK
(a) EHRES

REEE(ERRBEGL)  HAKREEETER
TERLIEREASERBELAFNETE
T BEAUBREFRNFARZFEIXN
RS BNSREZETNERESM
MR HFHE - WK A FIEA SR BUIRIKET
R RT A ARBEELHKHED o
ARG B3 B T BB (AR B B A S AR (AT EL R A
EHLR - ERBHRELANTE  RERBKS
TIRAKE 2 FERE AT

RASBEREMBRVBOHBEMAEDHE
ERBEMBERUEEERAAN20124F
2 A29 AXABRF B ERATTAX ©

() EAREMBIRRBREZOHBENT

The Group
REE
2012 2011
20124 2011 4F

HK$'000 /&% 7T  HK$'000 B8 Tt

19,727 12,745



25. Employee Benefit Obligations (continued) 25 BEERAZEL (@)

(a) Long service payments (continued) (a) REABRE £ (&)
(i) Movements in the net liabilities recognised in the consolidated (i) EErE BN mEREROBEFEE D
statement of financial position are as follows: mnr
The Group
rEHE
2012 2011
20124 20114
HK$'000 &% Fc  HK$000 B F T
At 1 March M3A1H 12,745 11,152
Expense recognised in the profit or loss fEfre 2 AREK 2185
in consolidated statement of TR H (KIFE8(b))
comprehensive income (note 8(b)) 6,982 1,593
At 29/28 February "2 A 29/28 H 19,727 12,745
(iiiy Expense/(reversal of expense)recognised in the profit or loss in (i) EHRE 2 HRABRE CEZEROX
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income is as B (ZHEE) DT
follows:
The Group
REHE

2012 2011
20124 20114
HK$'000 ¥ F7t  HK$000 B F T
Current service cost AN E RIS AR 190 32
Interest cost FMEER 354 299
Net actuarial losses recognised BERGHEEBE TR 6,438 1,474

Long setvice payment benefit made net MK RES 2 RERG SR
of MPF benefits = (212)

6,982 1,593
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25. Employee Benefit Obligations (continued) 5. BEERARK (@)
(a) Long service payments (continued) (a) REIRKES ()
(iv) The expense is recognised in the following line items in the profit (iv) THETIGE2EABARER ZIBREE
or loss in the statement of comprehensive income: ARER -
The Group
REHE
2012 2011
20124 20114
HK$'000 B T 0 HK$'000 BTt
Cost of goods sold SHER A 969 233
Selling expenses HEEMA 1,166 312
Administrative expenses T E A 4,847 1,048
6,982 1,593
(v) The principal actuarial assumptions used as at 29 February 2012 (v) 20122 529 B E AN T ERE MR
(expressed as weighted average) are as follows: (CADNFEFEHEERT)WOT -
The Group
REHE
2012 2011
20124 20114
Discount rate AhIR K 1.3% 2.8%
Future salary increases KRR & g
Year 2011 20114 - 4.5%
Year 2012 20124 5.0% 4.5%
Year 2013 and thereafter 2013 A& 5.0% 4.5%
Return of MPF balances SRIE D A ERE ¥R 5.0% 4.5%
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5. EERANER (&)

(b) REMRRIKEE

25. Employee Benefit Obligations (continued)
(b) Defined contribution retirement plan

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the
MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction
of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a
defined contribution retirement scheme administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HK$20,000.

The Group also participates in defined contribution retirement
benefits schemes for all qualifying employees in the PRC and
Malaysia. The assets of the schemes are held separately from those
of the Group in funds under the control of independent trustees.

The Group’s total contributions to these schemes charged to the
profit or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
during the year ended 29 February 2012 amounted to HK$7,288,000
(2011: HK$5,864,000) representing contributions payable by the
Group to the schemes at the appropriate rates set by the local
government of the subsidiaries.

REBIZRBEBCEH AR EED DA
RE - AREBEEE(RBIEIERANES
Mg EATRSFE([REEE]) - 98
BerrE R —EARATEIERKTE BB
MZTAEE - RIBBESHE BERE
BREHAEREBSBEA BN 5% M EIED
HE - T AMERA R LR &S 20,000

JG °

REBENAMEFEARSRATEERNIE
B2m—(ERATEHFENRTE - FAENEE
BYAAREBNEET FRABYZEAR
BERER-

REZE20124F2 4298 IEFE - REB AL
FSEFEIFTE 2 R A8 58 /B 1 7,288,000 T
(20114 : B 5,864,0007C) * WEEL4RE
PHEBRABERZIBEZNR - LERTIAEE
BREM B AR RBUT E BN RED -
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26. Deferred Tax (Assets)/Liabilities

160

(a) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised

The Group

The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position and their movements
during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax arising from:

At 1 March 2010

Charged/(credited) to consolidated 7474 B%5I% /(T A)
profit or loss (note 9(a))

Exchange difference

At 28 February 2011
and 1 March 2011

Charged/(credited) to consolidated #4453/ (T A)
profit or loss (note 9(a))

Exchange difference

At 29 February 2012

ERRIBRE -
R2010%381H

GELEN
5

R2011F25288 %
2011F3A1H

(Fi5%9(a))
[EHRAZ
20122 4298

Depreciation
in excess of
depreciation
allowances
BBITE
SHEN
8
HK$'000
BETT

(6,161)

467
(197)

(5,891)

(2,011)
(163)

(8,065)

Employee
benefit
obligations

EEBH

K
HK$'000
BRI

(1,840)

(269)

(2,103)

(1,152)

(3,255)

26 ELEBIE(EE) BE

(@)

Provision for
inventories

FRE®E
HK$'000
AR

(6,431)

1,902
(169)

(4,698)

(1,171)
(75)

(5,944)

ERREEREEENERE
KL
TEHREMBRNBREERNELT (EE) 8
BEED RERNHES T
Withholding
tax on
undistributed Other
profits of  temporary
Tax losses  subsidiaries  differences Total
NG
ROWBHE  AEH
HEERE BIMEH EE2 fias]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETTL  ERTT  ABTT AETR
(725) 11,939 (6,057) (9,275)
490 4,198 (161) 6,633
- 777 53 464
(285) 16,914 (6,165) (2,178)
130 5,790 3,772 5,358
55 356 9) 164
(50) 23,060 (2,402) 3,344



26. Deferred Tax (Assets)/Liabilities (continued)
(a) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised (continued)
The Group (continued)

Net deferred tax assets recognised on the TR B TR R R FER R
consolidated statement of financial position — JEERIIE & & FE

Net deferred tax liabilities recognised on the  7E454 B A = MR
consolidated statement of financial position ~ EFEF 18 & (&FE

At the end of the reporting period, the aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with undistributed earnings of
subsidiaries for which deferred tax liabilities have not been
recognised is HK$80,162,000 (2011: HK$54,723,000). No liability
has been recognised in respect of these differences because the
Group is in a position to control the timing of reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that such differences will not
be reversed in the foreseeable future.

2. EEFE (EE) BB @)

(a) CEREBELEREEEMAE(E)

= ] 43 )
AEE (&)

2012 2011
20124 20114
HK$'000 /&% T 7T HK$'000 BTt

(21,036) (19,015)
24,380 16,837
3,344 (2,178)

RERER - BEHEB AR R DR Z A8 i d
AERECEHBEABCERERABY
80,162,0007C(20114F : &#54,723,0007T) °
AR AREEREME SRR TREE REA
ZEEZBEIARARER ] RAGREE - &
ME=EmRAAE-
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2. EERIE(EE) BEW)
(a) CRREBELHELEEANSE(B)

26. Deferred Tax (Assets)/Liabilities (continued)
(a) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised (continued)

The Company

The components of deferred tax assets recognised in the Company’s

EIN

=4

statement of financial position and movements during the year are as A N ENESEEBOT -

follow:

EARRPBHRARBRRERNELERIBEE

Depreciation in

excess of

depreciation

allowances

R E

RRRENITE

HK$’000 ¥ 7T

Deferred tax arising from: RETRIERE -

At 1 March 2010 #R2010F3 A1 H (116)
Credited to Company’s profit or loss TEAREEETTA (18)
At 28 February 2011 and 1 March 2011 MH2011F2H28H %2011 43 51H (134)
Charged to Company’s profit or loss AR T EZE R 84
At 29 February 2012 R2012F2 529 H (50)



26. Deferred Tax (Assets)/Liabilities (continued) 26 EERE (BE) AfE e
(b) Deferred tax assets not recognised (b) RERELERIEEE
The components of unrecognised deferred tax assets at the year end RELB 2 RKERELERBEER T ¢
date are as follows:

The Group
REH
2012 2011
20124 20114

HK$'000 B#F7T  HK$000 BT T

Depreciation allowances in excess HBEERITENITE AR

of related depreciation 8 8
Tax losses HIAEE 15,560 14,635
Others EAh 471 407
Net deferred tax assets not recognised FAERNELEFIBEEFE 16,039 15,050
The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets of HK$16,039,000 B 7 IR ST B 18 & B %A S 15 16,039,000 7T
(2011: HK$15,050,000) in respect of tax losses of certain (2011 4E : % 15,050,000 7T ) K & £ & T 48
subsidiaries because of the unpredictability of future taxable profits. FHIREENEEERK 2 HWB AR - BEitir

KRB F Bz IR -

The tax losses of approximately HK$94,168,000 (2011: TEIRTREEN TR A LB BN IAEE
HK$81,242,000) do not have expiry date under current tax K4 7 94,168,000 T (2011 4F : & ¥
legislation. 81,242,0007T) ©
Should the Group recognised all unrecognised deferred tax assets, NN E B B IR P A R MR IR IE T 18 & EE
the profit for the year would be increased by HK$16,039,000 (2011: AR BRI AN 16,039,000 7T (2011 4F -
HK$15,050,000). 5% 15,050,000 7T)
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27. Share Capital 27. BA&
(a) Authorised and issued share capital (a) ZEREBITRAE
2012 2011
20124 20114
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Rin&E G| B in2h B ©H
000 FH%  HK$000 B% T T 000 FH&  HK$000 BT T
Authorised: EE

Ordinary shares of HK$0.25 each /% [ &5 0.25 7T

LimR 1,500,000 375,000 1,500,000 375,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR
Ordinary shares EiEAR
At beginning and end of the year A& #] R F 4 210,336 52,584 210,336 52,584

164



27. Share Capital (continued)
(b) Management of capital

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to
it, in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
The Group has been imposed with several capital requirements from
banks on the Group’s equity to total assets ratio, gearing ratio and
consolidated tangible net worth. As of 29 February 2012 and 28
February 2011, the Group has complied with these capital
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes during the years ended 29 February 2012 and 28
February 2011.

The Group monitors capital using a debt to equity ratio, which
represented by total borrowings divided by total equity of the Group.
The Group’s policy is to maintain the debt to equity ratio not greater
than 100%.

Total equity e R
Total borrowings miEs
Debt to equity ratio BEYERLE

27, AR (%)
(b) EXEE

AEENEAEREEARAREAEERE
FRECEIRITRENERLE » UEE

AEFEREEARERE  WREBLERE
BHRAEBEECRRSEHEELRAE - &
B RAREANLERE  AEBEAEAERK
FRF ZRE ~ REIEAR FREKEEITHR -
REBEMBEFRITEHAEBE MINE TERR
o BEEAKBE I EREREERE AF
LEER KRG B EESE - 1201242 A 29
AK2011F2A28H AEERFAUEARR
Fe RE E201262H2918 X%201142 A
28HIEFE - AKBEMERE - BRI HEEY

AEEFNBEELREREAR  IALEEN
BUEEHRAES AR - AEE BRI GE
BEYESLETZR100% °

2012 2011
20124 20114
HK$'000 /&% T 7  HK$'000 &8 Tt

938,247 932,426
440,040 215,640
46.90% 23.13%
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28. Reserves
(a) The Group
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements therein are
presented in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
and consolidated statement of changes in equity.

28, 18
(a) &EE
AR G ER BB BNGA RERA
SETEY FL TR

(b) The Company (b) & 7]
Share Contributed Retained Proposed
premium surplus profits  final dividend Total
W fn s B EHAaH RERBH BRARERS FkeC]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

AT BETT BETT BETT AT
(note (c)(i))  (note (c)(iii))
(BEEE@E))  (PHEE (o))

At 1 March 2010 R2010F3 A1 H&ES 123,365 14,770 419,820 16,827 574,782
Dividends paid BIRBE - - (5,679) (16,827) (22,506)
Proposed final dividend BORAR A S (2010/11)

(2010/11)(note 13) (F3E13) - - (25,240) 25,240 -
Profit for the year REEZRBF - - 206,764 206,764
At 28 February 2011 and R2011F2H28H &

1 March 2011 2011 F3 A1 H&EH 123,365 14,770 595,665 759,040
Dividends paid BIRRE - — (5,679) (30,919)
Proposed final dividend BORAEARR S (2011/12)

(2011/12)(note 13) (FfH5T13) - - (26,292) -
Profit for the year KEZEEF - - 157,542 157,542
At 29 February 2012 10201292 A 29 H &% 123,365 14,770 721,236 885,663



28. Reserves (continued)
(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

Share premium

Share premium represents premium arising from the issue of
shares at a price in excess of their par value per share and is not
distributable but may be applied in paying up unissued shares of
the Company to be issued to the shareholders of the Company
as fully paid bonus shares or in providing for the premiums
payable on repurchase of shares.

Capital reserves

Capital reserves include the values arise in the acquisitions and
disposals of subsidiaries, gains or losses arises in group
reorganisation and restructuring.

Capital reserves also include the statutory reserve, which is non-
distributable, and was appropriated from the profit after taxation
of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries under the applicable laws and
regulations in the PRC.

(iii) Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Company arised from the
difference between the consolidated net assets of the Group’s
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to a group reorganisation at the
date on which the reorganisation became effective, and the
nominal amount of the Company’s ordinary shares issued under
the reorganisation; less the set-off of the accumulated losses of
the Company amounting to HK$865,747,000 as at 29 February
2004 pursuant to a capital reorganisation.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus account of the Company is available for
distribution. However the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if:

— itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities
as they become due; or

— the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and
share premium accounts.

28. & (&)
(c) REMEREM

(i)

(i)

(iii)

BRA17 5 1B

i (0 B s R iR B R TR E(E 2 B8 31T
BROFMEERE  ZF&RETTHR K
RATIREAZERE - LERAQTIR
BITIRMDWAERBURALFI R (D ZHITF AR
AR B Sk 1 & Bt B B IR 1 FE 1 5 (B 2
1 o

B #
BEARERBEENBILENBRARELEZ
BE SEEANERELZER -

BEARFEBETERNTOIREERHE  T)
RETBEERZEZRMERBAKETE
I AR Z BRI IR BB -

ARBZEHBBESEAASEHEAR
REBALRARRIEEESHEMES 245
AEEFERRRRIRIEEHEETEBEK
HEZZ# - BARER2004F2 H29
HIERERAEAEHEZ ZAEEREE
865,747,000 7T °

BRI B FE1981 F R RNE (EEF]) » &
RNRAEHBRBIEA FHIK - A - LR
TER AR TEREHBARIREIGK
BEERSBMNREZA D REHRE
%

- ERNERER - TREHMEENEERE
HEIHAIE =X

- HREENFTERBERAMINEARE
REDBITRANRIEERZ EA
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28. Reserves (continued) 28. 1 (&)
(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued) (c) EMERBEN(E)
(iv) Exchange reserve (iv) [E 3 (#1E
Exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences X AR BRE N ER SRR ES
arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign ZPTEER ZEE o aZEEBIRRBI SRR
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the T A(c)(iil) REE ST R IR -
accounting policies set out in note 4(c)(iii) to the financial
statements.
29. Commitments 29, &I
(a) There were no capital commitments for the Group or the Company (a) 201292 A29H Kk20114F2H28H @ I
outstanding at 29 February 2012 and 28 February 2011. 4B IR o
(b) At 29 February 2012, the total future minimum lease payments under (b) 201242 A29 H » TARB MK LHEEN
non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows: SEBEMLTENT
The Group A% B The Company &2 7]
2012 2011 2012 2011
20124 20114 20124 20114
HK$000 8% F7T  HK$000 % T HK$000 ## T HK$000 EH 7T
Within 1 year 1R 146,022 104,582 10,386 8,340
After 1 year but within 5 years 1FBESFR 211,159 108,565 29,290 3,677
357,181 213,147 39,676 12,017
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29. Commitments (continued)

(b) (continued)
The Group leases a number of properties under operating leases.
The leases typically run for an initial period of one to three years,
with an option to renew the lease when all terms are renegotiated.
Lease payments are usually adjusted to reflect market rentals upon
renegotiation of the terms of the lease.

Certain leasing arrangements have been subjected to contingent
rent by reference with monthly turnover throughout the leasing
periods. The minimum guaranteed rental has been used to arrive at
the above commitments.

30. Share Option Scheme

The Company’s share option scheme was adopted by shareholders of
the Company on 26 November 2003 (“2003 Share Option Scheme”).
The purpose of the 2003 Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives
or rewards to participants thereunder for their contribution to the Group
and/or to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre employees
and attract human resources that are valuable to the Group and any
entity in which the Group holds any equity interest (“Invested Entity”).

Under the 2003 Share Option Scheme, the directors of the Company are
authorised, at their discretion, at any time following the date of the
adoption of the 2003 Share Option Scheme but before the tenth
anniversary of that date, to offer options to any person belonging to any
of the following classes of participants to subscribe for shares of the
Company:

— any employee (whether full time or part time employee, including any
executive directors but not any non-executive director) of the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

— any non-executive director (including independent non-executive
directors) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity;

29, A& IE (&)

(b) (4&)
AEBEAGEHERRA O YME - BLHEE
— RV BP—FE=F TEAEEES
B EEBGRTE T ERER - HENK
HATEREREOGKEIE  URRT
SHET e

ATHERHESLANNE AL EEET
ZHREEHE - ERARTARERER
ST

30. BB R AEST &

AT Z BRI ERTEI 2003411 A26 HEAAR
AIAR R B4 ([2003 F B AR #ERT &) - 2003 F /8
BEENENE AT BB BEFHETHS
HEWREENEE R X AEAEBEARE
LB BEFREE  URAAEBBERENEE
([HREER])RANEEAT -

RIZ2003 FRAAERTE - AR ESRERER
B ER 4 2003 4 B AR 81 2 B 1R 5% A 81
ZETBEFAZEMNRRE - RER TSR
FERERINATEORHREA LR BEK
7

- ARQAE HEARBARSEMERERR
MERER (TwETBEGRBES - 235(F
MPTERIETBREMIERTES)

- ARAE HEARBARSEMERERR
MEMIEATES (BEBIFNTES)
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30. Share Option Scheme (continued) 30. AR REHEl ()

any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity;

— any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity;

— any person or entity that provides research, development or
technological support or other services to the Group or any Invested
Entity; and

— any shareholder or any member of the Group or any Invested Entity
or any holder of any securities issued by any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity.

The exercise price of options is the highest of the nominal value of the
shares, the closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange on the
date of offer of the grant and the average closing price of the shares on
the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of offer of the grant. An offer of an option shall be deemed to
have been accepted within 28 days from the date of offer upon
acceptance of the option duly signed by the grantee together with a
remittance of HK$1. The maximum number of securities available for
issue under the 2003 Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company. The maximum entitlement of each
grantee in any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the ordinary shares in
issue of the Company. The option period will not be more than ten years
from the date of grant of the option and the Company’s board of directors
may at its discretion determine the minimum period for which the option
has to be held or other restriction before the exercise of the subscription
right attaching thereon.
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- AEBEEAKE AR ERNFIREBRNE
MY S ARFHER

- AEEFEAEREBEENEAES

- AAREESEABRETBREMIRT  F%
MR EMBRENERMALHEEE
)53

- AEESEARKREEBOERRRIER
KB RA EAREEMKE R R REA B
SEBRNEMEETEFNFAA

BRENTEERRNMHETEE - RN BAE
BART B RER PTG E R RE
ERBEZAORT BB REE X B BT
BOFHURTE=EFTNESHUE - ER TEK
REFT28 AR - B EBE 1 TUERNAT AL
ARZH B AT WRER - RIAR(ERE A2
B - RIF2003 5 B AR BRI X 2 18
BAEFTE R 2 RINEE - &RZ T SBBARRD
BITRAZ10% - BRAZANBERR S AET
i+ — @A BRERA AR R HEITE BN 1%
BRENBRFHHREBREES B EFT IS8
BHF - ARFEZGUNBERE2REETE
BRI R A L AR A BB RS HR
SRE AR B ©



30. Share Option Scheme (continued)

As at 29 February 2012 and 28 February 2011, there was no outstanding
share option under the 2003 Share Option Scheme. No share options
were granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the year.

31.

32.

Contingent Liabilities

At 29 February 2012, the Company has issued guarantees to banks in
respect of general banking and other credit facilities extended to certain
subsidiaries of the Company amounting to HK$492,995,000 (2011:
HK$358,159,000).

Pledge of Assets
(a) As at 29 February 2012, debentures have been executed by the

~

Group in favour of its banker charging, by way of fixed and floating
charges, all of the undertakings, properties and assets of the
Company and of its 11 subsidiaries as security for, inter alia, all
obligations and liabilities, actual or contingent, from time to time
owing by the Group to the banker. Rental revenue of the Group is
also charged in favour of the Group’s banker.

As at 29 February 2012, the Company and the Subsidiaries have
executed a second floating charge and the Company made a
guarantee to the Subsidiaries and there was a cross guarantee
among the Subsidiaries in favour of Rosy Blue HK to pledge all of
the Subsidiaries’ respective rights to and title and interest from time
to time in their inventories or stock-in-trade and their receivables
from their overseas fellow subsidiaries in connection with the sales
and supply of any inventory or stock-in-trade to such overseas fellow
subsidiaries as a continuing security for the Debts. As at 29 February
2012, the Debts amounted to HK$170,692,000 (2011:
HK$136,833,000).

30. B IR REEH &l ()

31

HZE2012F2 A29H K 2011F2A28H @ R
2003 FHEAEAERT 8] - W 4B AE ] 5 R AT IE BB AR
o MAFERWEERL - 17 - sEHIAN
2 BERRHE o

REEE

MH2012F2 A429R  ARRIERBIT R BE
BABTARRARETHERR —RRITREME
HEBEEE ARTRMBEEAELEE
492,995,000 7T (2011 4F : /& # 358,159,000 7T )
HHEIR o

32. EEE A

(a) P 2012F2A29H » REET U EHEE - MU

BlE FOF SRR A AR B R E 11 8
RBEIZFABEY MEREEERTHER
RITRPBERA  MMER(ETRE)RE
E TR ARERRITRVBERAZNEE
RRERBEREBZERR  ARENHESE
WA TR IR T ARE B ERRT

(b) M2012F 2 H29H » AR a| RZFWE R A

RN EZEEHEMEARRMAZENE AR
EHER > MZSHEBRR ZEINE X X
R UBZEWNBRARSATRHRELE 2T
ERFHTEURKESRER AN S EIN
ANBAREE REEFANTFESFHETE
ZERZESIINRRNBRABRIBZ fTE#
H ~ FTB #E 2= 17 T Rosy Blue HK - A
TERZEBEIR ZFEET M - R201256F2 A29
B % EE A 170,692,000 7T (2011 4 :
7515 136,833,000 7T) °

171



Notes to the Financial Statememts (oo

RS EL R )

33. Related Party Transactions
In addition to those connected and related party transactions and
balances disclosed in note 36 of the financial statements, the Group had
the following transactions with its related parties during the year:

(a) During the year ended 29 February 2012, TSL M&D, a subsidiary of
the Company, purchased raw materials and finished goods from
Rosy Blue HK amounting to HK$439,536,000 (2011:
HK$324,187,000). At 29 February 2012, the amount due to Rosy
Blue HK was HK$170,692,000 (2011: HK$136,833,000).

During the year ended 29 February 2012, EF sold raw materials to
BTSL through Rosy Blue (Shanghai) Diamond Company Limited
(“Rosy Blue SH”), an authorised diamond trading company in the
PRC, amounting to HK$237,750,000 (2011: HK$216,481,000).

During the year ended 29 February 2012, TSL M&D sold raw
materials to Rosy Blue HK amount to HK$201,000 (2011: HK$Nil).

During the year ended 29 February 2012, TSL (HK), a subsidiary of
the Company, purchased raw materials and finished goods from
Rosy Blue HK amounting to HK$Nil (2011: HK$330,000). At 29
February 2012 and 28 February 2011, there was no amount due to
Rosy Blue HK.

Rosy Blue HK and Rosy Blue SH are subsidiaries of Prime
Investments S.A., a preference shareholder of Partner Logistics
Limited. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
transactions were carried out on normal commercial terms and in the
ordinary course of business.
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BEHEALRS
B T BT SR  AE 3692 R PRI B A £ 52
SRBHS - AEEAFERABEALENT
%5

(@) H=2012F2 529 |[EFE - AR A — [
J& A~ ElE I B R E K 9 8 ¢ M Rosy Blue HK
B A2 439,536,000 7T (2011 4F : B
324,187,000 7T ) &) IR M 8 K ZLRK da © 722012
#2H29H & fFRosy Blue HK#] 3 18
& 8 ¥170,692,0007C (20114 : &
136,833,0007T) °

HZE2012F 2290 IEFE @ RINEREB
—HTBERUELE S ARERR (L) E
BERAE ([EHIE LS ]) Mt 76 5% B
& & 8178 237,750,000 7T (2011 4F : B %
216,481,000 7t.) WY R M #}

HZE2012F 2298 1 FE © SilwEEEN
% $8 A Rosy Blue HK i & & 2% # 201,000
JC (2011 F « |) MR AL o

HZE2012F2 298 |EFE - AR A —HEH
BR A (B75) 2 E A Rosy Blue HK
BE AR AR R B dR (2011 4F ¢ B %5 330,000
JT) ° 72012492 A29H 201142 A28H -
’2 75 FE 1 Rosy Blue HK HJZRIA ©

Rosy Blue HK# ¥ i ¥2 Lt /8 & Partner
Logistics # & 4& % #% 3 Prime Investments
SAZHBRAR - ARFEFERE  RHE
HEEBBEPIZIE T EGRRUET



33. Related Party Transactions (continued)
(b) Remuneration for key management of the Group is as follows:

BHAEALRF (#)
(b) REBERIZEZEABMINOMEIT

2012 2011

20124 20114

HK$000 ¥ T HK$000 B FT

Short-term employee benefits R HEBET 11,330 12,436
Post-employment benefits 1B & EF 30 48
11,360 12,484

34. Financial Risk Management and Estimation of Fair 3. K EEE R A SEME

Values

(a) Financial risk management (a) BHi5E b 22
AEEEHEERR BENAERFDHZ
—RBRFEE ZINERR  EERR R
PHECRRIEEREMNER R - AEEZ
BREmERERBEEETRERTIS 2 AR’
T BRI E AR EEMBREZEETH

FEREREK -

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: foreign
currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow interest rate risk.
The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(i) Foreign currency risk (i) shEEJE B
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash SNEE RS Ty IS T A 2 A A BRI
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in eREFEXZEMEE) 2 B
foreign exchange rates.

AEBETZEH2INERE  BRRELE

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through
sales and purchases that are denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the operations to which they
relate, and the Group’s net investments in foreign subsidiaries.
The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily United States
dollars (“US$”). The Group does not hold or issue any derivative
financial instruments for trading purposes or to hedge against
fluctuations in foreign exchange rates. The Group mitigates this
risk by conducting the sales and purchases transactions in the
same currency, whenever possible.

In the opinion of the directors, US$ are reasonably stable under
the Linked Exchange Rate System with HK$ and accordingly, the
Group does not have any significant foreign exchange risk.

HEZREER AN Z ERIIEZEE R
REERBEINIBR R FRE - BEU
Rz EBEEIRAET ARBYERE
FBTEMTEMBLE  LMEEERE
SEEXNB AR - AEEBEBEA R
BRTAR—EHETEER SRR

B2 o

BEERA ERETNBBEXGET
ETLAEENRE - Bt AREIRE
BERHIMERKR
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34. Financial Risk Management and Estimation of Fair

174

Values (continued)
(a) Financial risk management (continued)
(ii) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a financial
instrument would fail to discharge its obligation under the terms
of the financial instrument and cause a financial loss to the
Group. The Group’s exposure to credit risk mainly arises from
granting credit to customers in the ordinary course of operations.
The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk on recognised
financial assets is limited to their carrying amount at the end of
the reporting period.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group
reviews the recoverability of receivables individually and
collectively periodically and at the end of each reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment loss is made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the management of the Group considers
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced. The Group
has no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure
spread over a number of counter parties and customers.

The credit risks for cash and cash equivalents of the Group and
the Company are also regarded as immaterial as they are
deposited with major banks and other financial institutions
located in Hong Kong and the PRC.

The Group does not hold other material collateral over the
financial assets. None of the financial assets of the Group are
secured by collateral or other credit enhancements. The credit
policies have been followed by the Group since prior years and
are considered to have been effective in limiting the Group’s
exposure to credit risk to a desirable level.

M. UMBEMEERAABMLE (B

(a) I EBRER (&)
(i) EERE R

EERBRENETASFHRERMET
B GRBITHEME - UEBAEEES
FBEEzcRR AKEZEERREIE
KERBERELEBEPRTEFEE - K
SENERVBEELZNEERRER
REZR ZREE °

RBEERRRERE ~AEEEEES
B R AR A B R K AR AT {8 51 e
Wk =G E - RE AR E S5
TEH R IRERE - Sl - AREEIEE
RR - ARBZEERBREAXRK - A&
KEEERRLBESRESD - FIAZZE
BNENZEAIZHFRES °

AEBRARRZREMREEBY2(E
ERRTEAR R TEX - BEFRRE
ARPEAL s TERTREMS B
o

AEEY B BEERBEMERER
o ANEEZWHEEEMBEAERRIE
fEAmEyIEREMR - AEBEBESF
FEUARRBZ EEBRRBARBZEER
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34. Financial Risk Management and Estimation of Fair M. GHEREERAREMT @
Values (continued)
(a) Financial risk management (continued) (a) HEEBRER(5)

(iii) Liquidity risk (iii) JEE) & 2 A

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its
obligations associated with its financial liabilities. The Group is
exposed to liquidity risk in respect of settlement of trade payables
and its financing obligations, and also in respect of its cash flow
management.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements, its compliance with lending covenants and its
relationship with its banks to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities at
the end of the reporting period of the Group’s non-derivative
financial liabilities, based on undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the
earliest date the Group can be required to pay.

mBE SRR ANEE R EZKE BRI
BaBEEEZRER - AEBERENEMIR
PEREBEETANAREREEEEY
REEL R -

AEBZHRRREHERRBESF R
EANEERZEZRERELERTTZH
& RREESEARE LA SR
BEUSTT R 2 A B - LENEIEH]
REHRBEZHH -

TRETAEEFTEMBABERFER
ZHRTAEMNEMA  DRABRRER
(BHEABHNZS (W AFE) FAERR
TN EREFEZ R B RAEE A58
Bz &P HRRELE -
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34.

176

Financial Risk Management and Estimation of Fair

Values (continued)

(a) Financial risk management (continued)

(iii) Liquidity risk (continued)

Specifically, for term loans which contain a repayment on
demand clause which can be exercised at the bank’s sole
discretion, the analysis shows the cash outflow based on the
earliest period in which the entity can be required to pay, that is if
the lenders were to invoke their unconditional rights to call the
loans with immediate effect.

No fixed

repayment

terms/

on demand

EEE

BES/

RRERER

HK$'000

BETFT

Trade and other payables FERBE R R EL M B3R 236,212

Interest bearing payable SRR =

Bank overdrafts — secured RITEZ — BIRF 44,063
Term loans and trade financing R ZKEEEHZEHER

subject to a repayment RES#ME

on demand clause 269,246

Obligations under finance leases 74 & &z -

549,521

34. i 5 BB BB | A AR ()

(a) BIERERERE (&)

(i) TEVE 2 E R ()
ERME  WEXRTFEEEREER K
K A BIERATRRIT RIS -
A Te@ R BERANREEER I &
B (BERAEE S| RERRERER
RN FTEE 2R SRS -

Maturity analysis — Undiscounted cash outflows

2012
20124

BEBERAM - REGRA SR

Less than
1 year

1EUT
HK$'000
BT T

387,368
123,873

4,409
515,650

1t02
years

1F5226F
HK$'000
BT

1,899
1,899

2105
years

2ERSF
HK$'000
BT T

749
749

Total
undiscounted
cash outflows

R
ML BEAE
HK$'000
BETIT
623,580
123,873
44,063

269,246
7,057

1,067,819



34. Financial Risk Management and Estimation of Fair M. MERAMREER D AEME (&
Values (continued)

(a) Financial risk management (continued) (a) HEEBRER(5)
(iii) Liquidity risk (i) TEVE 2 ER ()
2011
20114

Maturity analysis — Undiscounted cash outflows
FIEBERAAN - REREL R

)

No fixed
repayment Total
terms/ Less than 1t02 2to5 undiscounted
on demand 1 year years years cash outflows
EEE
BEs/ AEREE
RIRERER 1FUT  1F22F 2F%5F FLAEA:
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT  B¥ETT BETRx BETT BET
Trade and other payables FERTERT R R 206,511 337,850 - - 544,361
Bank overdrafts — secured RiTEY —BHE 18,054 - - - 18,054
Term loans and trade financing R ZKEBERZEHER
subject to a repayment RESHME
on demand clause 193,880 - - - 193,880
Obligations under finance leases Fi &M E/&IE - 2,016 1,854 14 3,884
418,445 339,866 1,854 14 760,179
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34. Financial Risk Management and Estimation of Fair
Values (continued)
(a) Financial risk management (continued)
(iii) Liquidity risk (continued)

The following table summarises the maturity analysis of term
loans with a repayment on demand clause based on agreed
scheduled repayments set out in the loan agreements. The
amounts include interest payments computed using contractual
rates. As a result, these amounts were greater than the amounts
disclosed in the “on demand” time band in the maturity analysis.
Taking into account the Group’s financial position, the directors
do not consider that it is probable that the bank will exercise its
discretion to demand immediate repayment. The directors
believe that such term loans will be repaid in accordance with the
scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.

M. UMBEMEERAABMLE (B

(a) BIERERERE (&)

(iii)

mBETERE(E)

TRBAMBRRBRLESGHZEHRE
FIREE I3 8 2 TRE SR ERIE
HZEHBBELH - BRASBEEBRERAK
MERFHEZFSMAR - Bt - HEEES
REFBE S [RIRBERER ] FREE
BEIAWEZ S8 - KT RAKE ZHHIR
ik BERRRITTARIREITRERAD
BERBIEE EFHE  ZEFAHE
R ERBEERBHEPTE 2 AT ERAH

AT
g -

Maturity analysis — Term loans and trade financing subject to a repayment
on demand clause based on scheduled repayments

HEAAN - REXERENZEHERREREEFBME

No fixed
repayment
terms/

on demand
EEEE
B AR
HK$'000
ok

29 February 2012 2012F2 A 29H =

28 February 2011 201152 A28 H -
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Less than
1 year

1EUT
HK$'000
BETT

231,212

140,498

Total
1to2 2to5 undiscounted
years years cash outflows

REBHRE

1FE26F 2FEBE5F FMBEAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BET T BET T

16,203 27,561 274,976

16,626 43,651 200,775



34. Financial Risk Management and Estimation of Fair
Values (continued)
(a) Financial risk management (continued)
(iv) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value
of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market
interest rates.

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from borrowings.
The following sensitivity analysis have been determined
assuming that change in interest rates had occurred at the year
end date and had been applied to the exposure to interest rates
for financial instruments in existence at that date. A 1% increase
or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to
key management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 1% higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s profit for the year ended 29
February 2012 and the retained profits as of 29 February 2012
would decrease/increase by HK$2,883,000 (2011: decrease/
increase by HK$1,106,000). This is mainly attributes to the
Group’s exposure to interest rates on its variable rate borrowings.

(b) Estimation of fair values

The notional amounts of financial assets and liabilities with a maturity
of less than one year (including trade and other receivables, cash at
bank, trade and other payables) are assumed to approximate their
fair values. The fair value of interest bearing payable and finance
lease liabilities is estimated as the present value of future cash flows,
discounted at current market interest rates for similar financial
instruments.

The fair value of non-trade balances due from/to group and related
companies has not been determined as the timing of the expected
cash flows of these balances cannot be reasonably determined
because of the relationship.

U.MBEMEERAABEME (&)

(a) BEREBERE (45)

(iv) B2 & R A EF)FE e
RenEMXRRIEETSMN X EEHE
BB TAZARRRERENB AR
RIAEN R R B To 48 5 H) R ) E B
M TAZEBERB 2R -

AEBZMEXRABREIEELBFHNEEG
B o DT ZBBRESMIBRRMNEEEHRN
FRAZEMEE  YORARZAECDHE
MM TAMmE 2 FEER - ERE
EEEABANBEHN EEARE - 5RAT
BAREMKTHAEZ2BR  NERE
AR Z B A RE R B RO -

THF R, TR B - MATA &
REFETAE  RNEBEZE2012F2H29H
IFEEZEMER20124942 A298 2 1%
B 28 F #5718 00 #5 2,883,000 70
(20114« ik 4 7 38 hn % # 1,106,000
L) WHEBRRASEREZEEE
FrEs s FI RS -

(b) AREZfhE

R—FRER P BEEN AR (BRRUSER
R EAD YK~ RITIER - BN R E
RN z2HELRRESEEQT(EN

AARARRRERERERMBTAZRITT
BRERER 2 HE -

AP R E R R PN AR B R B E A F]
2B FERERE e RERMEESIEE
B EEEERERIANE
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35. Financial Instruments by Category B.UMKEIAESE
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments BRI B TERNFERZREENT

as at the reporting date are as follow:

The Group AEE

Loans and receivables

B MUK
2012 2011
20124 2011 4F
HK$'000 &% F7r  HK$000 BT T
Financial assets BgEE
Financial assets included in trade and FT ATE FEURER 31 & H Ath R U GR
other receivables CIEEE 225,371 217,223
Cash at bank and in hand RITHEB RS 102,512 121,935
Total 1E%E 327,883 339,158
Financial liabilities at amortised costs
B SERARABR Z IS B &
2012 2011
20124 20114
HK$'000 &% F 7T HK$000 & T T
Financial liabilities i =R
Financial liabilities included in trade and ST ATE RS BR R I EL A BB AT 30
other payables 2 BaE 623,580 544,358
Bank overdrafts — secured RITEY - HIEE 44,063 18,054
Bank loans IRITER 269,246 193,880
Interest bearing payable FTEFERR 120,000 -
Total 8% 1,056,889 756,292
At the end of the reporting period, all financial instruments are carried at REHER MEMBTAZEEREELQAA BT &
amounts not materially different from their fair values. EAER -
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35. Financial Instruments by Category (continued) B.HMEIESE®
The Company AAT

Loans and receivables

B R EWGR
2012 2011
20124 20114
HK$'000 AE# T HK$000 ¥ F T
Financial assets MBERE
Due from subsidiaries B WP B8 A B FRIE 386,243 413,459
Deposits b - 1
Cash at bank and in hand IRITHEBREIRE 134 130
Total 1BEE 386,377 413,590
Financial liabilities at amortised costs
LABESHRN R ABR 2 I 5 B (B
2012 2011
20124 20114
HK$'000 &% F 7T HK$000 &% T T
Financial liabilities B aE
Financial liabilities included in other payables FTAEME SRR ETER
and accruals 2B AaE 1,541 1,355
At the end of the reporting period, all financial instruments are carried at RFEER - IEVBITAZEERAALELE
amounts not materially different from their fair values. BEREH-
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36. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

182

(a) Purchase of non-controlling interests

On 29 February 2012, the Group acquired 19.54% equity interests in
two 80.46% owned subsidiaries (TSL China and IAC) from the non-
controlling shareholders at total cash consideration of
HK$150,000,000. The effect of the acquisition on the equity
attributable to the owners of the Company is as follows:

Share of net assets in the subsidiaries acquired
Loss on acquisition recognised directly in equity

Consideration

Consideration satisfied by:
Cash (paid during the year)
Interest bearing payable

The interest bearing payable of HK$120,000,000 is unsecured and
interest bearing at the prime rate of The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited. The balance will be settled by
instalments, in which HK$30,000,000 will be payable on 29 June
2012; HK$30,000,000 will be payable on 28 September 2012; and
HK$60,000,000 will be payable on 31 December 2012.

(b) Major non-cash transaction

During the year ended 29 February 2012, a dividend to the non-
controlling shareholders of approximately HK$14,239,000 was
settled by offsetting the trade receivables due from the non-
controlling shareholders to the Group.

B.ZmERERERMHT
(a) WIB IR IR R AR
M2012F2 298 - AEEURESRELTE
7% 150,000,000 7T A FE 12 A A 51 U5 R i JR
B 80.46% #E zx 09 F A7) (3 I B R B %
IAC) H)19.54% 1 z - & 1H W B8 ¥ N R B
BEABLESTEENT

HK$’000 & # T 7t
FEIGETUR BB B A B 2 BEFE 128,395
WEEE B H R i TR 21,605
RE 150,000
HK$000 7% F 7t

REATHIHE R
Re (RAFEALH) 30,000
R 120,000
150,000

75 120,000,000 7T HY EH B FE S F0I0 MK 4R K2
RESLBEYRITBERARMBEASRE
BEFEE - B0 BN EE B4
75 # 30,000,000 7T 20124 6 A 29 B & 1+
75 # 30,000,000 7T 2201249 A 28 B X 1+ :
T 78%60,000,0007T42012F 12 A31 A »

(b) TEHBERH
B Z201242H298 |t F E 4 B %
14,239,000 7T A& 2. T FE 4% A I 5% LA FE U IE
12 1% 5 B P UK AR SR8 o



37.

38.

Events after the Reporting Period

On 20 April 2012, the Company has issued to CDH King Limited (“CDH”)
a principal amount of HK$250,000,000 five year term convertible bonds
under which the bondholder can convert the principal into ordinary
shares of the Company (the “Shares”) with an initial conversion price at
HK$6.40 per Share (the “Convertible Bonds”). The Convertible Bonds
may be converted into the Shares at any time during the conversion
period, on or after the Convertible Bonds’ issuance date up to its maturity
date. The Convertible Bonds are unsecured and subordinated to all
present and future indebtednesses of the Company, excluding equity-
linked debt securities which is any present or future indebtedness in the
form of, or represented by, bonds, debentures, notes, loan stock,
redeemable shares or other debt securities.

As the Convertible Bonds entitle the bondholder to convert the loan into
a fixed number of Shares at a fixed conversion price, it is regarded as a
compound instrument that consists of a liability and an equity
component. At the date of issue of the Convertible Bonds, the fair value
of the liability component is estimated using the prevailing market
interest rate for similar non-convertible debt. In relation to the estimations
of the liability component of the Convertible Bonds, the contractual cash
flows over the remaining contractual terms of the Convertible Bonds
were estimated and discounted at that prevailing market interest rate.
The difference between the proceeds of issue of the Convertible Bonds
and the fair value assigned to the liability component, representing the
embedded option for the bondholder to convert the Convertible Bonds
into equity of the Group, is included in equity as capital reserve. The fair
value of the liability component and the amount of the equity component
at the date of issue are as follows:

Liability component

Equity component T

Proceeds of issue of the Convertible Bonds %

Ultimate Controlling Party

At 29 February 2012, the directors consider the immediate holding
company to be Partner Logistics Limited, which is incorporated in the
BVI, the ultimate holding company to be Blink Technology Limited, which
is incorporated in the BVI, and the ultimate controlling party to be Mr.
Tse Tat Fung, Tommy.

N

3. MEHBERSIE

M2012% 4 4201 © K 2 & % 17 T CDH King
Limited ([ CDH) 78 & % %8 /3 250,000,000 % 7T 5
FHZBRRES  BFHBEARBEAERR
RARMEBER(TRG ] NTHRKRERTR
6.40 8 7T ([ AT AR B35 1) » PIHRRE S 1§ I N2
BRENEERER ARG - IR EITEHSNER
ZIHA - I MREFSEEMRREBRAER
LB RARRBINER - ENEEEREHER
BHERBRAERBRAERER - HARTZES
BEHE  BE BERRE  JEEROKEHME
BESNE

ARBE S T E5 A AR E E AR E R
BErERSEERE 20 - TMREFRRR
E#ATE BRRERESED - RABRERES
TR BERSZAAENARLERKE
BZERNTS XM - BARATRERESRE
BERf D RAKWRERERTRRESAORIRE
HRAERIH TS SR A RITE o #HiTABR
BRZMERERBERSBENS (AIHEARKE
FEMAANEE D NBOREE) Z AR EM
BEZEBR AR ZERGEE - RESHZA
RENERID ZERNETEHMNT

HK$'000 /&% T 7T

% 241,311
% 8,689

TR EHF TS FR 250,000
3. RAERE
R2012F2A20H ' EFERE NEBERE L H

E Ak 7 #) Partner Logistics Limited & & BER A
A RERERATANEBEZES MK
Blink Technology Limited ' i & & 4EA A + At
IR -
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Five-Year Financial Summary

hFMBHE

RESULTS ¥&

Turnover

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit for the year
Attributable to :

Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Profit for the year

184

e

B 5 A1 28 7
I8
REZRRF
FEE BB -
E/NCIE 2SN
FEER A R
REEBHN

2012
HK$'000
BT

3,359,063

235,807
(54,811)

180,996

162,347
18,649

180,996

Year ended 29th / 28th February

HE2H29/28 B ItEE
2011 2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

BT BT BT

2,517,543 2,017,572 1,959,360
230,663 199,095 159,500
(30,425) (52,344) (85,022)
200,238 146,751 124,478
176,118 121,690 104,757

24,120 25,061 19,721
200,238 146,751 124,478

2008
HK$'000
BETIT

1,917,378

157,320
(46,053)

111,267

99,228
12,039

111,267



ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EER & E

Property, plant and
equipment

Deferred tax assets

Deposits

Other asset

Current assets

Current liabilities

Obligation under
finance leases

Employee benefit
obligations

Deferred tax liabilities

NET ASSETS

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity attributable to
owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

TOTAL EQUITY

YE S

ERERIAEE
we
HibEE
MENEE
mBAE

BETEERE

EBRAEH

BLERIARE
BEEFE
BEXR B
B

fE#

ZA/NCIE SN
JE 1 R 2t 48R
FEIER R M

BRAHE

2012
HK$'000
BT

137,932
21,036
23,126

500
1,912,498
(1,110,186)

984,906

(2,552)
(19,727)
(24,380)

938,247

52,584
885,663

938,247

938,247

As at 29th / 28th February

2011
HK$'000
BT

124,538
19,015

500
1,625,218
(805,438)

963,833

(1,825)

(12,745)
(16,837)

932,426

52,584
759,040

811,624
120,802

932,426

%2R 29/28 H
2010
HK$'000
BT

118,593
22,244

500
1,316,628
(713,064)

744,901

(203)

(11,152)
(12,969)

720,577

52,584
574,782

627,366
93,211

720,577

2009
HK$000
BETIT

134,625
26,732

500
1,050,499
(603,894)

608,462

(308)

(22,323)
(6,885)

578,946

52,203
458,640

510,843
68,103

578,946

2008
HK$’000
BETIT

138,375
18,883

500
1,101,226
(793,594)

465,390

(126)

(17,671)
(777)

446,816

51,766
348,701

400,467

46,349
446,816
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summary of Properties
NHEE

Location

HE

Gross floor
area

BEmE

Percentage
interest in
property

MERELL X

Category of
tenure

FHI 1A

Usage
A&

Private Car Parking Space Nos.

43-50, and 73 on Basement

and Lorry Car Parking Space Nos. 1-4, 6, 11
and 14, 1st Floor, Summit Building, 30 Man Yue
Street, Hung Hom, Kowloon, Hong Kong

BB NBRALW R 30 5% FLEE T o KB s
43-50 M 73 FLRBAEM N 11&

1-4,6, 11 K 1455 EEHE N

N/A

100%

Units A1-A7, B, Front and Rear Portion,
Storeroom No.3 and 5, Ground Floor; Units
A1-A2, B and C, 1st Floor; Unit E-H, 2nd
Floor; Units A—K and Flat Roof, 3rd Floor;
Summit Building, 30 Man Yue Street,

Hung Hom, Kowloon,

Hong Kong
BRNEAMRBEIOFEETHAEM T
A1-A7 - BEfL - Ai{& &0 - 3REREME -
1B A1-A25f - BN CEA : 2B E-HEL :
BA-KER KT A

91,455

100%

Units A & B, 1st Floor, Shui Ki Industrial

Building, No. 18, Wong Chuk Hang Road,

Aberdeen, Hong Kong
BEABBTEMNE18RIGHIEAE1Z2ARBEN

10,716

100%

Unit A1 on Level 1 and 2, Block 2, Heng Chang
Garden, Beijing, PRC
FREIERMIESTEE 21 K218 A1 B

1,654

100%




Percentage

Gross floor interest in Category of
Location area property tenure Usage
Hh 24 EEmEE MERGLLE | FHNHE A&
5 Flat 01, 23rd Floor, Block F, Beijing Rome
Garden, Cao Hui Road, Chaoyang District,
1,735 100% L R

Beijing, PRC

HESERTHAGEEERIREGIEEFE23E1 =
L: Long term lease
M: Medium term lease
C: Carpark

Industrial unit
R: Residential
N/A:  Not applicable
L: REAZZAY
M: A
C: JAERL
TEREM

R: F=
N/A:  iEA
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